
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 14, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

November 14, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Richard Peacock – First United 
Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

2005-2006 City Council Convenes:  (a) Installation of New Members; (b) 
Adoption of Rules of Procedure; (c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem................... 1 

d) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy Families for Safe Homes ........................ 2 
e) Recognition for Outstanding Support from the City of Troy and the Troy Police 

Department by Command Sgt. Major Joseph Haddad ......................................... 2 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

B-1 No Carryover Items 2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

C-1 Background Information for CDBG Agenda Items/Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Year 2002 Project Description Amendment 2 

C-2 Request to Re-program and Waive Recapture of Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 2003 Funds 2 

C-3 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2006 Application 3 



C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, Commercial 
Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 4 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

D-1 No Postponed Items 5 

CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 6 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control 
Signs and Posts.................................................................................................... 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus 
Parcels ................................................................................................................. 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to 
Expend City Funds – Radio Equipment ................................................................ 7 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-2 – 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration............................................... 7 

E-5 Application for Transfer Ownership of a Class C (Quota) License – Spectadium – 
2511 Livernois 7 

E-6 Amendment #4 – Office Space Rental Agreement – Emerald Food Services – 
Community Center Café/Pro Shop Contract 8 

E-7 Authorization to Pay 2006 Membership Dues – National League of Cities 8 

E-8 Request for Temporary Trailer – Chuck E. Cheese – 740 John R 8 

E-9 Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy 
Community Center 8 

E-10 Private Agreement for Beech Lane Splits – Project No. 05.930.3 9 



E-11 Private Agreement for Fifth Third Bank – Project No. 05.919.3 9 

E-12 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Market and Bakery 9 

E-13 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Drain Easement, Permanent Sanitary 
Sewer Easement, Permanent Public Utility Easement, Warranty Deed for Nada 
Court, Covington Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041 10 

E-14 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels 10 

E-15 Contract Amendment #1 – Automatic Meter Reading System 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Liquor Committee; Personnel Board; Southeastern Michigan Council 
of Governments (SEMCOG); and Troy Daze Advisory Committee 11 

F-2 Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 16 

F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 19, 2005 17 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 17 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre – November 21, 2005............. 17 
b) Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere – November 21, 2005 ........................... 17 
c) Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles 

Road, Section 14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) – November 21, 2005 ............................ 17 
d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, 

Approval of Group Child Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A 
through R-1E Districts – November 21, 2005 ..................................................... 17 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 17 

a) 2005 Troy Daze .................................................................................................. 17 



COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1 No Council Referrals 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1  No Council Comments 17 

REPORTS: 18 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 18 

a) Board of Canvassers/Final – April 6, 2004 ......................................................... 18 
b) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – August 10, 2004............................... 18 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 12, 2005.............................. 18 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 1, 2005 .................. 18 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 14, 

2005 ................................................................................................................... 18 
f) Library Board/Final – September 15, 2005......................................................... 18 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 20, 2005 ....................................... 18 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 20, 2005 ....................................... 18 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 27, 2005 ..................... 18 
j) Troy Youth Council/Final – September 28, 2005 ................................................ 18 
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 4, 2005....................................... 18 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 4, 2005............................ 18 
m) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 4, 2005............................ 18 
n) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 5, 2005 ........ 18 
o) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 5, 2005 ........ 18 
p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 5, 2005 .................................. 18 
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 5, 2005 .................................. 18 
r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 6, 2005....................... 18 
s) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – October 11, 2005 ................................... 18 
t) Planning Commission Regular/Final – October 11, 2005 ................................... 18 
u) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 13, 2005............................................... 18 
v) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – October 17, 2005 ............................. 18 
w) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 18, 2005............................................ 18 
x) Troy Youth Council/Draft – October 26, 2005..................................................... 18 
y) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 3, 2005 ................... 18 
z) Board of Canvassers/Draft – November 9, 2005................................................ 18 
aa) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 9, 2005 .. 18 

J-2 Department Reports: 19 

a) 2006 Sanctuary Lake League Rates .................................................................. 19 
b) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2005 .......................... 19 
c) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan Municipal 

League Annual Meeting...................................................................................... 19 



d) Police Department - 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report ..... 19 
e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2005 ....... 19 
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2005 Third Quarter Litigation Report ............................. 19 
g) Library Rankings................................................................................................. 19 
h) Real Estate and Development Department – Ford and Earl Property ................ 19 
i) Planning Department – Status of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 

216) – Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District .................................................................................... 19 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Dan DeWolf Regarding the Professionalism and 
Efforts of Officer Villerot...................................................................................... 19 

b) Certificate of Appreciation to John M. Lamerato from the Michigan 
Government Finance Officers Association Mentoring Program Committee........ 19 

c) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to Mayor 
Schilling and City Council, Thanking Department Directors Carol Anderson, 
Tim Richnak, Chief Craft, Chief Nelson, Jeanette Bennett and Cindy Stewart 
and Their Staff for the Assistance with the Troy Daze Festival .......................... 19 

d) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John 
Szerlag, Thanking Carol Anderson, Jeff Biegler and the Parks and Recreation 
Staff for Their Contributions with the Troy Daze Festival.................................... 19 

e) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John 
Szerlag, Thanking Chief Craft, Captain Mayer, Lt. Scherlinck, Sgt. Kowalski, 
Officer Harrison, Officer Lepola, Mick Gobler, the Directed Patrol Unit, the 
Community Services Section, Officers from the Patrol Division, Police Service 
Aides, and the Explorers Unit for Their Assistance with the Troy Daze Festival. 19 

f) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John 
Szerlag, Thanking Chief Nelson, Fire Department Liason Bob Matlick, Tonya 
Perry, Rod Bovensiep, Yanuz Bora, Chuck Reisterer, Eric Caloia, Bill McNabb 
and Dave Roberts for Their Assistance with the Troy Daze Festival .................. 19 

g) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John 
Szerlag, Thanking Tim Richnak, Tom Rosewarne, Duane Blucher, Todd 
Culver, Doug Billings, Tracey Crane, Larry Holmes, Jonathan King and John 
Zawojskyj for Their Assistance in Setting up and Tearing Down the Troy Daze 
Festival ............................................................................................................... 19 

h) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John 
Szerlag, Thanking Cindy Stewart, Andrea Herzog, Sue Davis, Shawn Polito, 
Matt Rundell, Chuck Davis and Jeff Verhoef for Their Contributions with the 
Troy Daze Festival.............................................................................................. 19 

i) Letter of Appreciation from Deborah Barczyk to the Troy Fire Department, 
Thanking Karen Lawson for the Fire Safety Presentation .................................. 19 

j) Letter of Thanks to Susan Lancaster from Jeannie Niland, Michigan 
Association of Code Enforcement Officers, In Appreciation of Her 
Presentation ....................................................................................................... 19 

k) Letter of Appreciation to Brian Goul from Edith Andersen Regarding Mario 
Walden ............................................................................................................... 19 

l) Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Kelly McConnell, Briarwood Manor 
Homeowners Association, In Appreciation of Firefighter Merian and the Troy 
Fire Department.................................................................................................. 19 

m) Letter of Appreciation to Sgt. Zielinski from Paul Scobie, Troy Youth 
Assistance, Thanking Sgt. Zielinski for His Presentation.................................... 20 



n) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Ann Strecker Regarding the Efforts of 
Officer Dungien and the Troy Police Department ............................................... 20 

o) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Michael Bouchard, Oakland County 
Sheriff, In Appreciation of the Assistance by the Troy Police Department.......... 20 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 20 

J-5  Calendar 20 

J-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – 
Case No. U-14702 20 

STUDY ITEMS: 20 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 20 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 20 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 20 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 21 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 21 
Monday, January 9, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 21 
Monday, January 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 21 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Richard Peacock – 
First United Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
 2005-2006 City Council Convenes:  (a) Installation of New Members; (b) Adoption 

of Rules of Procedure; (c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
a) Installation of New Members 
 
Members of the City Council who begin new terms will be administered the Oath of Office. 
 
b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Attached is a copy of the Rules of Procedure, which is subject to renewal and/or amendment at 
this time. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy are hereby 
(ADOPTED or AMENDED) as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Council’s Rules of Procedure address the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem as follows: 
 

1. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order:  Cristina Broomfield, Martin F. Howrylak, Jeanne M. Stine, David A. Lambert, 
Wade Fleming, Robin Beltramini 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-110 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Cristina Broomfield is hereby APPOINTED to serve as Mayor Pro Tem for 
the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No:  

 
d) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy Families for Safe Homes   
e) Recognition for Outstanding Support from the City of Troy and the Troy Police 

Department by Command Sgt. Major Joseph Haddad 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Background Information for CDBG Agenda Items/Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Year 2002 Project Description Amendment  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the reprogramming of 
CDBG Program Year 2002 funds and to EXPEND our CDBG Program Year 2002 appropriation 
balance of $11,309.85 on Flood Drain Improvements, from Account #3616, Special 
Assessment to Account #2696, Flood Drain Improvements.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Request to Re-program and Waive Recapture of Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) 2003 Funds  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AUTHORIZES Water/Sewer 
Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 be added to the activity 
list of CDBG projects for 2003; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Year 2003 unspent funds should be RE-PROGRAMMED 
from Flood Drain Improvements to Water Sewer Improvements. 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation; and 
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2003 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2005; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2003 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver: and 
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver Request Form must be submitted for each 2003 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland of the Oakland County Community and Home Improvement Division 
no later than Friday, November 25, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy hereby requests to RE-PROGRAM and 
WAIVE recapture of 2003 CDBG funds as follows: 
 
Existing (From): 
Account #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
803229-2696  Flood Drain Improvements  $55,637.70 
 
Proposed (To) 
Account #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
803229-3824      Water Sewer Improvements $55,637.70 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2006 Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy will receive approximately $166,316.00 for Community 
Development Block Grant funds for the year 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 14th, 2005 a Public Hearing was held before the City Council of the 
City of Troy, at which Public Hearing, persons were given an opportunity to provide written and 
oral views to the Troy City Council, the authority responsible for enacting the budget, and to ask 
questions about the entire budget and the relationship of the Home Chore Program, 
Administration, and Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, 
Section 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of the Public Hearing on this 
date has determined that funding should be provided through the 2006 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the Home Chore Program; Administration, and 
Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Home Chore Program, Administration, and 
Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 are hereby 
DESIGNATED as Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Projects for 2006; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED TO SIGN the 
Application and Subrecipient Agreement and SUBMIT them to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00, Commercial 

Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Suggested Resolution A, Planning Commission Version 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, that Article IV (Definitions) and XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of 
Chapter 39, the Zoning Ordinance, be ADOPTED, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission, Version “A”. 
 
Or 
 
Suggested Resolution B, City Management Version 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, that Article IV (Definitions) and XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of 
Chapter 39, the Zoning Ordinance, be ADOPTED, as recommended by City Management, 
version “B”. 
 
Or 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
Suggested Resolution C, Refer to Planning Commission Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, that City Council hereby REFERS ZOTA 201 to the Planning Commission for the 
consideration of removing performance theaters from proposed Section 04.20.73 that sets forth the 
definition of Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11-  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 24, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs 

and Posts    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an option 
to renew for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Vulcan Signs, 
Osburn Associates, Inc., Rocal, Inc., Unistrut Detroit Service Co., Allied Municipal Supply and 
Dornbos Sign & Safety, Inc. at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 19, 
2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with 
contracts expiring December 16, 2006. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus Parcels    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to sell $562,862.00 of surplus real estate parcels be AWARDED to 
the highest bidders as listed on the attached bid tabulation(s) opened October 26, 2005, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and are summarized 
below: 
 

Parcel # Sidwell #    Minimum 
Bid 

    High Bid Name of Bidder 

1 20-01-476-032 $340,000 $411,000 Bassam Askar of  
Troy 

21 20-26-433-019,020 $  70,000 $  71,250 Bostick Real Estate  
LLC of Warren 

24 20-27-155-013 $  60,000 $  66,112 Gary Abitheira of  
Troy 

27 20-34-201-009 $  13,000 $  14,500 Rick & Renee 
Van Daal of 
Oakland 

   $562,862 GRAND TOTAL 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department may 
EXPEND the necessary funds for title insurance and recording, to be taken from the proceeds 
of said sales, to close and record these real estate parcels; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Warranty Deed to be delivered at closing. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – Radio Equipment    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Police Department 
to receive a United States Department of Justice, Save our School Grant and EXPEND funds 
for the for the purchase of radio equipment from M/A-Com, Inc. of Lynchburg, VA at an 
estimated cost of $40,000.00 through an Oakland County Contract in accordance with the 
Appendix, Radio Equipment Price Breakdown; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Police Department budget is hereby AMENDED to 
receive grant funding of $40,000.00 so it may be expended on radio equipment described 
above.   
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 06-2 – Sylvan 

Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 06-2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration, be 
AWARDED to Dan’s Excavating, Inc., 12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,128,115.10; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
E-5 Application for Transfer Ownership of a Class C (Quota) License – Spectadium – 

2511 Livernois 
 
(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from AG SPORTS, INC. to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C 
Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Outdoor Service(1 area) and 3 bars; 
request new Official Permit(Food) to be located at 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County,  from Premier Sports, L.L.C. “above all others”; be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
(b) Agreement 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with AG SPORTS, INC. to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C 
Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Outdoor Service(1 area) and 3 bars; 
request new Official Permit(Food) to be located at 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County,  from Premier Sports, L.L.C. “above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Amendment #4 – Office Space Rental Agreement – Emerald Food Services – 

Community Center Café/Pro Shop Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Addendum #4 to the Original Agreement with Emerald Food Services 
dated March 18, 2002 be APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-7 Authorization to Pay 2006 Membership Dues – National League of Cities 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the invoice in the amount of $5,953.00 for 2006 membership dues to the 
National League of Cities is APPROVED for payment. 
 
E-8 Request for Temporary Trailer – Chuck E. Cheese – 740 John R 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Todd Horchner, Director of Training for CEC Entertainment, 
to temporarily place an office trailer for use as a hiring office at 740 John R is hereby 
APPROVED from the date of November 30, 2005, until December 21, 2005, in accordance with 
Chapter 47, House Trailers and Trailer Courts, Section 6.41(2), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
E-9 Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy 

Community Center 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Resolution #2005-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross is the sole known provider of Red Cross training supplies 
in Michigan;   
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross has been providing training supplies for lifeguard and 
CPR programs and classes at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center for 
the past year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase American Red Cross 
training supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center from the sole 
known provider in Michigan, the American Red Cross is hereby APPROVED at an estimated 
total cost of $18,000.00, expiring December 31, 2006. 
 
E-10 Private Agreement for Beech Lane Splits – Project No. 05.930.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Deagle Development, Inc., is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of storm sewer, sanitary sewer, sidewalk, paving and soil erosion controls on the 
site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-11 Private Agreement for Fifth Third Bank – Project No. 05.919.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Fifth Third Bank, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, storm sewer, paving and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Market and Bakery 
 
(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from MJMN, INC. to transfer all stock interest in 2005 SDD & 
SDM licensed corporation located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI 48084, Oakland County 
wherein sole stockholder Masoud Matti transfers 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, 
Kawkab Matti “above all others”; be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with MJMN, INC. to transfer all stock interest in 2005 SDD & SDM  
licensed corporation located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI 48084, Oakland County wherein sole 
stockholder Masoud Matti transfers 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, Kawkab Matti 
“above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Drain Easement, Permanent Sanitary 

Sewer Easement, Permanent Public Utility Easement, Warranty Deed for Nada 
Court, Covington Estates Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Storm Drain Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, Permanent Public Utility Easement, and the Warranty Deed for Nada Court, all 
being part of The Covington Estates Condominium project are hereby ACCEPTED.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department is AUTHORIZED to advertise to sell by sealed bid to the highest 
bidder, at or above the minimum bid value established as the appraised value, the following 
surplus parcels:  
 
Parcel#           Sidwell#                     Appraised Value                Type Property    
15            20-23-351-001 & 002         $ 20,000.00                       Vacant B -2 
17            20-23-354-048                   $ 90,000.00                       Vacant B-3 
20            20-26-429-045                   $18,000.00                        Vacant M-1 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

E-15 Contract Amendment #1 – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, September 12, 2005, the Troy City Council authorized City 
Administration to negotiate and amend a contract with SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI 
to expand the scope of work to include 26,000 residential meters (CC Res#2005-09-427). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract amendment negotiated by the City 
of Troy with SLC Meter Service, Inc. to provide automatic meter reading system software, 
equipment and services for approximately 26,000 residential meters over a four (4) year period 
expiring December 31, 2009 at an estimated annual cost of $347,035.00, with additional 
equipment purchases allowed for new housing units and commercial /industrial installations for 
a total of ten (10) years through December 31, 2015 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Historic District 
Commission; Liquor Committee; Personnel Board; Southeastern Michigan Council 
of Governments (SEMCOG); and Troy Daze Advisory Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/08 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Peggy Hammond 11/01/08 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) - Resigned 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 11/01/08 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E.  Freliga 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05-08/2007 08/15/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-09/21/05-09/2004 12/02/02 
Kul B. Gauri 07/31/05-07/2007  

Dorothy A. Pietron 
12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-
09/2007 07/23/01 

Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
(Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Personnel Board  
Appointed by Council ( 5) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Deborah L. Baughman 04/30/08 
Albert T. Nelson, Jr. 04/30/06 
Stephen Patrick, Jr. (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Ronald L. Tschirhart 04/30/08 
James E. Vanderbrink 04/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Patrick C. Hall 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Laurie G. Huber 06/18/01-09/21/05-09/2007 07/09/01-10/03/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council - (1 Council Member) – 2 years 
 
 Term Expires 11/14/07 
 
CURRENT MEMBER 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Robin Beltramini 11/14/05 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
NAME 
Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David Lambert 
Jeanne Stine 
 
 
 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berj Alexanian (Student) 07/01/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Robert A. Berk 11/30/06 
Jim D. Cyrulewski 11/30/07 
Cecile Dilley 11/30/07 
Michael S. Gonda 11/30/06 
William F. Hall (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Kessie Kaltsounis (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Marilyn K. Musick 11/30/07 
Robert S. Preston (Requests reappointment) 11/30/05 
Jeffrey Stewart  Parks & Rec Board Rep   (Also serves on 
Advisory Board for Persons with Disabilities) 09/30/06 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 11/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
James K. Campbell 10/31/05-11/2007 11/14/05 
Amin Hashmi 08/22/02-09/07/05-09/2007 09/00/05 

Laurie G. Huber 
09/22//00-06/18/01-
09/21/05-09/2007 09/22/00-07/09/01-10/03/05 

Victor Lenivov 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/0404/28/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Remedios A. Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, September 12, 2005, the Troy City Council authorized City 
Administration to negotiate the purchase of an aerial ladder truck (CC Res#2005-09-425) with 
Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the purchase of one (1) aerial platform ladder 
truck from Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, OH is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of 
$769,522.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 19, 2005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
a) No Changes at Glyndebourne and Red Maple 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Glyndebourne and Red Maple as the warrants 
for a four (4) way stop have not been met. 
 
b) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Two Away Zones at Midtown Square Condos – Maple 

and Coolidge 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Midtown Square Condos, Maple and Coolidge. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 Dequindre – November 21, 2005  
b) Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere – November 21, 2005  
c) Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, Section 

14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) – November 21, 2005  
d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of Group 

Child Care Homes on a Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E Districts – November 
21, 2005 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) 2005 Troy Daze 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Board of Canvassers/Final – April 6, 2004 
b) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – August 10, 2004 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 12, 2005  
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 1, 2005   
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 14, 2005  
f) Library Board/Final – September 15, 2005  
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 20, 2005 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 20, 2005  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 27, 2005  
j) Troy Youth Council/Final – September 28, 2005  
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 4, 2005 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 4, 2005  
m) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 4, 2005  
n) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 5, 2005  
o) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 5, 2005 
p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 5, 2005  
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 5, 2005  
r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 6, 2005 
s) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – October 11, 2005  
t) Planning Commission Regular/Final – October 11, 2005 
u) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 13, 2005 
v) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – October 17, 2005  
w) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 18, 2005  
x) Troy Youth Council/Draft – October 26, 2005  
y) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 3, 2005 
z) Board of Canvassers/Draft – November 9, 2005  
aa) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 9, 2005 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2006 Sanctuary Lake League Rates  
b) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2005  
c) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan Municipal League 

Annual Meeting  
d) Police Department - 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report  
e) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October, 2005  
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2005 Third Quarter Litigation Report  
g) Library Rankings  
h) Real Estate and Development Department – Ford and Earl Property  
i) Planning Department – Status of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – 

Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Dan DeWolf Regarding the Professionalism and Efforts of 

Officer Villerot  
b) Certificate of Appreciation to John M. Lamerato from the Michigan Government Finance 

Officers Association Mentoring Program Committee  
c) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to Mayor Schilling and City 

Council, Thanking Department Directors Carol Anderson, Tim Richnak, Chief Craft, Chief 
Nelson, Jeanette Bennett and Cindy Stewart and Their Staff for the Assistance with the 
Troy Daze Festival  

d) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Carol Anderson, Jeff Biegler and the Parks and Recreation Staff for Their Contributions 
with the Troy Daze Festival  

e) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Chief Craft, Captain Mayer, Lt. Scherlinck, Sgt. Kowalski, Officer Harrison, Officer 
Lepola, Mick Gobler, the Directed Patrol Unit, the Community Services Section, Officers 
from the Patrol Division, Police Service Aides, and the Explorers Unit for Their 
Assistance with the Troy Daze Festival  

f) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Chief Nelson, Fire Department Liason Bob Matlick, Tonya Perry, Rod Bovensiep, Yanuz 
Bora, Chuck Reisterer, Eric Caloia, Bill McNabb and Dave Roberts for Their Assistance 
with the Troy Daze Festival  

g) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Tim Richnak, Tom Rosewarne, Duane Blucher, Todd Culver, Doug Billings, Tracey 
Crane, Larry Holmes, Jonathan King and John Zawojskyj for Their Assistance in Setting 
up and Tearing Down the Troy Daze Festival 

h) Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee to John Szerlag, Thanking 
Cindy Stewart, Andrea Herzog, Sue Davis, Shawn Polito, Matt Rundell, Chuck Davis and 
Jeff Verhoef for Their Contributions with the Troy Daze Festival  

i) Letter of Appreciation from Deborah Barczyk to the Troy Fire Department, Thanking 
Karen Lawson for the Fire Safety Presentation  

j) Letter of Thanks to Susan Lancaster from Jeannie Niland, Michigan Association of Code 
Enforcement Officers, In Appreciation of Her Presentation  

k) Letter of Appreciation to Brian Goul from Edith Andersen Regarding Mario Walden  
l) Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Kelly McConnell, Briarwood Manor Homeowners 

Association, In Appreciation of Firefighter Merian and the Troy Fire Department  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

m) Letter of Appreciation to Sgt. Zielinski from Paul Scobie, Troy Youth Assistance, 
Thanking Sgt. Zielinski for His Presentation  

n) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Ann Strecker Regarding the Efforts of Officer 
Dungien and the Troy Police Department  

o) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Michael Bouchard, Oakland County Sheriff, In 
Appreciation of the Assistance by the Troy Police Department  

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – 

Case No. U-14702 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested  
 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 14, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 9, 2006.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 23, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 

 
 



 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  April 18, 2005 November 14, 
2005 

 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM........................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR............................................................... 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ........................................................................................ 1 
A. ... 1CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2)
B. DOCUMENTATION: .......................................................................................... 1 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: .............................................................................. 1 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS..................................................................................... 1 
E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA...................................................... 2 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS...................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA ............................................................................................................ 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS..................................................................................... 2 
7. REGULAR BUSINESS....................................................................................... 3 
8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ......................................... 3 
9. MINUTES ........................................................................................................... 4 
10. PROCLAMATIONS............................................................................................ 4 
11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS ........................................................... 4 
12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS......................................................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING............................................................................................. 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ......................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS............................................................................................... 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA................................................................................................. 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS.................................................. 6 
17. POSTPONE........................................................................................................ 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ........................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES........................................................................ 6 
20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS...................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ............................................................ 7 
22. SUSPEND RULES............................................................................................. 7 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION.................................................................................... 7 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS:.............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS........................................................... 7 
26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ...... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS...................................................................................................... 7 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Broomfield, Howrylak, Stine, Lambert, Fleming, 
Beltramini . 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member present 
who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the duties of the 
Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 

A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 
Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

B. DOCUMENTATION: 
Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in 
the Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for 

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written 
notice calling the meeting.   

• (b) Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session 
Agendas shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 
Special meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
d) Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter  
e) See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda   
f) Public Comment 
g) Adjournment 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call 

of the meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M on the first and third 
Monday each month, except for holidays or holiday-eves recognized by the City of Troy, 
regular or special election days, or unless canceled by resolution of the Council. Council also 
will meet on the fourth (4th) Monday of the month in the months of September, October, 
November, January, February, March, April and May.  
• It is the intention of City Council that no business be placed upon the fourth (4th) Monday of 

the month meeting unless so indicated on the Regular Agenda due to extenuating 
circumstances. The fourth (4th) Monday of the month meeting will be routinely adjourned 
without action to allow the City Council to go into a Special meeting of City Council for the 
purpose of study where no action will be taken. 

5. AGENDA 
(a) Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting.  Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets.  It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting.  Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent.  All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules.  A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 

 
(b) Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  Where a Closed 
Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 
5. A. Certificates of Recognition 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

6. B. Carryover Items 
7. C.  Public Hearings 
8. D.  Postponed Items 
9. E.  Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2. Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion 
• Council will move forward all of the “E” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

10. Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 

11. F.  Regular Business 
• Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

12. F.  Regular Business 
• Address Remaining F Items 

13. G.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
14. H.  Council Referrals 

• Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the Mayor 
or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting  

15. I.  Council Comments 
• Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular 

Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are not 
intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

16. J.  Reports 
• No Public Comment received on “J” Items at this time. 

17. K.  Study Items 
18. Public Comment  
19. L.  Closed Session 
20. Adjournment 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS 
• Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the 
Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for 
the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with 
members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by 
Council, through the Chair.  

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings of 
City Council. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

9. MINUTES 
a. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The minutes 

will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
 
b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  
Where a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion and 
shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. Reconsideration of 
any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted motion and shall 
require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided that new 
information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings.  The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated meeting 
Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
• The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and 
have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall 
be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. 
Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 9 “E”.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or Committees 
as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall submit such name, along with a brief summary of 
background and personal data as to nominee's qualifications, except that such a resume 
shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary.  Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of voting. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All nominations are subject 
to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 

shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 

votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 

the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership 
is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 

them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community 

on Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November.  

 
2. SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the 
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 

Adopted: 

 

04-18-05 11-14-05 

 
 
 

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that 
if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate 
department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still 
not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not more 

than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair. 
• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 

members. 
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 

speak on one topic through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council 
members elect. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically appear 
on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th Edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby 
adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, 
and the City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid the 
Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences 

sponsored by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject 
fiscal year. The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of 
town travel to specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will 
submit expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 04-18-05 11-14-05 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed to 
supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that may 
have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 

26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 



DATE:  November 1, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information for CDBG Agenda Items 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
On the November 14, 2005 agenda the City of Troy has 3 separate Community 
Development Block Grant Items. These requests cover three separate CDBG 
program years. 
 
We are required by Oakland County Home Improvement Division and HUD to 
provide a separate public hearing for each reprogramming request and budget 
application. We must also provide a copy of the public hearing advertisement, a 
copy of our certified council minutes and a copy of our governing body resolution.  
 
Funds must remain in the program year in which they were allocated and are 
subject to current federal CDBG program regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 
 
DATE:  November 1, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item -Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Year    

2002 Project Description Amendment 
 
 

Summary: 
 
Since the time of the public hearing announcement on October 24, 2005, 
Oakland County Community and Home Improvement Division has requested the 
City of Troy to reallocate our program year 2002 appropriation balance of 
$11,309.85 to the Flood Drain Improvements Account.  
 
Oakland County is requesting that City Council reprogram and expend our CDBG 
program year 2002 appropriation balance of $11,309.85 on Flood Drain 
Improvements.  
 
 
Existing (From): 
ACCOUNT #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
3616   Special Assessment   $11,309.85 
 
Proposed (To) 
ACCOUNT #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
2696   Flood Drain Improvements  $11,309.85 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 



 
 
DATE:  November 1, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Request to Re-program and Waive Recapture 

CDBG 2003 Funds 
 

   We are respectfully requesting approval to add Water Sewer Improvements for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 to our list of CDBG projects 
for 2003 and re-program year 2003 funds as detailed below: 
 
Existing (From): 
Account #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
803229-2696  Flood Drain Improvements  $ 55,637.70 
 
Proposed (To) 
Account #  ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 
803229-3824      Water Sewer Improvements  $55,637.70 
 
 
In addition the Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County 
has advised us, as a standard practice, to submit a waiver request to protect 
2003 funds from recapture for one additional year. Absent a waiver all 
unobligated 2003 funds would be recaptured December 31, 2005. 
Therefore we request to waive recapture of 2003 CDBG funds as follows: 
 
Account #  Project Name   Amount 
803229-3824      Water Sewer Improvements $55,637.70 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 
 
DATE:  November 1, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Community Development Block Grant 2006 

Application 
 
We are respectfully requesting that the proposed Community Development Block 
Grant Application be approved for program year 2006-2007. 
The county has advised us to use $166,316.00 as our planning estimate for this 
program year. We currently have no waiting list for the home chore programs. All 
qualified persons who have requested to be put on the lawn maintenance and 
snow and ice control programs are being serviced. 
  
The following projects are being recommended for the 2006 CDBG program: 
 
 Home Chore Program  $ 70,000.00 
 Administration   $   2,500.00 
 Water Sewer Improvements 
 Charnwood Subdivision Area 
                      Phase #1,Section 6             $  93,816.00 
      ____________ 
 TOTAL:    $166,316.00 
 
The program year 2006 CDBG application is due to the County by  
December 2, 2005. A Council resolution will be needed to approve the proposed 
projects for the grant application and subrecipient agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator  

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



























November 10, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate & Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA–201) – Article 28.30.00 Commercial Indoor 
Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management and the Planning Commission developed language for this ZOTA.  
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 12, 2005 and recommended 
approval of Version “A”, which includes performance theaters.  After the Planning 
Commission recommendation, further discussions raised concerns of the 
appropriateness of performance theaters in M-1 Zoning District.  No one envisioned 
that performance theaters would be included in the commercial indoor recreation 
definition.  This inclusion had simply been missed in earlier reviews of the 
amendments.  Based upon the intent of the indoor commercial recreation in the M-1 
district ZOTA, City Management recommends approval Version ”B”, which excludes 
performance theaters and permits dance and performance studios.  If City Council 
desires to clarify this intent with the Planning Commission, resolution “C” was prepared 
that will refer the ZOTA back to the Planning Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Link School of the Arts (1077 Rankin) submitted a Zoning Ordinance text 
amendment application to permit dance schools in the M-1 district.  The Planning 
Commission determined that arts and dance schools should be included in a category 
known as indoor commercial recreation, and this category should be considered as a 
use permitted by Special Use Approval in M-1.   
 
Commercial Indoor Recreation Facilities are appropriate uses in the M-1 Light 
Industrial District for a number of reasons:  

 
1. These uses are compatible with uses presently permitted in the M-1 district;  
2. The text amendment will be consistent with abutting communities, which 

generally permit similar uses in their industrial districts;  
3. The amendment will encourage the re-use of buildings and properties in the M-

1 District; and  
4. There are a significant number of vacant, relatively large, high-ceilinged 

buildings that would be appropriate for these types of uses.   

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



The definition of “Indoor Commercial Recreation Facility” considered at the Planning 
Commission Public Hearing included the uses dance studios and performance 
theaters.  It was the intent to permit dance and performance studios, but not the intent 
to permit performance theaters, such as Freedom Hill located in the City of Sterling 
Heights.  This potential situation was identified by Richard Carlisle, the City’s Planning 
Consultant, following the Planning Commission Public Hearing.  Therefore, three 
resolutions are prepared for City Councils consideration.   Version “A” is the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation which includes performance theaters.  Version “B” is 
City Management’s recommendation, which excludes performance theaters but still 
includes dance and performance studios.  Version “C” refers ZOTA 201 to the 
Planning Commission to consider the removal of performance theaters from ZOTA 
201. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 201, City Council Public Hearing Draft Version “A” 
2. ZOTA 201, City Council Public Hearing Draft Version “B” 
3. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\CC Public Hearing Memo 11 14 05.doc 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT VERSION “A” 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a new 
section 04.20.73, which defines Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities, to read 
as follows: 
 
04.20.73 INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION FACILITY:  An enterprise 

conducted entirely within a building, which receives a fee in return for 
the provision of some recreational activity or facility.  Such activities 
and facilities include racquetball, tennis courts, gymnasiums, 
swimming pools, skating rinks, dance studios, performance theaters, 
skateboard parks, climbing facilities, miniature golf courses, indoor 
driving ranges, batting cages, firing ranges, basketball courts, soccer 
fields and similar activities or facilities.  Such facilities may provide 
ancillary accessory uses such as pro shops or snack bars.  

 
04.20.734 JUNK YARDS: an open area where waste, used or secondhand 

materials are bought and sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, 
disassembled, or handled including, but not limited to; scrap iron and 
other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles.  A "junk yard" 
includes automobile wrecking yards and includes any area of more 
than two hundred (200) square feet for storage, keeping or 
abandonment of junk but does not include uses established entirely 
within enclosed buildings. 

 
Section 3 – Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new Section 28.30.09 which permits Indoor Commercial Recreational Facilities 
as Special Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  



28.30.09 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on 

the Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 



 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\ZOTA 201 CC Public Hearing Draft Version 
A 10 10 05.doc 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT VERSION “B” 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a new 
section 04.20.73, which defines Indoor Commercial Recreation Facilities, to read 
as follows: 
 
04.20.73 INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION FACILITY:  An enterprise 

conducted entirely within a building, which receives a fee in return for 
the provision of some recreational activity or facility.  Such activities 
and facilities include racquetball, tennis courts, gymnasiums, 
swimming pools, skating rinks, dance and performance studios, 
skateboard parks, climbing facilities, miniature golf courses, indoor 
driving ranges, batting cages, firing ranges, basketball courts, soccer 
fields and similar activities or facilities.  Such facilities may provide 
ancillary accessory uses such as pro shops or snack bars.  

 
04.20.734 JUNK YARDS: an open area where waste, used or secondhand 

materials are bought and sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, 
disassembled, or handled including, but not limited to; scrap iron and 
other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles.  A "junk yard" 
includes automobile wrecking yards and includes any area of more 
than two hundred (200) square feet for storage, keeping or 
abandonment of junk but does not include uses established entirely 
within enclosed buildings. 

 
Section 3 – Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new Section 28.30.09 which permits Indoor Commercial Recreational Facilities 
as Special Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  



28.30.09 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on 

the Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 



 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 201 Trade_Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1\ZOTA 201 CC Public Hearing Draft Version 
B 10 10 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – 
Article 28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light 
Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to arts and dance schools in the light industrial zoning 
districts.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management recommends approval of 
ZOTA 201 as printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 24, 2005.   
 
There was a brief discussion relating to commercial recreation in the RC zoning 
districts.  It was determined to discuss this at a future study meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-121 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to indoor commercial recreation facilities in 
the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, and related additional definitions, be 
amended as printed on the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 24, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:34 PM 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Broomfield  
 
Resolution #2005-10-487 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Broomfield’s absence the Regular City Council meeting of 
October 24, 2005 is EXCUSED due to illness. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield   
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:12 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:23 PM. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown District of the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA)  

 
Resolution #2005-10-488 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
  E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS that the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) move forward as the district boundaries are currently drawn. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Stine, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Continue the Public Hearing at a Future Date 
 
Resolution #2005-10-489 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that the public hearing for the 
Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown District of the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) be CONTINUED at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, November 28, 2005. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Continue the Public Hearing at a Future Date 
 
Resolution #2005-10-490 
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that the public hearing for the 
Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown District of the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) be CONTINUED at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, February 27, 2006. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: Schilling  
Absent: Broomfield 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major 

Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Pending Resolution 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
  
RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Option A, be ADOPTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission, with the caveat that 
City Staff is DIRECTED to provide a report in six months on other areas where this retail use 
might be expanded and City Staff is further DIRECTED to provide a report by the end of this 
year listing the functional relationship as defined by the approvals from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Resolution to Amend by Substitution Amendment  B – City Management Version 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That the pending Resolution to adopt Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, Option A be STRICKEN in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING, “RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, Version B, be ADOPTED, as recommended by City 
Management SUBJECT to a 6-month sunset period.” 
 
Resolution to Amend Substitution Amendment B – City Management Version 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution to amend by substitution Amendment B – City 
Management Version be AMENDED by STRIKING “SUBJECT to a 6-month sunset period.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Substitution Amendment B – City Management Version 
 
Resolution  #2005-10-491 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution to amend by substitution Amendment B – City 
Management Version be AMENDED by INSERTING “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That 
Section 28.30.09 be AMENDED by INSERTING AFTER C., “For application B. ii above,” 
BEFORE “the industrial and retail uses shall have common ownership.” and by INSERTING 
AFTER D., “For application B. ii above,” BEFORE “the building shall front on a major 
thoroughfare as classified on the City of Troy Transportation Plan.” 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Lambert  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote Resolution to Amend Substitution Amendment B – City Management Version 
 
Resolution #2005-10-492 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution to amend by substitution Amendment B – City 
Management Version be AMENDED by STRIKING “SUBJECT to a 6-month sunset period.” 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert   
No: Beltramini   
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution Amendment B – City Management Version 
as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-10-493 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That the pending Resolution to adopt Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, Option A be STRICKEN in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING, “RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, Version B, be ADOPTED, as recommended by City 
Management.” 
 
Yes: Schilling, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine    
No: Beltramini   
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-10-494 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Version B, be ADOPTED, as recommended by City Management; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Section 28.30.09 be AMENDED BY INSERTING AFTER 
C., “For application B. ii above,” BEFORE “the industrial and retail uses shall have common 
ownership.” and by INSERTING AFTER D., “For application B. ii above,” BEFORE “the building 
shall front on a major thoroughfare as classified on the City of Troy Transportation Plan. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling     
No: Beltramini   
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  City Council Appointments:  Ethnic 

Issues Advisory Board 
  
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-10-495 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) –  (4) 3 year terms & (5) 2 year terms 
 
Reuben T. Ellis Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-10-496 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-10-496-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special-Joint DDA Meeting be APPROVED as 
corrected and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2005 be APPROVED 
as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  No Appointments 
Scheduled  

 
F-2 Marshall Field’s Fireworks Permit Application  
 
Resolution #2005-10-497 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Zambelli Fireworks, Inc., of New Castle, 
PA, for the display of fireworks at the Oakland Mall on November 11, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 
 
F-3 Resolution in Support of a Constitutional Amendment to Narrowly and Clearly 

Define the Term "Public Use"  
 
Resolution #2005-10-498 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The right of an individual to own property without the threat that his/her 
government will take their property and give it to a private entity for a non-public use is 
fundamental to democracy in the United States; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, Eminent domain is the power of a government to take private property for public 
use; the 5th Amendment of the US Constitution and articles in many state constitutions allow 
this practice provided that fair compensation is made; and 
 
WHEREAS, Historically eminent domain has been used for public uses such as roads, parks, 
schools and other governmental functions; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1954, the United States Supreme Court began to erode individual property rights 
when it determined in Berman vs. Parker that government’s power of eminent domain could be 
used to seize property in order to remove “blighted” areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, The definition of a “blighted” area has become so expansive that in 1981 the 
Michigan Supreme Court allowed the City of Detroit to condemn a stable neighborhood called 
Poletown to make way for a General Motors plant; and  
 
WHEREAS, In 2004, the Michigan Supreme Court overturned the “Poletown” decision when it 
ruled on The County of Wayne v. Hathcock et al, and noted that:  “…if one’s ownership of 
private property is forever subject to the government’s determination that another private party 
would put one’s land to better use, then the ownership of real property is perpetually threatened 
by the expansion plans of any large discount retailer, “megastore”, or the like.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Supreme Court also noted in 2004 that:  “…we must overrule 
Poletown in order to vindicate our Constitution, protect the people’s property rights, and 
preserve the legitimacy of the judicial branch as the expositor – not creator – of fundamental 
law.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, On June 23, 2005, the United States Supreme Court, in a 5-4 decision, ruled in the 
case, Kelo vs. City of New London, Connecticut, that government may use eminent domain for 
the benefit of developers; and  
 
WHEREAS, United States Supreme Court Justice Sandra Day O’Connor said in her dissent to 
the Kelo decision:  “All private property is now vulnerable to being taken and transferred to 
another private owner, so long as it might be upgraded. The specter of condemnation hangs 
over all property.  Nothing is to prevent (local governments) from replacing any Motel 6 with a 
Ritz-Carlton, any home with a shopping mall, or any farm with a factory.”; and  
 
WHEREAS, Even though the Michigan Supreme Court, through a strict constitutional 
interpretation, reversed the Poletown decision and placed Michigan property owners in a more 
secure position for the immediate future than property owners in many other states, a future 
Michigan Supreme Court could reverse the current ruling, once again allowing the 
condemnation of private property for private developers where no public use is involved; and 
 
WHEREAS, During the 23 years the Poletown decision was the law of the land in the State of 
Michigan, many of Michigan’s residential and small business property owners were let down by 
their government as it, with little thought or care for their long term interests, took their property 
and gave it to private developers for the sole purpose of increasing the government’s tax base; 
and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, United States Supreme Court Justice John Paul Stevens, in writing for the majority 
on the Kelo decision, pointed out that the Constitution does not preclude individual states “from 
placing further restrictions (on) the exercise of the taking power”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council URGES the Michigan 
Legislature to place an amendment to the State of Michigan Constitution on the ballot for the 
sole purpose of narrowly and clearly defining “public use” in a manner that is consistent with the 
2004 Michigan Supreme Court ruling (County of Wayne vs. Hathcock et al) on eminent domain 
that overturned the 1981 Poletown decision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council COMMENDS the Michigan Supreme 
Court for their just and bold ruling in 2004 (County of Wayne vs. Hathcock et al) that overturned 
the Poletown decision; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That copies of this resolution BE FORWARDED to the Michigan 
Supreme Court, Governor Jennifer Granholm, the Oakland County legislative contingent in 
Lansing, and the Michigan Association of Counties. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-10-499 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield  
 
Vote on Resolution to Refer Issue to Charter Revision Committee 
 
Resolution #2005-10-500 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council REFERS Resolution in Support of a Constitutional Amendment 
to Narrowly and Clearly Define the Term "Public Use” to the Charter Revision Committee for 
placement on the agenda of their next regular meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-10-501 
Moved by Howrylak     
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2005-10-502 
Moved by Howrylak      
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, November 
14, 2005 at 7:10 pm in the City Council Chamber for the purpose of recognizing Council 
Member David Eisenbacher’s service to the community. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 24, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
  

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Report on Available Property for Sale at 1660 Square Lake Road 

Noted and Filed 
 
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted  

  
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested 

ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 



October 21, 2005  
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Bid Award – 

Low Bidders   – Traffic Control Signs and Posts 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened October 19, 2005, for one (1) year requirements of 
Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an option to renew for one (1) year.  After 
reviewing the bid proposals, City management recommends awarding contracts 
to the lowest bidders at an estimated total cost of $27,444.00 per year, at unit 
prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  These signs and posts are 
required for new installations, as well as for repair and replacement.  Material to 
be ordered throughout the year as needed. 
 
SUMMARY 
VULCAN SIGNS – FOLEY, AL 
 
I ESTIMATED       UNIT 
ITEM       QTY  DESCRIPTION   PRICE  
PROPOSAL A:  Complete signs, single face, 3M High Intensity on Aluminum 
1.  50   36” Yield    $ 16.95 
2.  50   30” Stop    $ 24.17 
3.  10   36” Stop    $ 34.77 
 
PROPOSAL B:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- One Color EG on Aluminum 
1. 20   12”x36”    $   8.97 
2. 30   18”x18”    $   6.75 
3. 50   24”x30””    $ 14.95 
4. 50   30”x30”    $ 18.69 
5. 10   36”x36”    $ 26.91 
6. 10   48”48”     $ 47.84 
 
PROPOSALC:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- Two Color EG on Aluminum 
2. 50   12”x18”    $   5.08 
 
 
 

1 of 3 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



October 21, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Traffic Control Signs & Posts 
Page 2 of 3 
 
SUMMARY – continued 
 
VULCAN SIGNS – FOLEY, AL 
PROPOSAL E:  Complete signs, Double Faced, Two Sided on White – One Color 
1. 40   9”x30” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $ 15.10 
2. 40   9”x36” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $ 18.16 
3. 40   9”x42” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $ 21.19 
4. 40   6”x24” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $    8.35 
5. 100   6”x30” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $    9.36 
6. 100   6”x36” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $ 11.23 
7. 50   6”x42” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $ 13.09 
 
PROPOSAL F:  Set up fees for any listed size to fabricate a non-standard sign. 
         Call for pricing. 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $10,694.60 
 
OSBURN ASSOCIATES, INC. – LOGAN, OH 
PROPOSAL B:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- One Color EG on Aluminum 
7. 50   12”X30” Hi Int w/Round Corners $   7.73 
8.   100   12”X36” Hi Int w/Round Corners $   9.27 
9. 20   12”X42” Hi Int w/Round Corners $ 10.82 
10. 100   12”X48” Hi Int w/Round Corners $ 12.36 
 
PROPOSALC:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- Two Color EG on Aluminum 
1. 50   12”x12” 2-Color   $   3.44 
 
PROPOSAL F:  Set up fees for any listed size to fabricate a non-standard sign.  
         No Charge 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $2,937.90 
 
ROCAL, INC – FRANKFORT, OH 
PROPOSAL D:  3M Standard Pre-Printed Traffic Sign Faces. 
1. 500   12”x12” No Parking Symbol $   1.22 
    R8-3A 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $610.00 
 
 



October 21, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Traffic Control Signs & Posts 
Page 3 of 3 
 
UNISTRUT DETROIT SERVICE CO. – WAYNE, MI 
PROPOSAL G:  Square Tubular Sign Posts – Perforated – Galvanized Steel – 
FHWA Approved 
1. 100   12 FT x 1-3/4” – 14 gauge  $ 17.28 
2. 100     9 FT x 1-1/2” – 14 gauge  $ 13.20 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $3,048.00 
 

ALLIED MUNICIPAL SUPPLY – TAYLORVILLE, IL 
PROPOSAL G:  Square Tubular Sign Posts – Perforated – Galvanized Steel – 
FHWA Approved 
3. 100   3 FT x 2” Base – 12 gauge  $   8.38 
4.  100   3 FT x1 ¾” Base – 12 gauge $   7.14 
 
 
PROPOSAL H:  Round Galvanized Steel Post, 2” nominal size, 2-1/8” ID, 2-3/8” 
OD, .125 wall thickness, 3 lbs per lineal foot 
1. 100   12 FT Round Steel Post  $ 20.31  
    Galvanized 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $3,583.00 
 
DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC. – CHARLOTTE, MI 
PROPOSAL I:  U-Channel Sign Posts 
1. 50   12 FT – 3lb Galvanized Post  $ 25.27 
2. 100   12 FT – 3lb Green Post  $ 19.89 
3. 300   10 FT – 2lb Green Post  $ 11.06 
 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $6,570.50 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Streets Department 2005-2006 Operating Budget. 
 
 
101 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
    9 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: VULCAN OSBURN ROCAL ALLIED

SIGNS ASSOCIATES INC MUNICIPAL

INC SUPPLY

ITEM EST QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM NO BID

1. 50 36" YIELD 16.95$          19.80$        19.98$          
2. 50 30" STOP 24.17$          25.25$        27.09$          
3. 10 36" STOP 34.77$          36.36$       39.01$         

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- 2,403.70$     -$            -$            

PROPOSAL B: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR - SIGN NO BID
1. 20 12" X 36" One Color 8.97$            9.27$          10.80$          
2. 30 18" X 18" One Color 6.75$            6.95$          8.10$           
3. 50 24" X 30" One Color 14.95$          15.45$        18.00$          
4. 50 30" X 30" One Color 18.69$          19.31$        22.50$          
5. 10 36" X 36" One Color 26.91$          27.81$        32.40$          
6. 10 48" X 48" One Color 47.84$          49.44$        57.60$          
7. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 10.13$           7.73$          11.10$          
8. 100 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 12.15$           9.27$          13.32$          
9. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 14.18$           10.82$       15.54$          
10. 100 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 16.20$           12.36$       17.76$          

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 2,811.40$     2,765.90$   -$            

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS-SIGN
1. 50 12" X 12" Two Color 3.70$             3.44$          3.60$           
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 5.08$            5.16$          5.40$           

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 254.00$        172.00$      -$            NO BID

PROPOSAL D: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES NO BID
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A *        $1.42 1.61$          1.22$          

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              -$            610.00$        

PROPOSAL E: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE - SIGN NO MESSAGE NO BID
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 15.10$          16.50$        16.80$          
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 18.16$          19.80$        19.96$          
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 21.19$          23.10$        23.14$          
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White 8.35$            13.20$        9.96$           
5. 100 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 9.36$            16.50$        12.43$          
6. 100 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 11.23$          19.80$        14.98$          
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 13.09$          23.10$        17.43$          

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 5,225.50$     -$            -$            

PROPOSAL F: SET UP FEES CALL FOR PRICING NONE CALL FOR PRICING BLANK

PROPOSAL G: SQUARE TUBULAR SIGN POSTS - PERFORATED - GALVANIZED STEEL - FHWA APPROVED
1. 100 12 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge NO BID NO BID NO BID 18.56$        
2. 100   9 Ft X 1 1/2" - 14 Gauge NO BID NO BID NO BID 13.46$        
3. 100   3 Ft X 2 " Base - 12 Gauge NO BID NO BID NO BID 8.38$         
4. 100   3 Ft X 1 3/4 " Base - 12 Gauge NO BID NO BID NO BID 7.14$         

PROPOSAL G:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 1,552.00$   



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: VULCAN OSBURN ROCAL ALLIED

SIGNS ASSOCIATES INC MUNICIPAL

INC SUPPLY

PROPOSAL H: ROUND GALVANIZED STEEL POST, 2" NOMINAL SIZE .125 WALL THICKNESS
1. 100 12 FT Galvanized steel round post NO BID NO BID NO BID 20.31$       

PROPOSAL H:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 2,031.00$   

PROPOSAL I: U-CHANNEL SIGN POSTS ONE SHIPMENT ONLY

1. 50 12 FT - 3lbs Silver Galvanized Steel 27.46$           NO BID 26.56$          26.08
2. 100 12 FT - 3lbs Green Painted Steel 22.69$           NO BID 22.38$          23.04
3. 300 10 FT - 2lbs Green Painted Steel 12.60$           NO BID 12.95$          12.59

PROPOSAL I:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              -$            -$           

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 10,694.60$   2,937.90$   610.00$        3,583.00$   
DELIVERY: - WAIVED - 

Minimum Shipment $50.00 NONE 1,000$          $1,000
# of Days 3-5 DAYS STD; 30 DAYS 45-60 DAYS 30-60 DAYS 30-45 ARO

NON STANDARD

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: M-F / 7-4 8-5PM EST 8-4:30 7-4PM
24 Hr Emergency # N/A (800)523-8917 BLANK BLANK

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 N30

WARRANTY: STD 3M STD 3M STD N/A
3-5 DAYS STOCK

DELIVERY: 30 DAYS NON-STANDARD 45-60 DAYS 30-60 DAYS ARO 30-45 ARO

EXCEPTIONS: AS OF 11/1/05, HEAT COMPLETE ENGR BLANK BLANK
ACTIVATED MAT'L GRADE SIGNS ARE

IS NO LONGER PRESSURE 

AVAILABLE SENSITIVE NOT HEAT

ACTIVATED

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES YES YES YES

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER
  Emily Frontera
  Cheryl Stewart
  Thomas Rosewarne
  Linda Bockstanz

G:\ITB-COT 05-47 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: DORNBOS UNISTRUT SUBCON CARRIER &

SIGN & INTERN'L CABLE INC

SAFETY INC

ITEM EST QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM NO BID

1. 50 36" YIELD 28.00$           NO BID 20.54$          
2. 50 30" STOP 30.00$           NO BID 24.96$          
3. 10 36" STOP 40.00$          NO BID 36.40$         

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- -$              -$            

PROPOSAL B: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR - SIGN NO BID
1. 20 12" X 36" One Color 13.00$           NO BID 12.32$          
2. 30 18" X 18" One Color 9.50$             9.24$           
3. 50 24" X 30" One Color 21.00$           20.54$          
4. 50 30" X 30" One Color 26.00$           25.67$          
5. 10 36" X 36" One Color 37.50$           36.97$          
6. 10 48" X 48" One Color 66.25$           65.13$          
7. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 14.00$           10.27$          
8. 100 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 16.50$           12.32$          
9. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 19.00$           14.37$          
10. 100 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 22.00$           NO BID 16.43$          

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              -$            

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS-SIGN
1. 50 12" X 12" Two Color 4.15$             NO BID 4.37$           NO BID
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 6.25$             NO BID 27.47$          NO BID

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              -$            

PROPOSAL D: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES NO BID
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 2.50$            NO BID 4.37$          

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 1,250.00$     2,185.00$     
PROPOSAL E: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE - SIGN NO BID

1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded Hight Intensity White 18.65$           NO BID 19.76$          
2. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 22.32$           23.92$          
3. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 26.25$           27.04$          
4. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White 10.49$           10.92$          
5. 100 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White 13.15$           14.87$          
6. 100 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White 16.00$           20.02$          
7. 50 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White 19.25$           23.92$          

6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White
PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              -$            

PROPOSAL F: SET UP FEES $10.00 / SETUP BLANK NO CHARGE NO BID

PROPOSAL G: SQUARE TUBULAR SIGN POSTS - PERFORATED - GALVANIZED STEEL - FHWA APPROVED
1. 100 12 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge NO BID 17.28$       NO BID 26.10$        

($144.00CF/FT)
2. 100   9 Ft X 1 1/2" - 14 Gauge NO BID 13.20$       NO BID 26.72$        

($132.00CF/FT)
3. 100   3 Ft X 2 " Base - 12 Gauge NO BID 8.76$          NO BID 10.65$        
4. 100   3 Ft X 1 3/4 " Base - 12 Gauge NO BID 7.58$          NO BID 9.90$          



PROPOSAL G:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 3,048.00$   

CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: DORNBOS UNISTRUT SUBCON CARRIER

SIGN & DETROIT INTERN'L & GABLE INC

SAFETY SERVICE CO

PROPOSAL H: ROUND GALVANIZED STEEL POST, 2" NOMINAL SIZE .125 WALL THICKNESS
1. 100 12 FT Galvanized steel round post 40.00$          NO BID NO BID NO BID

PROPOSAL H:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL I: U-CHANNEL SIGN POSTS
1. 50 12 FT - 3lbs Silver Galvanized Steel 25.27$          NO BID NO BID NO BID
2. 100 12 FT - 3lbs Green Painted Steel 19.89$          NO BID NO BID NO BID
3. 300 10 FT - 2lbs Green Painted Steel 11.06$          NO BID NO BID NO BID

PROPOSAL I:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 6,570.50$     

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 6,570.50$     3,048.00$   N/A N/A
DELIVERY:

Minimum Shipment NONE MINIMUM NONE $1,000
# of Days 14-30 10 DAYS 30 DAYS 10 DAYS

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 7-5PM 8 HOURS 8-5PM  ET M-F  8-4PM
24 Hr Emergency # (517)543-4001 (734)788-9452 (616)304-2208 (248)477-8700

TERMS: NET 30 BLANK NET 30 0

WARRANTY: 3M BLANK STD 3M ONE YEAR

DELIVERY: 14-30 DAYS BLANK 30 DAYS 10 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: ATTACHED TO BID NONE ONE LOT BLANK
PRICING

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES YES NO YES

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

G:\ITB-COT 05-47 Traffic Control Signs & Posts



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: MICHIGAN

STATE

INDUSTRIES

ITEM EST QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM

1. 50 36" YIELD 87.75$           
2. 50 30" STOP 87.75$           
3. 10 36" STOP 87.75$          

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS --

PROPOSAL B: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR - SIGN
1. 20 12" X 36" One Color 35.25$           
2. 30 18" X 18" One Color 47.00$           
3. 50 24" X 30" One Color 70.50$           
4. 50 30" X 30" One Color 105.75$         
5. 10 36" X 36" One Color 105.75$         
6. 10 48" X 48" One Color 188.80$         
7. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 29.25$           
8. 100 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 29.25$           
9. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 39.00$           
10. 100 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 39.00$           

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS-SIGN
1. 50 12" X 12" Two Color 11.75$           
2. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 23.50$           

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL D: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 6.15$            

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL E: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE - SIGN N/A
1. 40 9" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White
2. 40 9" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White
3. 40 9" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White
4. 40 6" X 24" Extruded High Intensity White
5. 100 6" X 30" Extruded High Intensity White
6. 100 6" X 36" Extruded High Intensity White
7. 50 6" X 42" Extruded High Intensity White

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL F: SET UP FEES N/A

PROPOSAL G: SQUARE TUBULAR SIGN POSTS - PERFORATED - GALVANIZED STEEL - FHWA APPROVED
1. 100 12 Ft X 1 3/4" - 14 Gauge N/A
2. 100   9 Ft X 1 1/2" - 14 Gauge
3. 100   3 Ft X 2 " Base - 12 Gauge
4. 100   3 Ft X 1 3/4 " Base - 12 Gauge

PROPOSAL G:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--



CITY OF TROY    ITB-COT 05-47
Opening Date -- 10/19/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/24/05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS & POSTS

VENDOR NAME: MICHIGAN

STATE

INDUSTRIES

PROPOSAL H: ROUND GALVANIZED STEEL POST, 2" NOMINAL SIZE .125 WALL THICKNESS
1. 100 12 FT Galvanized steel round post N/A

PROPOSAL H:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

PROPOSAL I: U-CHANNEL SIGN POSTS N/A
1. 50 12 FT - 3lbs Silver Galvanized Steel
2. 100 12 FT - 3lbs Green Painted Steel
3. 300 10 FT - 2lbs Green Painted Steel

PROPOSAL I:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS--

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A
DELIVERY:

Minimum Shipment BLANK
# of Days 30-45

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 8-5PM
24 Hr Emergency # (517)780-6217

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: BLANK

DELIVERY: 30-45 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES

PROPOSAL - One Year Requirements of Traffic Control Signs and Posts with an Option to Renew for One
Additional Year

____________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 05-47 Traffic Control Signs & Posts











November 8, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale 

of Surplus Parcels 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On July 11, 2005, City Council authorized the Real Estate and Development Department in conjunction 
with the Purchasing Department to advertise by sealed bid the sale of ten (10) surplus City owned, real 
estate parcels. CC Resolution # 2005-07-334.  
 
City management recommends awarding the sale of surplus parcels for a total of $562,862.00 to the 
highest qualified bidders as outlined in the attached bid tabulation(s), which opened October 26, 2005, 
and are summarized below. 
 
Parcel # Sidwell #    Minimum Bid     High Bid Name of Bidder 
1 20-01-476-032 $340,000 $411,000 Bassam Askar of  

Troy 
21 20-26-433-019,020 $  70,000 $  71,250 Bostick Real Estate  

LLC of Warren 
24 20-27-155-013 $  60,000 $  66,112 Gary Abitheira of  

Troy 
27 20-34-201-009 $  13,000 $  14,500 Rick & Renee 

Van Daal of Oakland
 
BACKGROUND AND FINDINGS 
A number of City owned real estate parcels have been identified as surplus parcels by the Real Estate and 
Development Department; 27 of these parcels (see attached map) have been appraised to establish a 
minimum sale price. 
 
Ten parcels were authorized by City Council to be advertised for sealed bids at a minimum price, with six 
being bid in October, of which, four received qualifying bids.   Two parcels, one located at Maple and 
John R and the other at Maple and Rochester did not receive any bids.   Minimum bids are set at 
$235,000.00 and $20,000.00 respectively.  Both parcels were re-bid on November 1, 2005.   
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The City reserves the right to award the bids to the highest responsible bidder(s) meeting specifications.  
Property and structures will be purchased in an “as is” condition.  Bids were received from September 26, 
2005 to October 26, 2005, at which time they were publicly opened at 10:00a.m.  
 
SUMMARY 
City Council authorized the sealed bid sale of ten surplus parcels.  Signage, newspaper ads, Internet (city 
web page), the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN), direct mail, and City cable were used 
to solicit bids. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds from these sales will be disbursed to the Sale of Land – Capital Revenue Account #4010.4673.010  
 
Between 103 and 150 Bidders reviewed bid documents via the MITN System 
244 Notices Mailed to Bidders registered in JD Edwards 
  26 Potential Bidders Walked-In 
   6 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
MEMOS TO MAYOR & CC/Surplus Parcels Bid Award 06-30-05 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b







SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE

LAKE

BE
A

C
H

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD
PA

RK
W

AY

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

NORTHFIELD PARKWAY

SQUARE  LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

BE
A

C
H

LONG LAKE

AD
A

M
S

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D
PA

R
K

W
A

Y

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD

WATTLES

KIRTS

 

KIRTS

MAPLE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

MAPLE

ELMWOODLI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

ST
E

P
H

E
N

S
O

N
H

W
Y

.

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

MEIJER
INDUSTRIAL  ROW

TROY OAKLAND
AIRPORT

COMMUNITY
CENTER

LIBRARY

CITY
 HALL

CITY OF TROY
POST OFFICE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R
R

O
C

H
ES

TE
R

C
O

U
R

T

DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS
YARD

TROY
MUSEUM

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD.

SOUTH  BLVD.

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

LAKELONG

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

SOUTH BLVD.

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

SQUARE LAKE
SQUARE LAKE

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

MAPLE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

WATTLES
WATTLES

MAPLE

MAPLE

STEPHENSO
N

PA
R

W
A

Y
K

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

COURT
BUILDING



NOTE:  THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THIS PROGRAM
              HAS BEEN COMPILED FROM RECORDED DEEDS, PLATS, 
             TAX MAPS, SURVEYS, AND OTHER PUBLIC RECORDS 
              AND DATA.  IT IS NOT A LEGALLY RECORDED MAP OR
             SURVEY.  USERS OF THIS DATA ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED
             THAT THE SOURCE INFORMATION REPRESENTED
             SHOULD BY CONSULTED FOR VERIFICATION.

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000500

Feet

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 05-17-04

6

8

7

18 19

Legend
27 SURPLUS PARCELS

SAFETY PATH PLAN

CITY OF TROY PARKS & FUTURE PARKS

3

2

1
4

5

9

10

11 13
12

14
15

16
17

21

20

23

22
27

26

24
25



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-41
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/7/05 MAPLE & JOHN R

VENDOR NAME:

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Parcel ID #20-26-483-053 PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at Maple & John R I offer:
Minimum Bid $235,000.00

Check #
Size: 82ft x 213ft (10% of offer)

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached

TERMS:

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No

NOTE:  PROPERTY TO BE RE-BID - NOVEMBER 1, 2005
ATTEST:

Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-41 - Property Sale- Maple & John R

NO BIDS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-43
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/7/05 MAPLE & ROCHESTER

VENDOR NAME:

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Parcel ID #20-34-201-003 PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at Maple & Rochester I offer:
Minimum Bid $20,000.00

Check #
Size:  75ft x 82.85ft (10% of offer)

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached

TERMS:

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No

NOTE:  PROPERTY TO BE RE-BID - NOVEMBER 1, 2005
ATTEST:

Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-43 - Property Sale- Maple & Rochester

NO BIDS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-44
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 6
Date Prepared --  11/7/05 MAPLE & W OF ROCHESTER

VENDOR NAME: * RICK & RENEE
VAN DAAL

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Parcel ID #20-34-201-009 PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at Maple & West of Rochester I offer: 14,500.00$       
Minimum Bid $13,000.00

Check # 632226254
Size:  88ft x 112.5ft x 88ft x 123ft (10% of offer) 1,450.00$          

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached YES

TERMS: AS STATED

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N haleystoneinc@aol.com

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No YES

* DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
ATTEST:

Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-44 - Property Sale- Maple & West of Rochester



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-42
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/7/05 HICKORY & PLUM

VENDOR NAME: * GARY ABITHEIRA

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Tax ID #20-27-155-013 PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at Hickory & Plum I offer: 66,112.00$           
Minimum Bid $60,000.00

Check # 921295715-4
Size:  50ft X 147.46ft (10% of offer) 6,611.20$              

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached YES

TERMS: AS STATED

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No YES

* DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
ATTEST:

Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-42 - Property Sale- Hickory & Plum



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-40
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/7/05 JOHN R & LARCHWOOD

VENDOR NAME: * BOSTICK 
REAL ESTATE LLC

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Tax ID #20-26-433-019 & 020 PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at John R & Larchwood I offer: 71,250.00$        
Minimum Bid $70,000.00

Check # 921403156-5
Size: 73ftx 255ft x 82ft x 150ft x 9ft x 105ft (10% of offer) 7,125.00$           

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached YES

TERMS: AS STATED

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No YES

* DENOTES SOLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-40 - Property Sale- John R & Larchwood



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-35
Opening Date -- 10-26-05 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/7/05 SQUARE LAKE & DEQUINDRE

VENDOR NAME: * BASSAM JOHN G LANCE INVESTMENT
ASKAR PAPPAS DDS GROUP LLC

REAL ESTATE SALE
DESCRIPTION Tax ID #20-01-476-032 PRICE PRICE PRICE

Property at Square Lake & Dequindre I offer: 411,000.00$           350,200.00$    345,000.00$            
Minimum Bid $340,000.00

Check # 930112174 921403225-8 930107105
Size: 137.11 ft x 215.35 ft (10% of offer) 41,100.00$              35,020.00$       34,500.00$              

SIGNATURE PAGE: Attached YES YES YES

TERMS: AS STATED AS STATED AS STATED

EMAIL ADDRESS: Y or N BassamAskar@cs.com BLANK calrdallo@yahoo.com

EXCEPTIONS: NO ATTACHED Approved plans for
TO BID small strip from

the City.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Yes or No YES YES YES

* DENOTES HIGHEST BIDDER
ATTEST:
Dennis Stephens
Cheryl Stewart
Larysa Figol
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 05-35 - Property Sale-Square Lake & Dequindre























































October 24, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Police Chief  
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant 

Approval And Authorization to Expend City Funds – Radio 
Equipment 

 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends that the Troy City Council approve the use of 
funds received from a U. S. Department of Justice, Save our School Grant and 
authorizes the purchase of radio equipment under existing Oakland County 
contract, at an estimated cost of $40,000. 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy has received a U. S. Department of Justice, Save our School 
Grant for $40,000. The grant will be used for the purchase of mobile radios to 
operate with the new Oakland County 800 MHz digital trunked radio system.  The 
equipment purchased is covered under the existing Oakland County contract with 
M/A-Com Inc. the system provider. 
 
This is a 50% federally funded project with a 50% local match.   
 
Budget 
 
Funds for this equipment are available through the Police Department Capital 
Fund, Account # 401.325.7980.055. The resolution amends the Police 
Departments budget to receive the grant funding and allows it to be expended on 
the designated items.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Sergeant Don Ostrowski – Emergency Response & Preparedness Commander 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



campbellld
Text Box
E-04d















campbellld
Text Box
E-05































 October 11, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance Administration 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Amendment #4 – Office Space Rental Agreement 
 Emerald Food Service – Café/Pro Shop Contract 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends that the contract with Emerald Food Service 
(EFS) to provide Café and Pro Shop operations in the Community Center be 
amended to include the additional use of 209 square feet of office space.  This 
space would be rented for $15 per square foot or $3135 per year.  Terms of this 
addendum to the contract are included.  
 
BACKGROUND 
A three-year contract with EFS to provide a café/pro shop at the Community 
Center was approved by City Council (Resolution #2002-01-014) on January 7, 
2002.  The contract stipulated that EFS would have the exclusive catering rights 
for meetings and events in the Community Center.  As the catering and café 
business increased, Emerald requested office space for their staff to meet with 
prospective customers to make catering arrangements when using the 
Community Center.   
 
On September 22, 2003, City Council approved (Resolution #2003-09-014) an 
office space rental agreement for 255 square feet (at $15 per square foot) in a 
space originally designated as a coat room (Exhibit A).  
 
On April 12, 2004, a new one-year contract (with an option to renew for two one 
year periods) was approved for food service at the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
and Community Center (Resolution 2004-04-186).  The contract took effect on 
April 5, 2005 with the opening of the dining room at the golf course.  Due to the 
increased business between both facilities, EFS has had to hire additional staff 
and is requesting an additional 209 square feet of office space in the Community 
Center.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 
This proposed office space (Exhibit A) was originally designated as a vending 
area for special events that use the meeting rooms.  However, vending machines 
were never established in this location and the space is unoccupied at the 
present time.  The space would be ideal for EFS because it lies directly in front of 
their existing office in the building and would improve service to our 
banquet/meeting customers.   
 
Reviewed and Approved as to Legality:   
 
______________________________________ Date: ________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Kraig Schmottlach, Community Center Facility Manager 



FOURTH AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR THE 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

CAFÉ/PRO SHOP 
 

  
 This is the Fourth Amendment/Addendum to the Agreement for the Community 

Center Café/Pro Shop, also known as Emerald Café, which was entered into by the City 

of Troy, Michigan, a Michigan municipal corporation, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

Michigan 48084, hereinafter “City”, and Emerald Food Services I, L.L.C., a Michigan 

Limited Liability Company, 1980 Greenfield, Berkley, Michigan 48072, hereafter 

“Operator”, on March 18, 2002.  Except for the additions or changes specified herein, the 

terms and conditions of the original Agreement and the Second and Third 

Amendment/Addendum remain in full force and effect. 

1.  RENT FOR ADDITIONAL SPACE. Operator shall be entitled to the use of an 

additional 209 square feet within the Community Center as shown on the attached 

Exhibit A for an additional $3,135.00 per year or $261.25 per month ($15.00 per square 

foot).  By the first (1st)  day of each month, the Operator shall pay rent for the additional 

square footage. This space is to be used only for office and for business relating to the 

operation of the Community Center and/or Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

2.  TERM.  This Fourth Amendment/Addendum shall only remain in effect for the term 

of the original Agreement or any extensions of that term.  The space shall be vacated at 

termination of the original Agreement now in effect between the City and the Operator.   

3.  EQUIPMENT AND BUILDING MODIFICATIONS.  Operator shall provide all 

necessary equipment, supplies and building modifications.  Building modifications and 

additions, including but not limited to fixtures, a door, carpet, electrical outlets and 

voice/data connections must be approved by the City in advance and become the property 



of the City at the conclusion of the Agreement.  The costs associated with these building 

modifications that are necessary to make the space a viable office shall be the 

responsibility of the Operator.  Equipment brought in must also be approved in advance 

by the City.   

4.  MAINTENANCE. Operator shall maintain the interior of the space in a clean and neat 

manner and in compliance with all City ordinances and State law.  This includes, but is 

not limited to, the removal of trash to the proper containers.   

5.  HOURS OF AVAILABILITY.  The Operator acknowledges that the rental space shall 

only be available under this Fourth Amendment/Addendum to the Agreement during the 

hours of operation of the Community Center.  Operator also waives any claim or cause of 

action regarding the non-availability of the space as set out herein or for emergency 

periods when, due to weather, electrical power outages, or acts of nature, the Community 

Center remains closed for operation. 

 

 

EMERALD FOOD SERVICES I, L.L.C.,  CITY OF TROY,   

______________________________  ___________________________ 
By:  Kim Haveraneck, President   By:  Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

  ___________________________ 
       By:  Tonni Bartholomew, Clerk 
 
 
Dated:_________________________ 
 
  





November 1, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization to Pay 2006 Membership Dues - 
  National League of Cities 
 
 
 
Attached is an invoice in the amount of $5,953.00 for 2006 membership dues to the 
National League of Cities.  If approved for payment, this invoice would be paid from 
Council’s Membership and Dues account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\11.14.05 – Authorization to Pay 2006 Dues for National League of Cities 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07





 
 
DATE:   October 28, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Request for Temporary Trailer 
   Chuck E Cheese  
   740 John R 
 

 
 

 
We have received a request from Todd Horchner, Director of Training for CEC 
Entertainment, to temporarily place an office trailer for use as a hiring office at 740 John 
R.  This is the site where a portion of the existing commercial building is being 
renovated for a new Chuck E Cheese restaurant.  The trailer currently exists on the site 
and is being used for an office for the superintendent during the construction.  The 
addition of the hiring use in the trailer, open to the public, requires additional approval 
by City Council.  Mr. Horchner’s letter indicates that they need to use the trailer from 
November 30th through December 21st of 2005. 
Chapter 47 of the City Code allows Council to approve the placement of temporary 
office trailers on commercial sites for a period up to twelve months. 
We have reviewed their request and find the proposed locations on the site to be 
acceptable.  A copy of the site plan showing the location of the trailers is enclosed for 
your reference.  Approval of the request for the temporary trailers is recommended. 
 
Attachments  

 

Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08









 
 
October 26, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Sole Source- Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the 

Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management requests approval to purchase supplies from the American Red 
Cross, the sole provider of American Red Cross lifeguard and CPR training supplies, 
for Parks and Recreation programs and classes for the Troy Family Aquatic Center 
and Troy Community Center for an estimated total cost of $18,000.00.  
 
BACKGROUND 
American Red Cross acts as a resource for all training supplies needed for staff and 
classes to the outside public. The City does not require any actual service from the 
Red Cross as our staff run the classes and programs for our facilities. 
 
The American Red Cross is the only agency that offers American Red Cross training 
supplies such as books, certifications, and training packets. These supplies will be 
used for training of Community Center, Troy Family Aquatic Center, and Parks and 
Recreation staff, as well as American Red Cross programs offered to the public.  
 
Contracts to provide comprehensive lifeguard services and supplies were originally 
established with Jeff Ellis and Associates.  However, the contract expired December 
31, 2004, and the City aquatics staff now provides the services for the lifeguard 
program.  Without a contract, staff materials from Jeff Ellis and Associates are not 
available for purchase through their program.   
 
The prices received through the Red Cross are cheaper than Jeff Ellis for 
certifications and supplies; books are about the same.  The City does not have to 
be under contract for training services in order to purchase Red Cross supplies.  
BUDGET 
Funds for the purchase of supplies are available in the following accounts: 
#787.7740.010, #755.7740.010, #753.7740.130, and #754.7740.130. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Brian Goul, Aquatics Coordinator 
         

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



campbellld
Text Box
E-10













campbellld
Text Box
E-11













campbellld
Text Box
E-12

























campbellld
Text Box
E-13



























November 7, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:       Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
                   Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
 
RE:             AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST TO PUBLISH AND SOLICIT FOR 

PUBLIC SEALED BID – SALE OF 3 SURPLUS PARCELS 
 
 
The Real Estate and Development Department has had 3 surplus parcels 
appraised, which are listed below. 
 
Parcel#           Sidwell#                 Appraised Value                Type Property 
  15          20-23-351-001 & 002       $20,000.00                     Vacant B-2 
  17          20-23-354-048                  $90,000.00                     Vacant B-3 
  20          20-26-429-045                  $18,000.00                     Vacant M-1 
 
The Real Estate and Development Department, in conjunction with the 
Purchasing Department requests approval to advertise to sell these 3 surplus 
parcels by public sealed bid, with a minimum acceptable bid at the appraised 
value. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-14



Surplus Parcel # 15 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Surplus Parcel # 17 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Surplus Parcel # 20 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE

LAKE

BE
A

C
H

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD
PA

RK
W

AY

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

NORTHFIELD PARKWAY

SQUARE  LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

BE
A

C
H

LONG LAKE

AD
A

M
S

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D
PA

R
K

W
A

Y

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

NO
RT

HF
IE

LD

WATTLES

KIRTS

 

KIRTS

MAPLE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

MAPLE

ELMWOODLI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

ST
E

P
H

E
N

S
O

N
H

W
Y

.

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

MEIJER
INDUSTRIAL  ROW

TROY OAKLAND
AIRPORT

COMMUNITY
CENTER

LIBRARY

CITY
 HALL

CITY OF TROY
POST OFFICE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R
R

O
C

H
ES

TE
R

C
O

U
R

T

DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS
YARD

TROY
MUSEUM

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD.

SOUTH  BLVD.

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

LAKELONG

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

LONG LAKE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

SOUTH BLVD.

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

SQUARE LAKE
SQUARE LAKE

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

AD
A

M
S

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

MAPLE

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R

WATTLES
WATTLES

MAPLE

MAPLE

STEPHENSO
N

PA
R

W
A

Y
K

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

JO
H

N
 R

COURT
BUILDING



NOTE:  THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THIS PROGRAM
              HAS BEEN COMPILED FROM RECORDED DEEDS, PLATS, 
             TAX MAPS, SURVEYS, AND OTHER PUBLIC RECORDS 
              AND DATA.  IT IS NOT A LEGALLY RECORDED MAP OR
             SURVEY.  USERS OF THIS DATA ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED
             THAT THE SOURCE INFORMATION REPRESENTED
             SHOULD BY CONSULTED FOR VERIFICATION.

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000500

Feet

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 05-17-04

6

8

7

18 19

Legend
27 SURPLUS PARCELS

SAFETY PATH PLAN

CITY OF TROY PARKS & FUTURE PARKS

3

2

1
4

5

9

10

11 13
12

14
15

16
17

21

20

23

22
27

26

24
25



October 31, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Contract Amendment #1 – Automatic Meter 

Reading System 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
After completing negotiations with SLC Meter Service Inc of Davisburg, MI, City 
management recommends that City Council approve an amendment to the 
contract with SLC Meter Service Inc., for automatic meter reading system 
software, equipment and services, to include approximately 26,000 residential 
meters to be converted over a four (4) year period expiring December 31, 2009, 
at an estimated annual cost of $347,035.00.  Purchases of equipment will 
continue on an as needed basis for new housing units and commercial / 
industrial installations for a total of ten (10) years through December 31, 2015.  A 
copy of the Contract Addendum is attached and marked Exhibit A for 
identification.        
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On February 7, 2005, Troy City Council approved a contract with SLC Meter 
Service Inc., to provide automatic meter reading (AMR) system software, 
equipment, and services at an estimated net total cost of $78,350.00 (Resolution 
#2005-02-057). The contract included the conversion of 1000 industrial meters to 
a radio frequency system over a two-year period and provides ongoing 
maintenance and support for a total of five (5) years.  This conversion simplified 
the meter reading process and reduced the time and cost per meter read.  The 
program did extremely well and all meters were converted in half the allotted 
time. 
 
On September 12, 2005, Troy City Council approved the request to negotiate 
and amend the AMR contract to expand the scope of the original program to 
include the conversion of an estimated 26,000 residential meters (Resolution 
#2005-09-427).  Expanding the program to include residential meters will 
streamline the meter read process, reduce read costs and allow manpower to be 
redirected to other maintenance and service issues in the water department. 
 
 
     Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-15



 
 
 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds will be available from the Operating Budget of the Water Department. 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Public Works Administrative Aide 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved as to Form and Legality:  _______________________ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 
    CONTRACT ADDENDUM 
 
   AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM 
 
This is an Amendment to the Contract for automatic meter reading system software, 

equipment and services for the Public Works Water Division, which was entered into by 

the City of Troy, Michigan, a Michigan municipal corporation, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan 48084, hereinafter “City”, and S. L. C. Meter Service, Inc., a Michigan 

Corporation, 10375 Dixie Hwy, Davisburg, Michigan 48350, hereafter “Contractor”, by 

Purchase Order #20400668 OB as the result of the Request for Proposal RFP-COT 04-

35 and City Council Resolution #2005-02-057 expiring December 31, 2009.   

 
In addition to the prices, terms, and conditions, including specifications, described in the 

Request for Qualification and Proposal (RFP-COT 04-35), the Response to Request for 

Qualification and Proposal of S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc. dated on or about October 15, 

2004 (the bid opening date) and signed by William Traynor, and Purchase Order 

#20400668 OB, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of this Addendum,  

both parties mutually agree to the addition to the contract of approximately 26,000 

residential meters over a four (4) year period although equipment may be purchased for 

new housing units and commercial / industrial installations for a total of ten (10) years in 

accordance with the S.L.C. Meter Service Inc. Proposal dated October 19, 2005.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have executed this Addendum. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WITNESSES:     S. L. C. Meter Service Inc. 
       
1. ________________________  ________________________________ 

(Name) 
 
2. ________________________        _______________________________ 
      (Title) 
 

 
CITY OF TROY 
 
BY: __________________________  
       Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

 
 
______________________ 
City Manager or designee 
 
 
RESOLUTION NUMBER: ________________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
 
BY: _________________________ 
 
_____________________________       ATTEST: ________________________ 
City Attorney           (City Clerk) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/RFP Documents…. Agreement-Addendum-AMR System 26M Residential Meters.doc 



































 
January 20, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value 

Process Award – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 15, 2004, Request for Proposals were received to provide automatic 
meter reading system software, equipment, and services for the Department of 
Public Works Water Division for a period of five (5) years.  City management 
recommends a contract be awarded to SLC Meter Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI, 
the lowest, most qualified bidder as a result of a best value process, for an 
estimated net total cost of $78,350.00, as outlined in the attached bid tabulation.  
The award is contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND AND FINDINGS 
Meter reading technology has advanced to a level that can provide added value, 
savings in manpower and reduced operational costs.  A radio frequency system 
sends out signals and captures meter reads with a hand-held computer.  Using 
this technology, the Water Department can easily read commercial and industrial 
water meters by driving past their locations.  Currently, these reads are done by 
appointment. The cost to perform a read for a commercial/industrial meter is $25 
per read.  The new system can reduce this cost to under a dollar. 
 
The first objective is to replace all commercial and industrial water meters and 
then eventually move on to residential meters. 
 
Cost analysis and discussions for a 3rd Party Meter Reading contract were 
conducted with other municipalities.  At this time, the utility companies are 
reluctant to establish new partnerships with communities who do not have 
existing contracts. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The award recommendation is based upon the vendor offering the best 
combination of a variety of factors, which included pass / fail criteria, a successful 
demonstration and system pricing. 
 
To be considered, the bidders were required to meet the following minimum 
requirements: 
 
 
 

1 of 2 



January 20, 2005 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Automatic Meter Reading System 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SELECTION PROCESS – Continued - 

• Five (5) years in business 
• System software in place at least five (5) years  
• Acceptable service and support 
• Recovery of backup data 
• Review of other charges 
• Warranty claim procedures 
• Routine maintenance / Repair procedures 
• Positive references 
• Skilled trainers 
• Software revision levels and dates 
• List of problems / complaints with overall system 
• Compliance with insurance requirements 

 
The City committee required a demonstration of the software and equipment to 
ensure that the proposed system could work in the City’s environment. 
 
SUMMARY 
Even though both systems met the minimum requirements and passed the 
demonstration phase, the transition to a radio frequency system will be seamless 
with the Neptune Route Management Software and the most economical to 
implement.  However, in order to read approximately hundred (100) existing 
compound meters with the new system, they will need to be outfitted with digital 
encoders.  The encoders will be purchased as needed, following standard 
purchasing procedures.  But, if a meter has exceeded its useful service life, it will 
be exchanged instead with a new meter. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Operating Budget of the Water department for 
Meter Maintenance, account # 543.7740.010. 
 
40 Notices mailed to prospective vendors 
73 Vendors notified via the MITN system 
  4 Request for proposals rec’d 
  2 Proposals did not meet minimum criteria 
  1 Late bid 
  5 No Bids:       (4) Companies unable to quote product as specified or provide an approved 

alternate. 
(1) Company indicated they could not be competitive, as their partner bid direct.    

 
 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 02.07.05 Std Rsl 8 Award AMR  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM 

 
STATISTICS: 
 

��Forty (40) Proposal notices were sent to prospective 
bidders  

 
��Seventy- three (73) Vendors notified on the MITN System  
 
��Four (4) firms responded to the proposal 

 
��Two (2) firms met the pass / fail criteria 

 
��SLC Meter Service, Inc is the recommended vendor as a 

result of a best value process 
 
 
Selection Process: 
 

1. Firms were evaluated on Pass / Fail Criteria 
 
2. Firms demonstrated ability of system to work in the City 

environment (Pass / Fail) 
 

3. Lowest bidder who passes Phase 1 and 2 will be 
recommended for award 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G://Bid Award 05-06/Best Value SR8 – RFP - AMR ExecutiveSummary01.05.doc 

 
 



APPENDIX 1 
 

AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM                                          RFP-COT 04-35 
BIDDERS FAILING MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
List of Bidders Not Meeting Evaluation Criteria 
 
COMPANY NAME: REASON FOR DISQUALIFICATION 
Floyd S. Salser, Jr & Associates Inc New system, Troy would be a beta test site. 

 
Arkion Systems Company and system need to be established for 

five (5) years.  Company has been in business four 
(4) years and the system only one (1) year.  It was 
impossible to determine if there is adequate support 
or service, and what problems may arise after the 
warranty has expired.   
 

 
The Request for Proposal will provide Automatic Meter Reading System Software, Equipment, 
and Services for the Department of Public Works Water Division for a Period of Five (5) Years.   
 
A City committee comprised of three (3) members reviewed the proposals.  The City of Troy 
reserves the right to award this proposal to the company considered the most qualified based 
upon a combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A) Compliance with qualifications criteria 
B) Completeness of the proposal 
C) Correlation of the proposal submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D) Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E) Evaluation process and demonstration phase 

 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 04-35
Opening Date: 10/15/04 TABULATION OF PROPOSALS Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared: 1/10/05 METER READING SYSTEM

VENDOR NAME: SLC Meter Datamatic Ltd
Service, Inc

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM SOFTWARE, EQUIPMENT, AND
SERVICES FOR THE DPW WATER DIVISION FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS.
SOFTWARE: NEPTUNE ROUTESTAR

Item #1 AMR System Software 4,000.00$            
Training (On Site)
   Complete for the Sum of: 1,000.00$           12,750.00$          
   1/2 Day Session 500.00$               -$                     
   Estimated # of Add. Hrs: (8hrs)   $125.00/man-hr -$                            

HARDWARE:
Item #2 Meter Interface Units (MIU's)

   Year 1        500 units each 53.39$                87.00$                 
   Year 2        500 units each 53.39$                87.00$                 
   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04

Discount % 66.5% In Appendix A Section 9

Item #3 Mobile Collection System
  Handhelds     6 ea each 915.00$              4,200.00$           

Item #4 Additional Hardware
   MIU Conversision Device n/a -$                     
   Radio Frequency Receiver each 300.00$               -$                     
   Handheld Meter Units each 615.00$              -$                     
   Other: FIELD PROGRAMMER each 2,000.00$           3,066.00$            In Appendix A Section 9

   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04
Discount % Attached to Bid In Appendix A Section 9

MAINTENANCE/SUPPORT
Item #5 Ongoing Maintenance/Support - 4 Yrs

Handhelds Units   6 each per year 5,490.00$           6,156.54$            

Trade-In Psion System (5,490.00)$          
System Discount (33,000.00)$         

ESTIMATED NET TOTAL AWARD: $78,350.00

Digital Encoder (For analysis purposes only) 17,600.00$          
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $95,950.00 123,642.16$       

OPTIONAL:
Item #6 Mobile Collection Vehicle 

One Vehicle Based System 5,000.49$            22,995.00$          
   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04

Discount % 26.84% In Appendix A Section 9

Item #7 Mobile Collection Vehicle
 Annually Warranty Period 1,367.00$            3,749.28$            

COST BREAKDOWN - MOBILE COLLECTION RADIO
MARKED AS: "MCR" Appendix A

TECHNICAL DATA & DESCRIPTIVE MATERIALS
MARKED AS: "CB"   "TD" Appendix A

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:   Y or N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION:   NAME William Traynor Fred Quintero
    PHONE # (248)625-0667 (972)234-5000

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS Net 30 Days Blank
WARRANTY Standard Blank



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date: 10/15/04 TABULATION OF PROPOSALS RFP-COT 04-35
Date Prepared: 1/10/05 METER READING SYSTEM Pg 2 of 2

VENDOR NAME: SLC Meter Datamatic Ltd
Service, Inc

DELIVERY: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS Trade-In Value on Psion Warranty Work or
Based 6 Unit System Equipment covered
Compkete w/Logicon Probe by a Maintenance

$5,490.00 Agreement
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

DMS:
 Floyd S. Salser, Jr & Associates Inc - Reason: New System, Troy would be a beta test site -
 Arkion Systems - Reason: Company and system need to be established for five (5) years. Company has been

in business four (4) years and the system only one (1) year -
NO BIDS:
  AMCO
  National Water Works BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL
  Etna Supply Co
  Badger Meter Co
  Gunners Meters & Parts

ATTEST:
MaryAnn Hays
Emily Frontera
Michael Karloff _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G: RFP-COT 04-35 Meter Reading System









  October 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
After completing negotiations with Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, OH, City management 
recommends the purchase one (1) Aerial Platform Ladder Truck for an estimated total cost of 
$769,522.00. (See Appendix I, Price History) 
 
City Council authorized the Fire Department to negotiate with the Sutphen Corporation for the 
purchase of a new Aerial Platform on September 12, 2005.  (2005-09-425) This process was 
preferred to keep all Aerial Platforms used by the department the same.  This unit will replace the 
existing Ladder One, which is 21 years old and will be sold at auction. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Sutphen provided the selling price for several comparable trucks purchased in other jurisdictions in 
2004 and 2005.  Below is a comparison of the price paid and the price Troy would pay, if equipped 
with required City options:  

Location Cicero, NY West 
Seneca, NY 

Independence,
MO 

Gwinnett 
County, GA 

Dekalb 
County, GA 

  Year Bid 2005 2004 Demo 2004 2005 2005 
Purchase Price $745,252 $725,000 $727,187 $780,045 $795,866
City Options:      
  Disk Brakes 3,772 3,772 3,772  
  Detroit Diesel 
Engine 

 
2,255 2,255 2,255

 

  Air Conditioning 3,809  
  Electric Mirrors 1,019 1,019 1,019  
  Master Intake 
Valves 

 
3,473 3,473 3,473

 

  Hi-side 
compartments (Left) 

 
 

11,277 

 

  Hi-side 
compartment 
(Right) 

 
 

1,128 

 

  Upgraded 
Emergency Lighting 

 
4,656 4,656 4,656

 

  Opticom 2,030 2,030  
  Cord Reel  2,251  
  3” Discharge  1,128  
  Stainless Steel 
sub-frame 

 
3,500

 

  Small Generator  1,200  
  Striping/Lettering  1,000  
  Cord Reel   
  Price increases (2)  43,000 43,000  
Purchase Price 
w/City Options 

 
$778,671 $787,456 $792,190

 
$780,045 $795,866

 - 1 of 3 - 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



October 28, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
BACKGROUND 
Below is a short explanation of the most common options, and why the Fire 
Department uses them on their Fire Apparatus: 

1. Disk brakes provide better stopping power, and are easier to service than 
standard brakes. 

2. The engines in all of our ladder trucks are Detroit Diesel.  We have 
purchased the equipment and software to service this engine.  Our Motor 
Pool stocks filters, and is familiar with this engine. 

3. All of our apparatus have mirrors that are electrically adjusted from the 
drivers’ position.  This is necessary due to the number of different drivers 
that will operate the truck. 

4. We order electric operated master intake valves for all apparatus that 
have pumps.  These allow the pump operator to open and close the 
valves from the pump panel.  It also places the valve behind the pump 
panel, where it is less apt to freeze. 

5. The standard emergency lighting package has much less lighting than we 
order on our apparatus.  This truck is ordered with the same basic 
package as will be delivered in the new Engine 4-2.  Our package 
provides more lighting on the sides and rear of the apparatus, providing 
better protection in intersections. 

6. We have Opticom installed on all fire apparatus to control traffic lights at 
intersections. 

 
BUDGET 
Funds are available for this purchase in the Fire Department Capital Account for 
Vehicles – 401338.7981. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Richard Sinclair, Jr., Assistant Fire Chief 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - 2 of 3 - 



APPENDIX I 
 

LADDER TRUCK PRICE HISTORY 
 

NUMBER YEAR TOTAL COST ANNUAL % CHANGE 
L-1 1984 $338,130  
L-2 1994 $516,000 5.26% 
L-3 1998 $606,519 4.38% 

New L-1 2005 $769,522 3.84% 
 
 
 
 

 - 3 of 3 - 







campbellld
Text Box
F-03





























 
 
DATE:   October 28, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   34551 Dequindre 
 
 
 
 
On May 26, 2005, Mr. Kurt Head was issued a citation regarding a commercial vehicle 
that was parked on the residential property noted above.  That citation was issued 
because the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not comply with the exceptions 
found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.   
 
In response to the citation, Mr. Head has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of November 21, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a









 
 





 
 
DATE:   November 2, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Parking Variance, 1414 Combermere 
 
 
 
 
We have received a permit application from Scott Machinski, representing Ovonic 
Battery Company to install a pair of pre-manufactured storage cabinets in the rear of the 
existing industrial building at 1414 Combermere.  These cabinets take up one parking 
space and eliminate the use of three additional parking spaces.  Based upon the area of 
the building a minimum of 22 parking spaces are required per Section 40.21.81 of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  As proposed there would only be 19 parking spaces available. 
 
In light of this 3 parking space deficiency the plans for the installation of the cabinets 
has been denied.  In response to our denial, the petitioners have filed an appeal asking 
for a variance on the parking requirement.  In accordance with Section 44.01.00 a public 
hearing on the request has been scheduled for your meeting of November 21, 2005. 
 
We have included copies of the appeal request as well as the supporting documentation 
for your information. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 



 



 



 



 
 



 1

 
DATE: November 7, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(NOVEMBER 21, 2005) - REZONING APPLICATION – Northeast corner 
of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, Section 14 – B-1 to B-2 (Z 710) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Future Land Use Plan calls for Low Rise Office at this location.  Planning 
Department records indicate that the northern quadrants of the Rochester/Wattles 
intersection were given this designation in 1982 in an effort to indicate an end point for 
the extension of strip commercial development to the north along Rochester Road.  
Prior to 1982, the property was classified as Neighborhood Service.  This rezoning will 
not extend commercial zoning any further to the north or east; rather, it will permit an 
expanded list of commercial uses in an existing commercially viable retail strip center. 
 
The parcel is located at the intersection of Wattles and Rochester Road, one of the 
busiest major thoroughfares in Troy.  The existing B-1 zoning is compatible with 
abutting uses and zoning districts, as is the proposed B-2 zoning.  The commercial 
zoning is bordered by O-1 to the north and P-1 to the east, both districts serving to 
buffer the corner from residential zoning districts.  The potential uses that would be 
permitted under B-2 zoning would be appropriate in this location, including a music 
store.   
 
Most of the parcel has been zoned B-1 since 1954, as shown on the earliest available 
version of the City of Troy Zoning District Map.  It has been used for commercial 
purposes since that time.  The eastern portion of the parcel was zoned from O-1 and R-
1C to B-1 and P-1 in 1985.   
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the 
October 25, 2005 Special/Study meeting.  City Management recommends approval of 
the rezoning request. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the October 11, 2005 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission suggested that the 
applicant apply to the Board of Zoning Appeals for an interpretation of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as related to whether a music store is considered a permitted use in the B-1 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

Local Business District.  The applicant submitted an application for a rezoning and a 
BZA interpretation.  The applicant may, at their request, withdraw either application or 
continue both applications.  The interpretation request will be considered at the 
November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Matthew Jonna of JLJ Investments, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road in 
Section 14. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.7 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently used as a retail center.  Tenants include Blockbuster, Papa 
Romano’s, Ridley’s Bakery and Cafe, Fedex Kinko’s and Accent Florist. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant wishes to rezone the parcel to B-2 so that he can lease vacant tenant 
space to Marshall Music.  The Director of Building and Zoning determined that music 
stores are not permitted uses in the B-1 District and are permitted in the B-2 District. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office and condominium. 
South: Service station and daycare center. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Bank.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: O-1 Office Building. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: P-1 Vehicular Parking. 
West: O-1 Office Building. 
 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions, except as 
otherwise provided in the Article, subject to the regulations applicable in the 
following sections of this Article. 

 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 

 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 

 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 

 
 Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 

Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 

 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 

 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Drive-up windows or service facilities, as accessory to principal uses within B-2 
districts, apart from restaurants,  

 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments,  



 4

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 
within this district 

 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 

 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 

 
 A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
 
 B. Recreational space providing shuffle board, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
 
 C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 

Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the parcel is provided on both Rochester and Wattles. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant is proposing to use an existing vacant building.  No construction is 
proposed. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
Neither the existing zoning nor the proposed zoning complies with the Future Land Use 
Plan.  The property is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office, which 
correlates with the O-1 Office Building District.  According to Planning Department 
records, the parcel was classified on the Master Plan as Low Rise Office since the 
Commercial Area Plan Amendment in 1982, in an effort to indicate an end point for the 
extension of strip commercial development to the north along Rochester Road.  Prior to 
being amended in 1982 the plan classified the parcel as Neighborhood Service Center, 
which is a commercial designation.   



 5

Compliance with Location Standards: 
There are no location standards for the B-2 Community Business District. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from the October 11, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from the October 25, 2005 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
4. Letter from applicant, received by Planning Department on September 12, 2005. 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 710) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-710 Rochester Rd Retail Center Sec 14\Announcement of CC Public Hearing ZOTA 710 11 21 
05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO B-2



±

REZONING REQEUST
FROM B-1 TO B-2
EX. 4048-4060 ROCHESTER RD RETAIL CENTER
PROPOSED MARSHALLS MUSIC
NE CORNER WATTLES & ROCHESTER RD
SEC. 14  (Z-710)

REZONING REQEUST
FROM B-1 TO B-2

0 200100
Feet









PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping 
Center (to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – 
From B-1 (Local Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  He referenced communication from the Director of Building 
and Zoning that provides an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance as relates to 
B-1 and B-2 zoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Marc Swoish of Purtan & Swoish, P.C., 4198 Orchard Lake Road, West 
Bloomfield, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Swoish said the rezoning 
change would have no dramatic affect on anyone in the City.  He said the 
rezoning would allow Marshall’s Music to move from its existing location in Troy, 
resulting in a long-time vacant space being leased and a viable tenant remaining 
in the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Mr. Schultz asked what zoning district the existing Marshall’s Music store is in. 
 
Mr. Miller said he did not know off-hand but would look it up.   
 
Mr. Schultz referenced the interpretation of the Director of Building and Zoning, 
specifically his comment that Section 20.10.00 states that B-1 zoning was 
established for “day-to-day convenience, shopping and service needs of persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas.”  Mr. Schultz questioned how Marshall’s 
Music, a local business, would not be appropriate when there are two national 
chain stores currently existing in the retail center.  He said rezoning from B-1 to 
B-2 would further the inconsistency of the Future Land Use Plan, and he believes 
that Marshall’s Music is equally consistent in the local business zone as is 
Kinko’s, Blockbuster Video and the florist shop.  Mr. Schultz suggested the 
petitioner apply to the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for an interpretation of the 
Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Commission hold the rezoning request in an 
open state until the end of the month.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed that the existing stores at that location are not local 
businesses but city-wide businesses, and said Marshall’s Music should fall under 
the same classification.   Mr. Wright said he lives on the other side of Troy and 
frequents the various stores in the shopping center.  
 
Chair Strat agreed.  He also frequents Kinko’s and lives on the opposite side of 
the city.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

Mr. Littman noted people from afar and wide frequented a very well known wine 
shop previously located in the retail center.  Mr. Littman cited an unattended 
consequence from the proposed rezoning would be that the entire shopping 
center is bought and developed into something undesirable by the City.  He said 
he would support Marshall’s Music going in the location by a means other than 
rezoning.   
 
Mr. Swoish said discussions with the City led him to believe that the rezoning 
process would be the most expeditious process to take as well as provide more 
consistent zoning for the entire retail center.  Mr. Swoish said he respectfully 
disagrees with the original ruling that Marshall’s Music is not a B-1 use.   
 
Discussion followed on the scheduling of the rezoning request through the 
approval process of City Council, and the time frame to obtain an interpretation 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Waller said consideration should be given to the reasonableness of having a 
consistent zoning classification for the whole corner.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the allowable uses and required setbacks in B-2 zoning. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-164 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission disagrees with the Building and 
Zoning Department’s interpretation of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance related 
to musical instrument sales, rental, service and/or musical instruction.  These 
uses fall within the category of specialty shops (Section 20.20.02) and personal 
service establishments (Section 20.20.03), which are both uses permitted by 
right in the B-1 Local Business Zoning District.  The Planning Commission 
requests that the applicant seek an interpretation from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Future Land Use Plan classifies the 
parcel as Low Rise Office.  Neither the existing B-1 zoning district nor the 
proposed B-2 zoning district is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  Prior to 
considering a rezoning request that is inconsistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan, the Planning Commission prefers that the applicant attempt to solve this 
use issue without rezoning the property.  The Planning Commission would 
respectfully request that the Board of Zoning Appeals review this subject during 
its meeting scheduled for October 18, 2005. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request located on 
the northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being 
approximately 2.7 acres in size, be tabled to the October 25, 2005 Special/Study 
Meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman said he would prefer to have the item go to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals for an interpretation.   
 
Chair Strat suggested that the request to be placed on the BZA agenda come 
directly from Marshall’s Music.  
 
Mr. Miller noted the original communication to/from the Director of Building and 
Zoning was with the President of Marshall’s Music Company; the second 
communication was with the representing attorney.   
 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Mr. Littman said there is a slim chance for the request to get on the October BZA 
meeting agenda.  He would prefer that the request be handled through the BZA.   
 
Mr. Schultz said nothing in the motion precludes the BZA from acting on the matter 
at its November meeting should it not make the October agenda.  Mr. Schultz said 
the timing still provides the Planning Commission to take action at its October 25 
Special/Study Meeting should it be necessary.  
 
Chair Strat asked what would happen if the Planning Commission took action on 
the rezoning request at the same time the petitioner seeks an interpretation from 
the BZA.  
 
Mr. Motzny said the petitioner would have time to withdraw the rezoning request 
before City Council action, should the BZA overrule the Building Department 
decision.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has no problem rezoning the property to B-2. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has no problem rezoning the property to B-2, but would like to get 
the BZA’s interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said he is familiar with the reason that Marshall’s Music wants to move 
the store location.  He questioned the impact any delay in the rezoning process or 
BZA action would have on the music class schedule.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping 
Center (to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – 
From B-1 (Local Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the rezoning request that was tabled at the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The applicant’s request for interpretation of 
the Zoning Ordinance is on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) agenda.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-169 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item to the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting to 
allow the Board of Zoning Appeals to address the issue.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Wright said he sees no need to rezone the property, and said Marshal’s 
Music store is no more out of place in the B-1 zoning district than Kinko’s, 
Blockbuster, or some of the other businesses in the shopping center.   
 
There was a lengthy discussion and comments from around the table with 
respect to going forward with the rezoning request to City Council, obtaining an 
interpretation from the BZA independently or simultaneously with the rezoning 
request, the intent of the petitioner to remain in the City, and the review of all B-1 
zoning districts.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Littman 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION FAILED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 
 

Mr. Wright said he would support either action that would get Marshall’s Music in 
the shopping center.  He personally feels an interpretation from the BZA would 
be appropriate and the most expeditious action to take.   
 
Members Schultz, Vleck and Drake-Batts agreed that going forward concurrently 
on both the BZA interpretation and the rezoning request is in the best interest of 
the City and most expeditious.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-170 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission feels that it is of the utmost importance to 
the economic viability of the City of Troy to encourage desirable businesses to 
remain and/or locate in the City.  Furthermore, the City Management should do 
everything within its powers to simplify and expedite the processes businesses 
must follow to establish and/or relocate their operations in our City; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission disagrees with the Building Department’s 
decision that Marshall’s Music does not meet the criteria for locating within the B-1 
(Community Business) zoning district, while the same department has ruled that 
Blockbuster Video and FedEx/Kinko’s meet those criteria.  While the Planning 
Commission has recommended and requested that the Board of Zoning Appeals 
provide an interpretation of the B-1 zoning district as it applies to Marshall’s Music, 
that interpretation will not take place until Tuesday, November 15, 2005; 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Troy to expedite the ability of 
Marshall’s Music to relocate their business to a new facility within the City.  
Furthermore, because the most expeditious means of accomplishing same is to 
recommend the rezoning of the parcel in question from B-1 to B-2 and rezoning that 
parcel does not create a non-conformity with relation to the new zoning distract;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on 
the northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being 
approximately 2.7 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 









 1

 
 
November 3, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(NOVEMBER 21, 2005) – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
(ZOTA 214-B) – Article IV and X, Approval of Group Child Care Homes on a 
Temporary Basis in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On October 3, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution requesting that the Planning 
Commission set a public hearing to consider a proposed amendment that would allow 
for Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  
This would permit Group Child Care Homes on a temporary basis, until after the City 
Council conducts a public hearing on proposed ordinance revisions.  This temporary 
text amendment would be rescinded at the same time that the new provisions related to 
Group Child Care Homes are adopted.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study meeting and recommended approval of the proposed amendment.  City 
Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Department of Human Services Office of Children and Adult Licensing adopted 
revisions to Admincode R 400.1801, which are the official licensing rules for state-
licensed child care facilities, on September 13, 2005.  Effective January 1, 2006, Group 
Day Care Homes and Family Day Care Homes shall be known as Group Child Care 
Homes and Family Child Care Homes, respectively.   
 
There are approximately 20 Group Child Care Homes currently operating in the City of 
Troy.  While all of these Group Child Care Homes have valid State licenses, they are 
not permitted uses in the City of Troy and therefore are operating illegally.  The 
Planning Commission is currently considering ZOTA 214, a proposed Zoning Ordinance 
amendment to permit Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E districts.  City 
Management had suspended enforcement of the 20 zoning violations as the Planning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01d



 2

Commission considered the amendment, but cannot do so indefinitely.  The City 
Charter charges the City Manager with the responsibility of enforcing the laws of the 
City of Troy, including the Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed text amendment (ZOTA 
214-B) permits Group Child Care Homes on a temporary basis, thereby temporarily 
relieving the City Manager with the obligation of citing the 20 Group Child Care Homes 
with violations. 
 
Note that ZOTA 214-B proposes that the definition for Family Child Care Homes be 
updated and a new definition for Group Child Care Homes be added.   
 
The Planning Commission intends to hold a Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 at the 
December 13, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 214-B, Temporary Approval of Group Child Care Homes. 
2. City Council Resolution from October 3, 2005.  
3. Planning Commission minutes from the October 25, 2005 Special/Study 

meeting (draft). 
4. Planning Commission Actions on ZOTA 214. 

 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Announcement of CC Public Hearing ZOTA 214-B 11 14 
05.doc 



   1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
City Council Public Hearing Draft 

ZOTA 214-B: Temporary Approval of Group Child Care Homes 
 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV and X of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV Definitions is amended to provide definitions for family child care homes and 
group child care homes.  Article X of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is 
amended to permit group child care homes on a temporary basis by special conditions 
in the R-1A through R-1E One Family Residential Districts.   
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes.) 
 
04.20.60 FAMILY DAY CHILD CARE HOME:  A private residence in which one (1) to 

six (6) children under the age of eighteen (18) are received for care and 
supervision from other than a parent or legal guardian for periods of less 
than twenty-four (24) hours a day, in addition to children related to an adult 
member of the family by blood, marriage or adoption.  Family Day Care 
Home includes a home that gives care to such unrelated children for more 
than a total of thirty (30) days during a calendar year.  A private residence 
that the child care provider lives in and cares for up to six unrelated 
children for more than 4 weeks in a year when the children's 
parents/guardians are not immediately available. 
 

04.20.689 GRADE: the term "grade" shall mean a ground elevation established for the 
purpose of regulating the number of stories and the height of the building. 
The building grade shall be the level of the ground adjacent to the walls of 
the building if the finished grade is level.  If the ground is not entirely level, 
the grade shall be determined by averaging the elevation of the ground for 
each face of the building. 

 
04.20.69 GROUP DAY CHILD CARE HOME: A private residence that the child care 

provider lives in and cares for up to 12 unrelated children for more than 4 
weeks in a year when the children's parents/guardians are not 
immediately available. 



   2

10.25.05 Group Child Care Homes, as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed by the 
State of Michigan and in operation as of [Date of Approval of ZOTA 214-B 
by City Council], shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to 
exceed 30 days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to 
conduct a public hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions 
to Chapter 39, Article X, related to the regulation of Group Child Care 
Homes, as set forth in ZOTA 214. 

  
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2005. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\ZOTA 214-B CC Public Hearing Draft 11 21.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final October 3, 2005 

              
F-5 Update and Recommendation Regarding Child Group Day Care Homes in 

the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts  
 
Resolution #2005-10-466 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted Resolution #CC-2005-09-432, which advised the 
Planning Commission to advance, at their September 27, 2005 meeting, a 
recommendation to City Council regarding child group day care homes;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing at the September 
27, 2005 Special/Study Meeting, and adopted Resolution #PC-2005-09-152, which 
tabled action on ZOTA 214 to the December 13, 2005 Regular Meeting, and also to 
expedite necessary actions to study this item at the next Planning Commission meeting 
in October.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby 
REQUESTS the Planning Commission to set a public hearing to consider a proposed 
amendment to Chapter 39, Article 10.00 that would temporarily allow for child group day 
care homes, which are State licensed child group day care homes with 7 to 12 children, 
to be located in the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts until 15 days after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a public hearing on any proposed revisions 
to Chapter 39, Article 10.00.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214-B) – 
Articles 04.20.00 and 10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts on a Temporary Basis  
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Resolution adopted by City Council on October 3, 2005 that 
requested the Planning Commission to set a Public Hearing on a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment that would allow group day care homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  He said the amendment would 
essentially legalize the approximate 20 group day care homes currently licensed and 
existing at the time the amendment is adopted by City Council.   
 
Discussed at length were the following two conditions of the proposed amendment: 
 

• The date of final action by City Council that would affect the existing group day 
care homes. 

• The timeframe the temporary basis would be in affect after City Council takes 
final action.   

 
Mr. Motzny said consideration and approval of the proposed amendment should be 
based on whether the members believe a public purpose would be served.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Bjelobrk of 5581 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bjelobrk asked how many 
members of the Planning Commission live next door to or within 300 feet of a family 
or group day care home.  He also asked if any member of the Planning Commission 
has a friend or relative who operates a day care center.  Mr. Bjelobrk said he would 
be willing to swap houses with Chair Strat so he would have the opportunity to 
experience living next to a group day care home.  He voiced concern with the City 
procedure to notify only those residents living within 300 feet of existing group day 
care homes, and said the issue should be placed on a city-wide ballot.  Mr. Bjelobrk 
voiced concern that a fire in a group day care home would jeopardize his family’s 
safety and affect the cost of his insurance coverage.  He asked that group day care 
homes not be grandfathered.  Mr. Bjelobrk addressed traffic, noise, and parking 
concerns, and encouraged parents to raise their own children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs said approximately 
800 homes have been receiving the Public Hearing notices and very few negative 
responses have come forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-   
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 25, 2005 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles IV and X, pertaining to Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-
1E Zoning Districts on a Temporary Basis, be amended as follows:   
 

1. To remove “[Date of Final Action by City Council]” and replace and substitute 
it with “[The Approval of ZOTA 214-B by City Council]”. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Waller asked that the Resolution be amended to change all entries of 10 days to 
100 days, with reference to the timeframe of the temporary basis after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing and take final action.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the wording of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
Mr. Motzny suggested a recess to prepare the appropriate wording of the Resolution. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:02 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts withdrew the motion on the floor.  Mr. Littman was in agreement with 
the withdrawal. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-171 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That group day care homes as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed by 
the State of Michigan and in operation as of the date of approval of ZOTA 214-B by 
City Council, shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to exceed thirty 
(30) days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public 
Hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions to Charter 39, Article X, 
related to the regulation of group day care homes as set forth in ZOTA 214.  
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the Planning Department has received several letters from neighbors 
who are opposed to group day care homes because of traffic, parking, and noise.  
Mr. Wright said he personally thinks a group day care home is a commercial 
enterprise that should not exist in a residential zone. 

 



11-07-2005 G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Planning Commission Actions rev 11 07 05.doc 

Planning Commission Actions on 
ZOTA 214 Group Daycare Homes 

in the R-1 Residential Zoning Districts 

 

MEETING DATE TYPE OF MEETING ACTION 
April 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion and 

Presentation by Ms. Schafer  
May 4, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion followed 

by Resolution #PC-2004-05-052 - Request for 
written confirmation that the Building Dept. 
violation at 5593 Mandale be held in abeyance 
while PC attempts to move forward with ZOTA, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion  
Sept. 28, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion 
March 1, 2005 Study Meeting Brief Discussion after Planning & Zoning Report 
June 7, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 

followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-094, directing 
the Planning Dept. not to extend any more effort 
on ZOTA 214, and to look into applicability of the 
State Building Code for family daycare homes to 
see if anything should be done in the City 
Ordinances to clear up potential legalities, 
MOTION FAILED 

June 28, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 
followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-108, that a 
Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 be scheduled for 
August 9, 2005 and notices be sent to residents 
within 300 ft. of the existing 19 group daycare 
homes and that City Management provide a memo 
outlining pros and cons on the matter and that 
additional Special Use criteria be developed, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Mr. Motzney 
provided an explanation to his memo addressing 
the Public Hearing for ZOTA 214 

August 2, 2005 Study Meeting Discussion of House Bill 4398 including Sec. 206 
(4) the requirement to permit conditionally group 
day care homes in residential districts 

August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting Public Hearing, followed by Resolution #PC-2005-
08-131, Planning Commission shall take no further 
action related to group day care homes until State 
Legislature and Governor have taken final action 
on House Bill 4398, MOTION APPROVED 



11-07-2005 G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Planning Commission Actions rev 11 07 05.doc 

 
Planning Commission Actions on 
ZOTA 214 Group Daycare Homes 

in the R-1 Residential Zoning Districts 

August 23, 2005 Study Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Chair Strat 
notified members that City Manager notified him 
that the State legislature is not going forward with 
modifications regarding group day care homes in 
House Bill 4398 and that Mr. Szerlag requested 
they resume action on ZOTA 214 

September 13, 
2005 

Regular Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Mr. Miller 
notified members that City Council adopted a 
resolution requesting the Planning Commission 
take action on ZOTA 214 at the September 27, 
2005 Public Hearing 

September 27, 
2005 

Study Meeting Resolution #PC-2005-09-150 rescinding resolution 
PC-2005-08-131, MOTION APPROVED.   
Planning Commission then held a Public Hearing 
followed by Resolution #PC-2005-09-152 that the 
Planning Commission hold a Public Hearing for 
ZOTA 214 at the Planning Commission Regular 
Meeting in December, MOTION APPROVED. 

October 4, 2005 Study Meeting Mr. Miller notified members that City Council 
adopted a resolution requesting the Planning 
Commission have a public hearing to consider an 
amendment that would temporarily allow for child 
group day care homes, which are State licensed,  
to be located in the R-1 Zoning Districts until 15 
days after the Troy City Council has had the 
opportunity to conduct a public hearing on ZOTA 
214.   
Discussion of ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare 
Homes on a Temporary Basis) followed by 
Resolution #PC-2005-10-158, that a Public 
Hearing for ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare Homes 
on a Temporary Basis) be held at the Planning 
Commission Study Meeting of October 25, 2005, 
MOTION APPROVED. 
Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 

October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 
October 25, 2005 Study Meeting Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 B (Group Daycare 

Homes on a Temporary Basis) followed by 
Resolution #PC-2005-10-171, recommending 
approval of ZOTA 214 B - Group Daycare Homes 
on a Temporary Basis, MOTION APPROVED. 
Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 

November 1, 
2005 

Study Meeting Discussion of ZOTA 214, no resolution passed. 



campbellld
Text Box
G-02a















TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Final April 6, 2004 
 

1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Board of Canvassers was held Tuesday, April 6, 2004, in 
Conference Room D, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairperson Inglehart called 
the Meeting to order at 10:05 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT:  Leah Inabnitt, Gloria Inglehart, Mary Shiner, Carole Webb 
ABSENT:  None  
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Bartholomew, Deputy City Clerk Holmes 

Appointment of Chairperson:  
 
BC-04-04-001 
Motion by Shiner 
Seconded by Webb 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Inglehart is APPOINTED as Chairperson. 
 
Yes: All-4 

Approval of Minutes: April 8, 2003 
 
BC-04-04-002 
Motion by Inabnitt 
Seconded by Webb 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 8, 2003 are hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-4 
 
Meeting was Recessed at 1:20 PM and Reconvened at 2:10 PM. 
 
Canvass of Votes Cast for the City General Election Held Monday, April 5, 2004:  
 
Canvass of Precincts
 
BC-04-04-003 
Motion by Webb  
Seconded by Inglehart 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Clerk and Deputy City Clerk be instructed to SEAL the ballot 
container for the Canvass of Precincts for the City General Election held on Monday, April 
5, 2004 once discrepancies discovered by Board are satisfied as indicated on “Inquiries 
Report”; a copy of which is ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01a



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Final April 6, 2004 
 

2 

Yes: All-4 
 
The Board confirmed and signed the “Canvass of Votes Cast” report, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Canvass of Votes Cast: 
 
Mayor - Vote for One – Three Year Term: 
 

CANDIDATE: VOTES: 
Richard Hughes 1,072 
Matt Pryor 4,807 
Louise E. Schilling 6,469 

 
Louise E. Schilling having received a sufficient number of votes was elected Mayor for 
three-year term ending April 9, 2007. 
 
Council Member - Vote for Two – Three Year Terms: 
 

CANDIDATE: VOTES: 
Robin Beltramini 5,549 
Dave Lambert 8,460 
Victor Lenivov 3,443 
Alan Manzon 4,091 

 
Dave Lambert and Robin Beltramini each having received a sufficient number of votes 
were elected Council Member for three-year terms ending April 9, 2007. 
 

Ballot Proposals – Vote Yes or No: 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 04-1 

 
Shall Section 7.9 of the Troy Charter, which requires “nomination petitions for candidates 
for regular city elections to be filed with the Clerk on or before 4 o’clock pm of the twenty-
eighth (28) day preceding the third Monday of February of each year”, be replaced with  
“nomination petitions for candidates for regular City elections are to be filed with the Clerk 
on or before 4 o’clock pm of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding the City election for 
each election year”?  
   
Yes:   8317 
No:   3213 

 
Proposal 04-1 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Final April 6, 2004 
 

3 

Charter Amendment Proposal 04-2 
 
Shall Section 5.11 of the Troy Charter, which sets forth the requirements for citizens to 
effectuate changes to the City of Troy ordinances through an initiatory or referendary 
process, be amended to reduce the number of signatures from  “at least ten percent of the 
registered electors of the City”, to “at least 2,000 signatures of the registered electors of the 
City”? 
  
Yes:   5861 
No:   5852 
 
Proposal 04-2 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 04-3 
 
Shall Section 5.11 of the Troy Charter, which sets forth the requirements for citizens to 
effectuate changes to the City of Troy ordinances through an initiatory or referendary 
process, be amended to increase the time period to gather signatures from  “twenty-one 
days prior to the filing of the petition” to “ninety days prior to the filing of the petition”? 
  
Yes:   8484 
No:   3220 
 
Proposal 04-3 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 04-4 
 
Shall Section 12.1 of the Charter, which currently requires sealed bids to be obtained for all 
sales and purchases in excess of ten thousand dollars, be amended to allow for 
competitive bids through alternative methods including but not limited to electronic 
submission or reverse auction methods, by replacing “sealed bids shall be obtained” with 
“competitive bids shall be obtained through a traditional sealed bid procedure or alternative 
methods, providing the method used preserves the integrity of the competitive process”? 
 
Yes:   7964 
No:   3743 
 
Proposal 04-4 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 04-5 
 
Shall Section 3.8.5 of the Troy Charter be repealed to eliminate the requirement for the 
Mayor to send an annual proclamation to the U.S. Congress, encouraging them to use 
their best efforts to amend the Constitution to require term limits on the U.S. Congress? 
 
Yes:   5630 



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Final April 6, 2004 
 

4 

No:   6040 
 
Proposal 04-5 having not received sufficient votes was not passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 04-6 
 
Shall the City of Troy, Michigan be authorized to convey seven acres of the Troy Civic 
Center site for the development of conference/hotel facilities? 
 
Yes:   2514 
No:   9941 
 
Proposal 04-6 having not received sufficient votes was not passed.  
 
Audience Participation:  None 
 
Adjournment:  2:12 PM 
 
 
   
   
Tonni L. Bartholomew  Gloria Inglehart - Chairperson 
Clerk of the Board of Canvassers  Board of Canvassers 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final August 10, 2004 
 

1 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Tuesday, August 10, 2004, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner David Cannon (Absent/Excused) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human Resources 

Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Captain Edward Murphy, Sgt. 
Michael Bjork, Sgt. Thomas Gordon, Sgt. John Schaufler, Barbara 
A. Holmes - Deputy City Clerk, Greg Schultz – Lange & Cholack, 
P.C., Christine Felts – Court Reporter – Christine Felts & 
Associates, Petitioner Jamie Hill 

 
Approval of Minutes of February 26, 2004 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-02-008 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of January 22, 2004 be APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes:  McGinnis, Cannon 
No:  None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Petitions and Communications 
 
(a) Request for an Act 78 Appeal Hearing – Jamie Hill 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner if he would prefer to postpone the hearing until there is a 
full complement of the Commission. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he would waive that right at this time. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner if he had any evidence to present. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he did not have any evidence, but that he did have mostly questions that he 
would like to raise. 
 
Greg Schultz, legal counsel from Lange & Cholack, P.C., distributed documentation relative to 
the petitioner’s hearing. 
 
The hearing RECESSED at 7:08 PM to allow time for review of the documentation presented 
by Mr. Schultz. 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01b



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final August 10, 2004 
 

2 

The hearing RECONVENED at 7:16 PM. 
 
Chair McGinnis advised that this is the first time any documentation was presented to the 
Commission relative to the petitioner’s hearing. 
 
Mr. Hill noted that this is the first time he has seen any kind of documentation of this kind also. 
He added that he requested copies of his employment file, but the document presented tonight 
was not in his file. 
 
Chair McGinnis advised the petitioner that based upon what the petitioner has read tonight, that 
he may request a postponement to review the documentation and come back before the 
Commission at a later date. He further noted that the petitioner cannot challenge the 
documentation based upon what he thinks, but rather he must return with evidence. 
 
Chair McGinnis questioned whether the petitioner had the appropriate documentation in terms 
of his defense of the allegations. 
 
Mr. Schultz noted that the summary appears on page five of the document and that the first 
four pages only serve as background information. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked Mr. Hill to be prepared to address all the allegations in an orderly way 
with evidence of why he believes the city has done something improperly. 
 
Commissioner Cannon agreed that the petitioner must make his case. 
 
Mr. Hill believes he needs additional documentation regarding the investigation. 
 
Chair McGinnis responded that there may or may not be more documentation. 
 
Commissioner Cannon would like to hear what the petitioner’s claim is. 
 
Mr. Hill questioned how he could prove his point. 
 
Chair McGinnis explained that the hearing is not conducted as a jury trial. He added that the 
petitioner could represent himself and ask questions directly, or hire an attorney as to why the 
city is denying him employment. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner how much time he will need to make his case. 
 
Mr. Hill responded that he would need at least a week. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner to contact the City Attorney’s office in writing as soon as 
possible so that the matter may be concluded. 
 
Lori Bluhm requested that the petitioner prepare a list of what he is looking for. 
 
Chair McGinnis agreed adding that it would provide the city with an opportunity to look at the 
matter more thoroughly and faster. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final August 10, 2004 
 

3 

Mr. Schultz noted that he understands that Sgt. Gordon provided the petitioner with the 
opportunity to meet with him. 
 
Chair McGinnis restated that the petitioner has not seen this document until tonight and should 
have at least been given the summary to review.  He noted that the documents could be 
reviewed on camera. 
 
Chief Craft advised that they will provide all documentation that the decision was based upon if 
requested. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes the documentation can be limited to the summary and added that the 
decision is ultimately up to the department. 
 
Chair McGinnis and Commissioner Cannon agreed that any information deemed confidential 
could be struck from the summary. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked if the petitioner was going to hire an attorney. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he would. 
 
Chair McGinnis noted that at this time, the appeal hearing is postponed to date to be 
determined.  
 
Chair McGinnis further noted that the documents presented by Lange & Cholack, P.C. were 
returned to Mr. Schultz at this time.  
 
New Business: None presented 
 
Old Business:  None presented 
 
Adjournment:   The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 12, 2005 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, May 
12, 2005 at the Troy Community Center, room 503.  Chairwoman, Kathleen Fejes called the 
meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Ida Edmunds, member 
   Kathleen Fejes, member  Tod Gazetti, member 
   Tom Krent, member   Brad Henson, student representative 
   Stuart Redpath, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
   Stuart Alderman, staff  Jeff Biegler, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Rusty Kaltsounis, Meaghan Kovacs, and Jeff Stewart 
 
Visitors:  None 
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 05 - 012 
Moved by Gazetti 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members from the April 14, 2005 meeting are excused.   
 
Yeas: All  Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 05 - 013 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Redpath 
 
Resolved, that the minutes from April 14, 2005 be approved by amending page 1, Section A 
under OLD BUSINESS by STRIKING Senior Advisory Boards and INSERTING Advisory 
Committee For Senior Citizens and on page 2, Section D by INSERTING 2005-2006.   
 
Yeas: All  Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Budget Approval Process - Budget meetings with City Council will be finalized on Monday, 
May 16, 2005 at a public hearing.  Our budget proposed a 25% reduction in the City’s 
contribution to the Boys and Girls Club.  City Council has decided not to reduce our contribution 
and to maintain the amount we have given community groups.   
 
B.  Capital Needs - A handout was distributed with a five-year plan of capital projects.  This is a 
working document and may be subject to change when the Masterplan is completed or as other 
critical needs take priority.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 12, 2005 

 
C.  DDA Median Maintenance - Irrigation has been installed on the medians of Big Beaver east 
of I-75 to Rochester Road.  This year will be the first full season with the irrigation.  The medians 
should be much improved this year.  Annuals will be planted and dead/dying perennials have 
been replaced.   
 
The City will contract a study to be done of the Big Beaver corridor for improvements.   
 
D. Shuffleboard/Bocce - Cost estimates were obtained by Jeff Biegler; Shuffleboard Courts are 
approximately $3000 per court and Bocce Ball courts are approximately $10,000 - $12,000 per 
court.  The Community Center has an existing storm drain that could be tied into for drainage, 
eliminating some cost.   
 
Member Comments 
Tom Krent asked about Section 36 parkland.  Ms. Anderson explained that it is still in the courts 
and we hope to have this matter settled within a few weeks.   
 
Mr. Krent also asked about the ball diamond lights at Boulan Park.  Mr. Biegler replied that the 
lights might have been on because the seasonal laborer had not gotten to the park at that time 
to turn the lights off at one of the ball diamonds.  The lights should not be on all night.   
 
Jan Zikakis asked about the ash wood and if it is chopped up and used as firewood and 
available to the public.  Mr. Biegler responded that we do not make it available since we cannot 
control its use.  If it is taken out of the quarantined area, it may spread the Emerald Ash Borer 
pest farther.  Currently, we grind it up into mulch and the large logs are sold.   
 
Staff Reports 
Director - Congratulations to Ida Edmunds on her re-election to the school board.   
 
Discussions with the president of Troy Youth Soccer are continuing regarding costs for use of 
fields and facilities.  Last year they were charged 20% however, this year they will be charged 
40%.  Special Use of fields, such as for the Soccer City Classic, they would be charged 100%.   
 
Ms. Anderson encouraged all to look at the City survey when it is available on the website.  It 
has a lot of information in it regarding City services.  The Parks and Recreation department was 
rated very well in terms of use of our facilities and programs.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 05 - 014 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
Resolved that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will suspend the meetings for June, 
July and August unless there is a need.   
 
Yeas: All    Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 12, 2005 

 
Recreation Report - Many special events are taking place this summer:  TFAC  Open House, 
Perennial Plant Exchange, Hershey Track and Field, Nursery School Olympics, Family Festival 
and two new programs, Dodgeball and Kickball, to name a few.   
 
Parks Report - Friday, May 6, 2005 was Arbor Day.  A tree was planted in celebration and 80 
kites were given away.   
 
1200 flats of annuals have arrived and will be planted along the medians within the next few 
weeks.   
 
On May 20 at Beach Road Park there will be an installation of a rain garden.  Rain water from 
the parking lot will drain into a swale that has been planted with perennials that can withstand 
water for a longer than usual period of time.  This will allow the plants to filter and absorb extra 
water thereby putting less pollutants and water into the Rouge River watershed.  Come join in 
the fun and help plant a rain garden. 
 
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 05 - 015 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
Resolved, that absent members, Kovacs and Stewart, are excused.   
 
Yeas: All   Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 1, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Sept. 
1 2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:02 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Marie Hoag, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Bud Black, Member  
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming, Kim Haveraneck, Jack Grushko 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-09-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 2, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming announced that Troy is one of four school districts in metro Detroit and the only 
one in Oakland County to receive an "A+" rating from the Detroit News, following a 
comprehensive analysis of school quality factors.  

City Council candidate Wade Fleming introduced himself to the committee. 
 
Old Business 
  
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  There were no new visits to report this month.  
 
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that the Parks and Recreation 
Department would like to proceed with the project and they are looking at funding options.  
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Kim Haveraneck and Jack Grushko from 
Emerald Food Service attended the meeting to discuss the catering contract.  The committee 
is recommending a change in the contract that will allow non-profit groups to bring in their own 
snacks for meetings (These groups would be required to use the caterer for meals.)  The 
committee’s contention is that many of these groups do not have funds to hire a caterer.  Jack 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 1, 2005 

2 

Grushko stated that this would open the floodgate to non-profit groups that would book “their 
rooms” and thus reduce the space available to for-profit groups who might use Emerald Food 
Service.   Kim stated that they are just performing the contract and she should not be to one 
the Committee is talking to.  The Committee has met with Parks and Recreation staff, and will 
reiterate their position to City Council via written correspondence.   The Committee requests 
specifics from the Parks and Recreation Department as to when the contract is up and the 
timetable for negotiations.       
 
 
New Business 
 
Michigan Senior Olympics:  In response to Mr. Berar’s inquiry about which Michigan Senior 
Olympics sports we offer seniors an opportunity to participate in, Carla reported that Senior 
Olympics events are archery, badminton, bowling, cycling, golf, horseshoes, race walk, 
racquetball, road race, shuffleboard, swimming, table tennis, tennis, track and field, basketball, 
softball, and volleyball.  The state records are listed on the website, so potential participants 
would know what they are up against.  Troy offers bowling, golf, table tennis, tennis, 
basketball, softball and volleyball.  Badminton was offered last year but was cancelled due to 
lack of interest.    
 
Annual Report:  Carla distributed copies of the annual senior report for FY 04/05.  The 
committee will review it and discuss it at their next meeting. 
 
Parking:  Mr. Berar reported that all of the handicap parking spaces at the east entrance were 
taken and he would like to see more spaces added.  Carla will instigate and report back next 
month.  The number of spaces available does meet ADA requirements and exceeds 
requirements at the senior entrance. 
 
Troy Daze:  Marie Hoag reported that there will be a bocce ball demonstration at senior day at 
Troy Daze. 
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet in June, July and August, 
and they will not meet in September.  
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that they are doing great and are very busy. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that new programs this fall include bridge lessons, a “mental 
aerobics” class, knitting lessons, and a strength-training workshop where participants will 
receive a handbook with a routine that they can do at home.  This workshop is part of the 
national “You Can” campaign.  
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion that the reading room remain 
open during bingo.  Reading room hours are posted as “subject to change if Room 402 is in 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 1, 2005 

3 

use,” and the bingo players have found it disruptive to have people cutting through the room 
during bingo.  The Committee recommended keeping the room closed during bingo.         
 
 
 
Comments:  None 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final September 14, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, September 14, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Steve Gasper, UBS Financial Services 
  
 
  
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 09 - 033  
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 10, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
  
 
 
RETIREMENT REQUESTS
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 09 - 034 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the non-duty death retirement request of the following employee be 
approved: 
 
Susan A. Orban, DB, 7/23/05, 13 years, 11 months 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final September 14, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – INVESTMENT POLICY – FIXED INCOME REVISION 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 09 - 035  
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board amend Fixed Income – Section 2 – Quality section of the 
investment policy. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
  
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION – DECEMBER 31, 2004 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 09 - 036  
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board receive and file the Annual Actuarial Valuation for the year 
ended December 31, 2004. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE – JUNE 30, 2005 
 
Steve Gasper of UBS Financial Services reviewed with the board the investment 
performance for the quarter ending June 30, 2005. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
The Board received and filed the December 31, 2004 Summary Annual Report to 
Members.  Copies of the report will be distributed to City Council, Full-time Employees and 
Retirees.   
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – INVESTMENT INDEX 
 
When comparing investment results, the Board will add the Lehman Bros. Intermediate 
Bond Index for fixed income evaluation. 
 
 
The next meeting is October 12, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:50 p.m. 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final September 14, 2005 
 
 

 3

 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\9-14-05 Minutes_Final.doc 



 1

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL SEPTEMBER 15, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday September 15, 
2005 at the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Mary Shiner 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Board welcomed new member, Mary Shiner. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Lauren Andreoff be excused. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 2, 2005 be approved with a correction.  Under 
Board Member Comments, the third paragraph should read:  Zembrzuski stated that a 
potential volunteer came in to the library in the evening; and when asked about 
volunteer opportunities, he was told that he would have to come back during the day.  
The Library will have volunteer applications available at the Circulation desk. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



 2

Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postpones items. 
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Meeting Room Use.  The Board reviewed and discussed the reasons that the Library 
needed to have the Meeting Room available for library programs and meetings. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Meeting Room be used for Library Programs and 
meetings, and that the Friends of the Library Used Bookshop return to their space in the 
Library lower level. 
Yes:  5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Review of Exhibitor Procedure.  The Board discussed possible options to consider 
dealing with the issue of pricing and sales information or art exhibits. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-09-05 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the April, 2005 Draft of the “Troy Public Library Information and 
Procedures for Exhibitors” be adopted with the following two changes so that paragraph 
two reads:  The Library cannot be involved in the sale of items and no sales can take 
place on Library property.  Biographical information can be posted with the exhibit along 
with information regarding the exhibit’s description, history, and relevant personal 



 3

anecdotes.  No pricing information is allowed.  The exhibitor’s contact information may 
be posted, but with no reference to the sales price of the items on exhibit or that the 
items can be purchased.  Violation of this will result in exhibitors losing the privilege to 
exhibit at the Library in the future.  Exhibitors do not need to be residents of the City of 
Troy. 
Yes:  3—Gregory, Shiner, Wheeler 
No  2—Griffen, Zembrzuski 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The Library will be participating this spring in the “One Book One Community” program 
with libraries throughout Oakland and Macomb counties.  The book that was chosen is 
“Shadow Divers” by Robert T. Kurson.  The Library Café is likely to be sold to a local 
resident, Alan Francis.  The contract is currently being discussed.  The Library is one of 
ten Michigan public libraries that is offering a new service to the public – the ability to 
download audiobooks to their home computer or transfer them to a portable device like 
a PDA, Smartphone, portable audio device or burned to a standard CD.  The City is 
embarking on an update of the Troy Futures report and the public will be invited to a 
general information session in October or November. 
 
Board Member comments. 
Wheeler said that there had been a problem with the notification process for a memorial 
given by the Primrose Garden Club.  This will be investigated as to what broke down in 
our procedure. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments. 
Chen asked about the progress of the WiFi installation.  Hopefully in October this will be 
installed so that patrons can connect to the Internet with their laptops throughout the 
Library.  Chen asked where the best places in the Library would be for a group of 
students to study together.  The conference room, meeting room, Youth Services, the 
café, or the East side of the Adult Services department. 
 
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board reviewed the substitute librarian posting, the 
insurance policy, the personal leave policy, the grievance policy, and the personal leave 
time policy.  Sirsi will be looking to market libraries.  It was decided that no alternates 
would be added to the SLC Board. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
No report. 
 
Gifts.    
Two gifts totaling $122.00 were received. 
 



 4

Informational Items. 
September TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
36 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation. 
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, September 20, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Council. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Moved, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 16, 2005 with the following 
correction: 
 
Page #8, last paragraph, change the word “the” to “they” wanted to maintain….” 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES WITH CORRECTION CARRIED  
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #5 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve a three (3)-year renewal of Items #3 through #5 as suggested in 
the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  HANDLEMAN REAL ESTATE LLC, 500 KIRTS, 
for renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west 606’ 
of the northern property line where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief, granted by this 
Board, of the required 6’ high masonry-screening wall along their northern property line  

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
where it abuts residentially zoned land.  This relief was originally granted in 1984, based 
on the fact that the petitioner would be installing a berm with evergreen and deciduous 
plantings to screen the residential sites.  A portion of the property to the north has been 
rezoned to the C-F zoning classification and therefore the renewal of relief is only 
required for the west 606 feet.  This item last appeared before this Board in September 
2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Other than the change of 
adjacent zoning the conditions remain the same and there are no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Handleman Company, 500 Kirts, a three (3) year 
renewal of their variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along 
the west 606 feet of their northern property line where it abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• A berm with landscape is provided along the property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  F & R INVESTMENTS, 6050-6054 LIVERNOIS, 
for renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screen wall required along the north and east 
property lines where they abut residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by Board 
to have a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screen wall required along 
the north property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall along the east 
where the site abuts residentially zoned land.  The Board originally granted this relief in 
1989 when the second building was constructed.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in September 2002 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at that time.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of F & R Investments, 6050-6054 Livernois, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief to have a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screen 
wall required along the north property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall 
along the east where the site abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• There is existing vegetation along the east property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX 
CHURCH, 760 W. WATTLES, for relief to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu 
of the 4’-6” high masonry screen wall required where the parking area abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screen 
wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned property.  This relief 
was originally granted in 1990 based on the fact that one side abuts a cemetery and the 
petitioner would install 4’-6” high landscaped berms.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of September 2002 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at 
that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church, 760 W. Wattles, a three (3)- 
year renewal of relief to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high 
masonry-screen wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned 
property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  OAK MANOR, INC., 2316 JOHN R., for relief of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along the east and south areas of the 
parking lot where this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the requirement for a 4’-6” 
high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of their parking lot where 
they are adjacent to residential zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 
September 1985 based on the fact that the wall would serve no useful purpose in this 
area.  The property to the east is an apartment complex and the property to the south is 
a church.  This item last appeared before this Board in August 2005 and was postponed 
in order for the Building Department to publish a Public Hearing to consider making this 
a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Dale Garrett was present and stated he had nothing further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Oak Manor, Inc., 2316 John R., relief of the required 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall required along the east and south areas of the parking lot 
where this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

• Screening wall would serve no useful purpose in this area since it would screen 
other parking areas. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. 
BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
building for the Suma Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping, where Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 require 14,738 square feet 
of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) 
percent of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping 
must be located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt 
required by Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 
square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided, making the site deficient 5, 562 square feet.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 16, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to explore the possibility of an 
alternative plan indicating how much landscaping would be provided if the building were 
to be moved back 15’; or to show a revised plan displaying 11,867 square feet of 
landscaping with the E-P Zoned Section of the of property not taken into the landscape 
requirement.  New plans have been submitted moving the building back showing an 
increased amount of landscaping of 12,499 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that in going over the plans with Ms. High it was discovered that 
there were countable areas of landscaping, which are considered to be “hardscape”  
that were not included in the original estimate and should have been.  If the E-P Zoning 
is not taken into consideration, the total amount of landscaping required for this site is 
11,867 square feet.   
 
Ms. High was present and stated that she did not have any additional comments. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver (proposed 
address) for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma Medical 
Center that will result in 12,499 square feet of countable landscaping where Section 
39.70.04 requires 14,738 square feet of landscaping. 
 

• Alternate plan is considered to be a very good compromise. 
• Lot is difficult to build on because it is very narrow. 
• Without E-P Zoning taken into account, landscaping requirement is 11,867 

square feet. 
• Building will be in line with other buildings along Big Beaver. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KRIS HULLIBERGER, 1289 BEATTIE, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in lot coverage of 30.71%, 
where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance limits the total lot area covered by 
buildings to 30%. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The proposed addition would result in a 2,580 square foot 
structure on an 8,400 square foot lot.  This calculates out to a building area covering 
30.71% of the lot area.  Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance limits the total lot 
area covered by buildings to 30%. 
 
Kris Hulliberger was present and stated that when the subdivision was platted in the 
early 1970’s it was zoned R-1C with the open space requirement and the minimum lot 
size was 70’ x 120’, which is the size of this lot.  The City has changed the minimum lot 
size requirement to 70’ x 125’, which, if taken into consideration, would result in an 
increase of the footprint of buildings allowed on this lot. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why the petitioner wanted this addition.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that the 
home has an existing sun porch that has a poorly poured foundation that is actually 
pulling away from the house.  The Hullibergers plan to rip out that foundation and 
believe this would be an ideal location for an addition.  Mr. Fejes asked how many 
people live in this home.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that there are only two at this time. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had considered cutting the size of the addition so that a 
variance would not be required.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that they had, but with their 
objectives a smaller addition would not meet their needs.  They would end up with a 
master bedroom that would be approximately 11’ x 12 ½’ and would not meet the 
standards in Troy.  Mr. Courtney stated that the reason these lots were created small 
was so that they could have an open space in another area of the subdivision.  Mr.  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Hulliberger agreed with that statement, however, he feels that the City changed the 
Ordinance because they realized that these lots were too small. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large the living space of this home was.  Mr. Hulliberger stated 
that it was approximately 1,860 square feet, and that it was a three bedroom, 2 and ½ 
bath.  This addition would create three bedrooms and an office.  Mr. Kovacs asked if 
this office could be used as a bedroom and Mr. Hulliberger stated that it could.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked why Mr. Hulliberger needed to do this.  Mr. Hulliberger said that the 
addition would increase the master suite and add an office.  Mr. Hulliberger also said 
that he believes this hardship runs with the land because of the fact that the City has 
now changed the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney questioned the extra space away from the original footprint of the house.  
Mr. Hulliberger stated that it is approximately 2’ x 9’.  Mr. Courtney said that he had a 
problem with that section.  Mr. Hulliberger said that it would give the area high east 
windows, which would allow morning light in the master bedroom.  This area would 
create more openness in the room.  Mr. Courtney asked if they could survive without 
this 2’ and Mr. Hulliberger said that they could, however, it would not be as aesthetically 
pleasing.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Don Edmunds, 1304 Player, was present and stated that both he and his wife are in 
strong support of this request.  Mr. Edmunds is the President of the Golf Trail 
Homeowners and stated that the request is minimal and believes it will be a great 
improvement not only to this property, but also to the surrounding neighborhood.  Mr. 
Edmunds went on to say that Mr. and Mrs. Hulliberger maintain their home extremely 
well. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.    
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he thought this property would meet all setback requirements 
even with the addition and also said that he did not feel this would be over-building in 
any way. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the existing building and the proposed building addition meet all 
setback requirements because the setbacks that were in place when the subdivision 
was developed were applied to this request.  If the setbacks were applied as they were 
adopted when the lot size was increased, the addition would not meet the current 
setback requirements.   
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he did not feel this property would be over-built.  Mr. Courtney said 
that he did not have a problem except for the extra two feet. 
 
Ms. Gies stated that the extra two feet would make a larger difference to the size of this 
room and believes it would add to the look of the room. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to grant Kris Hulliberger, 1289 Beattie, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition that will result in lot coverage of 30.71%, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance limits the total lot area covered by buildings to 30%. 
 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause over-building of this property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. RICHARD RESS, 2608 
DEVONWOOD, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition and raised patio that 
will result in a 13.5’ side yard setback to the proposed addition and a 10’ side yard 
setback to the raised masonry patio.  Section 30.10.01 requires a minimum 15’ side 
yard setback in R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition and raised patio on the rear of their home.  Section 30.10.01 
requires a 15’ minimum side yard setback in R-1A Zoning Districts.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 13.5’ side yard setback to the proposed addition and a 10’ side 
yard setback to the raised masonry patio.  Mr. Stimac also said that this patio is 18” 
above the grade and includes a wall around the patio. 
 
Mr. Ress was present and stated that they wish to increase the size of the living room 
as well as the master suite.  They have discussed having Mrs. Ress’ parents moving in 
with them.  The patio will enhance the back yard and eventually they would like to add a 
hot tub.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the combined side yard setback in R-1A Zoning was.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the setbacks are 15’ minimum and a combined total of 30’.  Mr. Kovacs 
then asked what the side yard setback was on the other side of this home.  Mr. Ress 
stated that his home was 25’ from the lot line and an additional 18’ to the homeowner on 
that side of the property.   

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Richard Ress, 2608 Devonwood, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition and raised patio that will result in a 13.5’ side yard setback to the 
proposed addition and a 10’ side yard setback to the raised masonry patio where 
Section 30.10.01 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 15’ side yard setback in the R-
1A Zoning District. 
 

• Lot is irregular and makes conformance unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KIM CONNIFF, 2131 GULLIVER, for relief of 
the Ordinance to add a cantilevered bay off the rear of a house addition that is under 
construction, which will result in a 38.3’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires a 40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a cantilevered bay to an existing residence.  The site plan submitted indicates adding a 
cantilevered bay off of the rear of the house addition that is under construction, which 
will result in a 38.3’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.05 of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires a 40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Art Conniff was present  and stated that the bay window was approved at the time 
they submitted their plans for this addition.  They were told that they could use a window 
ledge and they would meet the setback requirement.  Rather than a window ledge, they 
want to be able to build all the way to the floor and therefore be able to utilize the space 
as living space. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large this bay would be and Mr. Conniff said that it was 2’ deep 
by 11’ wide. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Kim Conniff, 2131 Gulliver, relief of the Ordinance to add a 
cantilevered bay off the rear of a house addition under construction, which will result in 
a 38.3’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance request is minimal and amounts to 1.7 feet. 
• Variance applies only to the property in this application. 
• Variance will add a function to this space. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would make conformance unnecessarily 

burdensome. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac apologized to the Board regarding the oversight announcing Ms. Lori Grigg-
Bluhm’s presentation relating to exparte communication and other matters that would 
pertain to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  This presentation will be placed on the Agenda 
for the meeting of October 18, 2005, beginning at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked for copies of Chapter 39 regarding changes that have been made to 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, September 20, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Council. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Moved, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 16, 2005 with the following 
correction: 
 
Page #8, last paragraph, change the word “the” to “they” wanted to maintain….” 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES WITH CORRECTION CARRIED  
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #5 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve a three (3)-year renewal of Items #3 through #5 as suggested in 
the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  HANDLEMAN REAL ESTATE LLC, 500 KIRTS, 
for renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west 606’ 
of the northern property line where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief, granted by this 
Board, of the required 6’ high masonry-screening wall along their northern property line  

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
where it abuts residentially zoned land.  This relief was originally granted in 1984, based 
on the fact that the petitioner would be installing a berm with evergreen and deciduous 
plantings to screen the residential sites.  A portion of the property to the north has been 
rezoned to the C-F zoning classification and therefore the renewal of relief is only 
required for the west 606 feet.  This item last appeared before this Board in September 
2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Other than the change of 
adjacent zoning the conditions remain the same and there are no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Handleman Company, 500 Kirts, a three (3) year 
renewal of their variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along 
the west 606 feet of their northern property line where it abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• A berm with landscape is provided along the property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  F & R INVESTMENTS, 6050-6054 LIVERNOIS, 
for renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screen wall required along the north and east 
property lines where they abut residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by Board 
to have a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screen wall required along 
the north property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall along the east 
where the site abuts residentially zoned land.  The Board originally granted this relief in 
1989 when the second building was constructed.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in September 2002 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at that time.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of F & R Investments, 6050-6054 Livernois, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief to have a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screen 
wall required along the north property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall 
along the east where the site abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• There is existing vegetation along the east property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX 
CHURCH, 760 W. WATTLES, for relief to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu 
of the 4’-6” high masonry screen wall required where the parking area abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screen 
wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned property.  This relief 
was originally granted in 1990 based on the fact that one side abuts a cemetery and the 
petitioner would install 4’-6” high landscaped berms.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of September 2002 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at 
that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church, 760 W. Wattles, a three (3)- 
year renewal of relief to provide a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high 
masonry-screen wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned 
property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  OAK MANOR, INC., 2316 JOHN R., for relief of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along the east and south areas of the 
parking lot where this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the requirement for a 4’-6” 
high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of their parking lot where 
they are adjacent to residential zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 
September 1985 based on the fact that the wall would serve no useful purpose in this 
area.  The property to the east is an apartment complex and the property to the south is 
a church.  This item last appeared before this Board in August 2005 and was postponed 
in order for the Building Department to publish a Public Hearing to consider making this 
a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Dale Garrett was present and stated he had nothing further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Oak Manor, Inc., 2316 John R., relief of the required 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall required along the east and south areas of the parking lot 
where this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

• Screening wall would serve no useful purpose in this area since it would screen 
other parking areas. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. 
BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
building for the Suma Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping, where Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 require 14,738 square feet 
of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) 
percent of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping 
must be located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt 
required by Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 
square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided, making the site deficient 5, 562 square feet.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 16, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to explore the possibility of an 
alternative plan indicating how much landscaping would be provided if the building were 
to be moved back 15’; or to show a revised plan displaying 11,867 square feet of 
landscaping with the E-P Zoned Section of the of property not taken into the landscape 
requirement.  New plans have been submitted moving the building back showing an 
increased amount of landscaping of 12,499 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that in going over the plans with Ms. High it was discovered that 
there were countable areas of landscaping, which are considered to be “hardscape”  
that were not included in the original estimate and should have been.  If the E-P Zoning 
is not taken into consideration, the total amount of landscaping required for this site is 
11,867 square feet.   
 
Ms. High was present and stated that she did not have any additional comments. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver (proposed 
address) for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma Medical 
Center that will result in 12,499 square feet of countable landscaping where Section 
39.70.04 requires 14,738 square feet of landscaping. 
 

• Alternate plan is considered to be a very good compromise. 
• Lot is difficult to build on because it is very narrow. 
• Without E-P Zoning taken into account, landscaping requirement is 11,867 

square feet. 
• Building will be in line with other buildings along Big Beaver. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KRIS HULLIBERGER, 1289 BEATTIE, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in lot coverage of 30.71%, 
where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance limits the total lot area covered by 
buildings to 30%. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The proposed addition would result in a 2,580 square foot 
structure on an 8,400 square foot lot.  This calculates out to a building area covering 
30.71% of the lot area.  Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance limits the total lot 
area covered by buildings to 30%. 
 
Kris Hulliberger was present and stated that when the subdivision was platted in the 
early 1970’s it was zoned R-1C with the open space requirement and the minimum lot 
size was 70’ x 120’, which is the size of this lot.  The City has changed the minimum lot 
size requirement to 70’ x 125’, which, if taken into consideration, would result in an 
increase of the footprint of buildings allowed on this lot. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why the petitioner wanted this addition.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that the 
home has an existing sun porch that has a poorly poured foundation that is actually 
pulling away from the house.  The Hullibergers plan to rip out that foundation and 
believe this would be an ideal location for an addition.  Mr. Fejes asked how many 
people live in this home.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that there are only two at this time. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had considered cutting the size of the addition so that a 
variance would not be required.  Mr. Hulliberger stated that they had, but with their 
objectives a smaller addition would not meet their needs.  They would end up with a 
master bedroom that would be approximately 11’ x 12 ½’ and would not meet the 
standards in Troy.  Mr. Courtney stated that the reason these lots were created small 
was so that they could have an open space in another area of the subdivision.  Mr.  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Hulliberger agreed with that statement, however, he feels that the City changed the 
Ordinance because they realized that these lots were too small. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large the living space of this home was.  Mr. Hulliberger stated 
that it was approximately 1,860 square feet, and that it was a three bedroom, 2 and ½ 
bath.  This addition would create three bedrooms and an office.  Mr. Kovacs asked if 
this office could be used as a bedroom and Mr. Hulliberger stated that it could.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked why Mr. Hulliberger needed to do this.  Mr. Hulliberger said that the 
addition would increase the master suite and add an office.  Mr. Hulliberger also said 
that he believes this hardship runs with the land because of the fact that the City has 
now changed the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney questioned the extra space away from the original footprint of the house.  
Mr. Hulliberger stated that it is approximately 2’ x 9’.  Mr. Courtney said that he had a 
problem with that section.  Mr. Hulliberger said that it would give the area high east 
windows, which would allow morning light in the master bedroom.  This area would 
create more openness in the room.  Mr. Courtney asked if they could survive without 
this 2’ and Mr. Hulliberger said that they could, however, it would not be as aesthetically 
pleasing.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Don Edmunds, 1304 Player, was present and stated that both he and his wife are in 
strong support of this request.  Mr. Edmunds is the President of the Golf Trail 
Homeowners and stated that the request is minimal and believes it will be a great 
improvement not only to this property, but also to the surrounding neighborhood.  Mr. 
Edmunds went on to say that Mr. and Mrs. Hulliberger maintain their home extremely 
well. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.    
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he thought this property would meet all setback requirements 
even with the addition and also said that he did not feel this would be over-building in 
any way. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the existing building and the proposed building addition meet all 
setback requirements because the setbacks that were in place when the subdivision 
was developed were applied to this request.  If the setbacks were applied as they were 
adopted when the lot size was increased, the addition would not meet the current 
setback requirements.   
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he did not feel this property would be over-built.  Mr. Courtney said 
that he did not have a problem except for the extra two feet. 
 
Ms. Gies stated that the extra two feet would make a larger difference to the size of this 
room and believes it would add to the look of the room. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to grant Kris Hulliberger, 1289 Beattie, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition that will result in lot coverage of 30.71%, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance limits the total lot area covered by buildings to 30%. 
 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause over-building of this property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. RICHARD RESS, 2608 
DEVONWOOD, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition and raised patio that 
will result in a 13.5’ side yard setback to the proposed addition and a 10’ side yard 
setback to the raised masonry patio.  Section 30.10.01 requires a minimum 15’ side 
yard setback in R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition and raised patio on the rear of their home.  Section 30.10.01 
requires a 15’ minimum side yard setback in R-1A Zoning Districts.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 13.5’ side yard setback to the proposed addition and a 10’ side 
yard setback to the raised masonry patio.  Mr. Stimac also said that this patio is 18” 
above the grade and includes a wall around the patio. 
 
Mr. Ress was present and stated that they wish to increase the size of the living room 
as well as the master suite.  They have discussed having Mrs. Ress’ parents moving in 
with them.  The patio will enhance the back yard and eventually they would like to add a 
hot tub.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the combined side yard setback in R-1A Zoning was.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the setbacks are 15’ minimum and a combined total of 30’.  Mr. Kovacs 
then asked what the side yard setback was on the other side of this home.  Mr. Ress 
stated that his home was 25’ from the lot line and an additional 18’ to the homeowner on 
that side of the property.   

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Richard Ress, 2608 Devonwood, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition and raised patio that will result in a 13.5’ side yard setback to the 
proposed addition and a 10’ side yard setback to the raised masonry patio where 
Section 30.10.01 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 15’ side yard setback in the R-
1A Zoning District. 
 

• Lot is irregular and makes conformance unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KIM CONNIFF, 2131 GULLIVER, for relief of 
the Ordinance to add a cantilevered bay off the rear of a house addition that is under 
construction, which will result in a 38.3’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires a 40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a cantilevered bay to an existing residence.  The site plan submitted indicates adding a 
cantilevered bay off of the rear of the house addition that is under construction, which 
will result in a 38.3’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.05 of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires a 40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Art Conniff was present  and stated that the bay window was approved at the time 
they submitted their plans for this addition.  They were told that they could use a window 
ledge and they would meet the setback requirement.  Rather than a window ledge, they 
want to be able to build all the way to the floor and therefore be able to utilize the space 
as living space. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large this bay would be and Mr. Conniff said that it was 2’ deep 
by 11’ wide. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Kim Conniff, 2131 Gulliver, relief of the Ordinance to add a 
cantilevered bay off the rear of a house addition under construction, which will result in 
a 38.3’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
40’ rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance request is minimal and amounts to 1.7 feet. 
• Variance applies only to the property in this application. 
• Variance will add a function to this space. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would make conformance unnecessarily 

burdensome. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac apologized to the Board regarding the oversight announcing Ms. Lori Grigg-
Bluhm’s presentation relating to exparte communication and other matters that would 
pertain to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  This presentation will be placed on the Agenda 
for the meeting of October 18, 2005, beginning at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked for copies of Chapter 39 regarding changes that have been made to 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 9



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:31 p.m. on September 27, 2005 in the Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-147 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz announced that due to a personal matter, it might be necessary for him 
to exit the meeting occasionally to accept phone calls or leave the premises.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Strat requested that the Agenda be revised to include reports from those 
members who attended the Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) conference.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-09-148 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Wright asked that the September 13, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes reflect the 
following changes:  Agenda Item #10, ZOTA 218, page 10, 3rd paragraph and under 
the Good of the Order, page 13, last paragraph – Reverse the numbering of ZOTA 
218 and ZOTA 214.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-149 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 13, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Khan 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the September 20, 2005 BZA meeting. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the September 21, 2005 DDA meeting.  A Resolution to 
amend the boundaries of the Downtown Development Authority district, excluding 
the proposed Monarch Private Residences Planned Unit Development (PUD 4), 
was approved by the DDA.  Mr. Miller indicated the Resolution was very lengthy and 
detailed, and he would provide a copy to the members either by e-mail or at the 
next Study Session meeting. 
 
 

6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller requested that this item be deferred to the October 4, 2005 Special/Study 
Meeting.   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – 
Articles 04.20.00 and 10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-150 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby rescinds Resolution #PC-2005-
08-131, which resolved that the Planning Commission take no further action on 
ZOTA 214 until the State Legislature and the Governor have taken final action on 
HB 4398. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts questioned proposed language relating to a minimum square 
footage requirement for outdoor play areas.   
 
Chair Strat said the members have not had an opportunity to discuss in detail the 
proposed verbiage provided by the Planning Department.   
 
Mr. Vleck explained the procedure normally followed by the Planning Commission 
to reach consensus on proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.  Mr. Vleck 
said the members have not had time to reach a consensus on proposed verbiage 
for consideration and approval by the City Council, and noted that tonight’s Public 
Hearing was at the request of the City Council.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Chair Strat addressed the chart of Planning Commission actions, prepared by the 
Planning Department.  He said the chart could be misleading to the City Council in 
that it appears the Planning Commission studied the verbiage in detail and at great 
length.   
 
A brief discussion continued on the time the Planning Commission studied 
proposed verbiage.   
 
Mr. Khan asked why City Management changed its stance to a position of neutrality 
on group day care homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said initially City Management recommended that group day care homes 
not be permitted in residential areas because traffic statistics indicate that the 
impact of traffic generated from the number of trips to/from a group day care home 
would be beyond what normally occurs in a residential area.  After further study, 
City Management determined that although the traffic would have an affect on the 
health, safety and welfare of residents, it would not be an immediate or dangerous 
affect.  City Management decided group day care homes is a community value that 
needs to be determined via a recommendation from the Planning Commission and 
an ultimate decision by the City Council. 
 
Mr. Schultz said it is unfortunate that City Management had not shared their change 
of position on the matter prior to this evening in which the Planning Commission 
was dictated to have a Public Hearing and requested to send a recommendation to 
the City Council.   
 
Mr. Khan agreed. 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the number of responses received by the Planning Department 
in favor and in opposition to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment since 
the August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Mr. Vleck emphasized the procedure followed by the Planning Commission for 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments, and indicated the members have not 
had sufficient time to discuss the proposed text on group day care homes.  Mr. 
Vleck said, in his opinion, the members can either table the matter for further 
discussion and draft proposed text or send to the City Council a recommendation of 
no change to the Zoning Ordinance.  He stated he has read all the public comment 
provided to him by the Planning Department, and will read all public comment 
received thereafter.  
 
Mr. Schultz concurred with Mr. Vleck’s comments, and asked speakers at tonight’s 
Public Hearing to not repeat the same comments and information that was heard at 
the previous Public Hearing. 
 
Chair Strat announced guidelines that would be utilized for the Public Hearing due 
to the size of the audience and the possible number of people who might wish to 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

speak:  (1) a time limit of 3 minutes for each speaker and limited to speaking once; 
(2) repetitive comments are discouraged; (3) maintain professional image; and (4) 
no clapping.  Chair Strat designated Vice Chair Schultz as the timekeeper. 
 
Chair Strat asked the members for a vote of confidence on the guidelines 
established for the Public Hearing.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-151 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the procedures set forth for the Public Hearing. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Khan asked speakers to address specifically the proposed options and text 
prepared by City Management.  
 
Mr. Waller asked everyone to consider that tonight’s Public Hearing was called by 
City Management, not the Planning Commission; and reminded everyone that it 
was discussed at the August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting how the Planning 
Commission members were not prepared to vote on any proposed text.   
 
Chair Strat commented on the professional booklet received by child care providers 
and the information received both in support and opposition of the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment.  He said it is his opinion that the Zoning Ordinance 
would be amended, but it is necessary to review in detail the options prepared by 
City Management and regulations as relates to group day care homes.  Chair Strat 
asked speakers to address those issues.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer noted that the 
Planning Commission members have asked speakers to limit their comments to the 
proposed language, with no assurances that the proposed amendment would go 
forward.  He said that it is most likely that the Planning Commission members would 
still hear comments from speakers on the efficacy, validity and value of day care in 
Troy.   
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Childs highlighted 
statistics obtained from surveys distributed to group day care homes in Troy with 
respect to the number of families utilizing group day care, Troy residency, proximity 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

to residency, and outdoor play areas.  Ms. Childs said the State requires a total of 
400 square feet for outdoor play areas, not 400 square feet per child.  She cited 
several quotes of the Mayor relating to existing and future jobs, future plans and 
redevelopment and diversification of existing land uses.  
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs highlighted a 
recent U.S. Department of Treasury report relating to the composition of the labor 
force.  He addressed a Public Hearing held by the City of Farmington Hills Planning 
Commission with respect to day care providers, and quoted a comment from the 
City of Farmington Hills chairman, “Child care truly is not a business, it is a 
requirement of modern society.”  Mr. Childs commented on the City Management 
options as follows:  Option 2 is good; Option 3 is reasonable other than the required 
400 square feet of outdoor play area per child; and Option 4 should not even be an 
option.  Mr. Childs cited statistics from the Michigan State Police relating to crashes 
on major thoroughfares within the City of Troy.   
 
Kelsey Ciccone of 1336 Lamb Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Ciccone, 12 years old, 
and her sister attended the group day care home operated by Sharon Schafer, from 
birth to a year ago.  She asked the City to not take away the opportunity from other 
kids to have the love and attention that she and her sister had growing up at the 
Schafer home.   
 
Tom Mason of 929 E. Third Street, Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Mason spoke in 
support of group day care homes.  His children attend a home day care in Troy, and 
he and his wife are considering moving to Troy to be closer to the day care provider.   
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer addressed the 
options prepared by City Management, and noted that Option 1 is to stay “status 
quo” which would mean that group day care homes would be closed down.  She 
shared the accomplishments of her three children that she believes is a reflection to 
friends, neighbors, day care families and the Troy school district.  Ms. Schafer 
asked the City of Troy to have the vision to be leaders in the State of Michigan and 
show other cities that group day care homes are good for the State.   
 
Patricia Rencher of 208 Mack Avenue, Detroit, was present.  Ms. Rencher is the 
Vice President of Programs with the Detroit Urban League.  Ms. Rencher said the 
program is administered by the State of Michigan through the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture to insure proper nutrition is followed by the 200-plus licensed day care 
providers.  She noted that it is also their obligation to observe and report through 
announced and un-announced visits any violation of health and safety.  Ms. 
Rencher expressed support for group day care homes as a viable choice to parents.   
 
April Orselli of 894 Sylvanwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Orselli spoke in favor of 
group day care homes.  She said allowing group day care homes would promote 
the City’s motto.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duford addressed the original 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment, and said it was simple and should 
remain simple.  Ms. Duford said child care providers responded to the Planning 
Commission’s request for information in the form of a booklet based on facts and 
statistics that answered most of the Commission’s questions and concerns.  She 
noted that the Commission has heard from Troy residents who use child care 
services, Troy businesses, teachers, doctors and neighbors.  
 
Kara White of 22640 Wildwood, St. Clair Shores, was present.  Ms. White, Vice 
President of a Troy business, said it is very important for the City of Troy to have 
group day care providers as a day care option for businesses.  She indicated 
parents like to have their children cared for near their workplace.  
 
Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mohiuddin 
spoke in support of home day care providers.  He said home day care providers are 
not like typical commercial businesses, and have been recognized as legitimate 
home businesses by both the State and Federal governments.   
 
Sharon Manning of 2651 E. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Manning 
said there is a need for quality day care, and suggested that existing group day care 
homes be grandfathered in.  Ms. Manning asked that the proposed language 
address personal property taxes.  She informed the members that she is the only 
group day care provider who is assessed personal property taxes.   
 
Kathy McDonald of 196 Birchwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. McDonald addressed 
group day care homes in comparison to adult foster care homes with respect to 
traffic, employees, and noise.   
 
Deane Castilloux of 90 Chopin, Troy, was present.  Ms. Castilloux, a family day care 
provider, is strongly against grandfathering in existing group day care homes 
because it would eliminate her option to expand into a group day care provider, and 
could potentially jeopardize her business with respect to fees charged for care.  
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara compared 
traffic concerns related to group day care homes to the traffic generated from public 
schools located within residential subdivisions.  Mr. Komasara spoke in support of 
group day care homes.   
 

[Mr. Wright stated that the City has no control over public schools and cannot 
control the locations of public schools.] 
 
[Mr. Miller noted that the Zoning Ordinance requires schools to be located on 
major thoroughfares, but public schools are exempt from the Zoning 
Ordinance.] 

 
Barb Webb of 787 Marengo, Troy, was present.  It is her understanding that there is 
a 14% greater demand for infant child care in Oakland County than there are 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

centers to care for infants.  Ms. Webb asked that the members vote in favor of 
group day care homes. 
 
Ramzi Daloo of 2016 Connolly Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Daloo informed the 
members that his niece and nephew operate a day care center for approximately 
110 children in Farmington Hills.  His niece and nephew are very much in support of 
group day care homes.  Mr. Daloo asked that consideration be given to the young 
families moving into the City of Troy, as older residents choose to leave.   
 
John Bjelobrk of 5581 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bjelobrk, a neighbor 
of a home day care provider, asked that home day care providers respect the 
space, feelings, lifestyle and freedom of their neighbors.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he is not in receipt of information he requested from the State 
Building Department and Human Resources Department, and would like to study 
the item further.  Mr. Vleck said a Study Session, not a formal Public Hearing, is the 
proper format for review and discussion of the item.  
 
Mr. Khan addressed concerns with proposed language with respect to the 
requirement for outdoor play areas, employees, and site plan waivers.  Mr. Khan 
said he is not ready to vote on the item.   
 
Chair Strat said he personally is in favor of group day care homes, but recognizes 
that regulations must be stipulated in the Zoning Ordinance.  Chair Strat said the 
item is of priority and would be more appropriately studied at an informal Study 
Session.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-152 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan as provided in Public Act 207 of 1921 and Public 
Act 285 of 1931 and subsequent changes thereto provides for city planning and 
authorizes Planning Commissions and their powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission is empowered by the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to approve matters coming before it and recommend to City 
Council, where City Council holds that approval power for themselves. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, To hold a Public Hearing for ZOTA 214 at the 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting in December and to expedite necessary 
actions to study this item in the next Planning Commission Study Session in 
October due to the following reasons: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

WHEREAS, This Public Hearing was not initiated by the Planning Commission. 
 
WHEREAS, This Planning Commission is not ready to send any recommendations 
to the City Council regarding ZOTA 214. 
 
WHEREAS, Staff prepared the verbiage for the proposed ZOTA and the Planning 
Commission has had very limited discussion on the verbiage of the proposed ZOTA 
and a consensus as to any necessary changes to the ordinance language has not 
yet been reached by the Planning Commission. 
 
WHEREAS, Although there may be intent, the status of House Bill No. 4398 has not 
changed.   
 
WHEREAS, The previous Public Hearing held for by this Body was to get public 
information from both group day care operations and the neighbors within 300 feet 
from the existing group day care homes and use that information to help in the 
formation of any proposed ZOTA language. 
 
WHEREAS, According to the City of Troy Assistant Attorney, Allan Motzny, City of 
Troy Director of Building and Zoning, Mark Stimac, and the State of Michigan 
Construction Codes and Fire Safety Department, any building or structure or portion 
thereof that is used for education, supervision or personal care services for more 
than five children older than 2-1/2 years of age would be classified as a Group E 
occupancy and would require the inspection by a State or City Building Inspector 
before that building could be used for that purpose. 
 
WHEREAS, There is nothing within the child care licensing law that exempts these 
facilities from the Michigan Building Code provisions. 
 
AND WHEREAS, we would request that the Building Department will hold in 
abeyance any enforcement of the zoning laws regarding the existence of the group 
day care homes that are currently licensed and operating in the City until this matter 
has been resolved by the Planning Commission and the City Council. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Waller stated for clarification that the Public Hearing in December would be a 
new Public Hearing because the Chair tonight officially closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Chair Strat said the intent of the Public Hearing would be to get public input on 
detailed items relating to the proposed language. 
 
Mr. Waller said publication of the Public Hearing notice should carry with it all the 
language that has been developed to that point by the Planning Commission in their 
Study Sessions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat explained the procedure that would be followed by the Planning 
Commission for its Study Session and Public Hearing in December.  He said the 
proposed draft language would be prepared in advance of the December Public 
Hearing so the public could comment on the proposed language.  Chair Strat asked 
that public comment be limited at the Study Session so members can focus on the 
proposed language.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for comments and questions.  He addressed specific 
questions and comments posed by Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge, Troy; 
Curtis and Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy; and Michael Upton of 1267 
Hartland, Troy.   
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed draft language that is arrived at by a consensus of the 
Planning Commission would be made available to those who request it prior to the 
Public Hearing in December.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the two Public Comment portions listed on every Planning 
Commission agenda. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:56 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:13 p.m. 

___________ 
 
[Messrs. Schultz and Kulesza exited the meeting.]  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-09-153 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Schultz is excused from the balance of this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

8. REPORTS ON MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF PLANNING (MAP) CONFERENCE 
 
Planning Director Miller and Members Waller, Chamberlain and Khan provided brief 
reports on the Michigan Association of Planning conference. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items on the Agenda) 
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said it 
appears Planning Commission members and City Management have come around to 
understand the service provided by group day care homes.  She expressed her 
thanks and hopes the matter goes forward in a positive way.     
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs distributed additional 
information related to group day care homes.  He thanked City Management for their 
change to neutrality on the group day care matter. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Savidant shared a personal story on his attendance at a previous MAP conference 
held at Mackinac Island.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is anxious to receive requested information from various governmental 
agencies on group day care homes.  He noted it appears information can vary among 
governmental agencies.   
 
Chair Strat agreed.  He shared a development project he worked on with respect to 
different governmental agencies.   
 
Mr. Wright addressed potential traffic hazards as a result of the height of berms, especially 
at Big Beaver and Long Lake Roads.   
 
Mr. Waller suggested that Mr. Wright put his observation in writing. 
 
Messrs. Miller and Savidant provided a brief update on the proposed PUD 5, Caswell 
Town Center.   
 
Chair Strat commended the members and public for a professionally conducted meeting.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 27, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\09-27-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 28, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on September 28, 2005 at 7:00 
PM at Community Center in room 304, 3179 Livernois Road.  Nicole Vitale and Jessica 
Kraft called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico 
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft (co-chair) 
Jia (Lisa) Luo 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale (co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Nancy Morrison, Youth Director Troy Community Coalition 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2005-09-19 
 Moved by Joshi 
 Seconded by Kraft 

 RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 24, 2005 be approved. 
 Yes: All - 12 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 0  

 MOTION CARRIED 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through August meeting - To note and file 
4. Membership Update: Aswin Natarajan resigned.  City representative to review files 

and contact first alternate selected in April 2005 regarding interest in filling position. 
5. Visitor: 

 Nancy Morrison, Youth Director Troy Community Coalition– Presented 
information on the following topics: 

1. 7 Habits of Highly Effective Teens – Reviewed program 
2. Teens Taking Action – Provided details about group 
3. Youth Dialog Day – Requested feedback on program and asked 

Youth Council to be involved with Teens Taking Action (TTA). 
4. Naming of Teen Room in Community Center – Youth Council and  

Teens Taking Action (TTA) to work together to promote contest and 
select winner. 

5. Troy Spring Break – Asked for ideas and input from Youth Council. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 28, 2005 
 
 

 2

6. Troy Daze Festival Update 
 Review of attendance by Youth Council Members.  Report was reviewed and 

corrections to be sent to Community Affairs. 
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 No members absent 

  
8. Youth Council Comments - None 
9. Public Comments - None 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Jessica Kraft, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 
 

Following adjournment - took photos. 
 

Reminder Next Meeting: October 26th at 7:00 P.M. @ Lloyd Stage Nature Center 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 4, 2005 

Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7 pm in Conference Room C at troy 
City Hall 
 
Roll Call 
 Present:  Kelly Gu  Tom Kaszubski 
   Lulu Guo   Mark Pritzlaff 
   Michelle Haight Binny Samuel 
   Padma Kuppa Malini Sarma 
   Cindy Stewart, Staff Liaison  
 

Absent:  Amin Hashmi   Oneill Shah 
 
Motion to excuse absent members by A. Brodbine, Second by M. Haight.  
Approved unanimously 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Minutes from September 6, 2005 – Motion by A. Brodbine, second by P. Kuppa.  
Approved unanimously. 
  
 
Correspondence/Articles – nothing this month 
 
New Business 
 

a. Senior Citizens Project – approached by Senior Coordinator for a program 
to teach seniors about different cultures – how to get along. 
 
Idea to start in January – bring in speakers from variety of different 
countries.  
 
Ex. Use Mayada: Chaldean  
Padma/Anju/Dr. Shiva Sastry – India 
Flora/Charles – Chinese 
 
Cindy will get more specifics from Carla and email to board. 

 
b. EIAB Goals – board wants to revisit mission and goals at the November 

meeting.  Bring ideas and be prepared to discuss. 
 

November meeting revisit goals/mission and be prepared to discuss new 
ideas. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 4, 2005 

Old Business 
 

a. Sights & Sounds World Bazaar – We only have 10 vendors.  Consensus is 
to cancel this one and see if large room available in March to combine 
Sights and Sounds World Bazaar with Sights and Sounds of the World.  
Michele, Anju, Padma and Cindy will call vendors and see if they would be 
agreeable ore we can mail them back their checks. 

 
 

b. NCCJ and LINC Update 
 

The school district is on board with the proposal from NCCJ and LINC 
(Leadership in the New Century).  Tim McAvoy and Dr. Barb Fowler have 
spoken to all school principals and they are now recruiting students along 
with Troy Community Coalition – Teens Taking Action.  Next step is for 
NCCJ to put a formal proposal in writing for EIAB to review and forward to 
local businessman who will fund a diversity project dealing with youth.   
 
Tim planned on speaking with Deb and asking her to send EIAB the 
proposal. 
 
Board recommends that the EIAB student reps. and members of Troy 
Youth Council be involved. 

 
c. Resource Guide –  
 

Email to new members.  Also get to school counselors for all 7 school 
districts. 
 
Possible mini grant to help print this as a booklet on annual basis.  Get 
price on printing. 

 
d. Troy Daze – Recap 
 
If EIA Board cannot step forward to take over the set up and manning of 
booth, it should not happen.  Exposure is not good – hours long for small 
board to cover.  Consensus is to concentrate on one large special event per 
year. 
 
e. Law Brochure, Museum Brochure – give company info to Anju to follow up 

for prices. 
 
Misc:  Binny Samuel said he is not a US Citizen nor registered Troy voter.  The 
rule for Board & Committee membership is both US Citizen and registered Troy 
voter.  He said he understands.  Board will seek a replacement from City Council. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES OCTOBER 4, 2005 

Motion to Adjourn  
 
Motion by Brodbine, second by Pritzlaff to adjourn the Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board meeting at 8:10 pm.  Approved unanimously. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 4, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-154 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-155 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised and e-mailed on October 3, 2005 
from the Planning Department.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items: 
• Proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center 
• Rezoning Application Z 706 – South side of Long Lake Road, west of Calvert 

Drive, Section 14, from R-1C to CR-1 – Approved by City Council on 9/12/05 
• Joint DDA and City Council Meeting – October 17, 2005 
 
Mr. Waller mentioned the Crain’s article on Sterling Corporate Center (PUD 3).  The 
article states the development continues to seek tenants while it is on the market for 
sale.  
 
Mr. Schultz provided construction updates on Morton’s Restaurant and National City 
Bank (formerly Top of Troy) and reported the Maple Road improvements are 
completed. 
 
It was noted that the Ford & Earl Building, owned by the City’s Pension Board, is for 
sale.   
 
Chair Strat brought to the attention of the members that amendment of the Future 
Land Use Plan for the project area which includes the Rochester Road corridor, 
between South Boulevard and Square Lake Road, per City Council’s direction, is 
pending.   
 
Mr. Motzny reported that a lawsuit has been filed against the City on the Binson’s 
rezoning matter.   
 
 

4. REQUEST TO REVISE HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARIES – 3864 LIVERNOIS – 
Preliminary Report by Historic District Study Committee concerning the Brian and 
Mary Jean Wattles Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the information provided by the Historic Resources Study 
Committee on the request to revise the historic district boundaries for 3864 Livernois.  
 
Mr. Motzny reported that the Commission is not required to make a recommendation 
and noted the recommendation is advisory only.  Mr. Motzny stated that should the 
Commission wish to make a recommendation, State law does not mandate when that 
recommendation would have to come forward.  He said the Commission could make 
its recommendation prior to the Public Hearing and Final Report of the Historic District 
Study Committee.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

There was general consensus by the Planning Commission that this item did not need 
to come back for consideration following preparation of the Final Report. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-156 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission has no objection to removing the 
Parcel B of the Wattles property from the Historic District boundaries.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Articles 02.50.01, 
02.50.02, 02.50.03 and 02.50.04  Municipal Civil Infractions 
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the advantages in designating a violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance as a municipal civil infraction as opposed to a misdemeanor.  He said the 
penalties imposed on a municipal civil infraction might sound less stringent than those 
posed on a misdemeanor, but a municipal civil infraction would be a good 
enforcement tool.  Mr. Motzny said it is the recommendation of the Legal Department 
to set a Public Hearing for the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
A brief question and answer period followed.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-157 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission set a Public Hearing at the November 
29, 2005 Regular Meeting for proposed ordinance text to amend Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy, Sections 02.50.01, 02.50.02, 02.50.03, and 02.50.04, to be 
amended as put forward to the Planning Commission on this date.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

6. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller reviewed proposed revisions to the By-laws, as discussed at a previous 
meeting.  Mr. Waller suggested that the Planning Commission create a mission 
statement and vision statement.   
 
Items discussed were:   
• Creation of mission and vision statements; separate from By-laws. 
• Meeting schedule; reflect on City of Troy calendar.  
• Add to the Agenda format:  Approval of the Agenda.   
• Minimum number of votes [5] on City Council item. 
• Allocation of specific time limit [3 minutes] for speakers. 
• Interpretation and definitive clarification of “behavior”. 
• Description and responsibilities of new position titled “Controller”. 
• Provision for removal and re-election of officer position. 
• Farmington Hills Planning Commission handouts.  
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed a draft resolution to amend Resolution #PC-2005-09-152 that 
would resolve that a Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 relating to group day care homes 
could be held at either the November or December Regular Meeting.   
 
After a brief discussion, it was the consensus of the members to not amend 
Resolution #PC-2005-09-152.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed City Council Resolution #2005-10-466 that requests the 
Planning Commission set a Public Hearing to consider a proposed amendment to 
Chapter 39, Article 10.00, that would temporarily allow for child group day care 
homes in residential districts until 15 days after the Troy City Council has had the 
opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing on any proposed revisions to Chapter 39, 
Article 10.00.   
 
Mr. Motzny explained that the City Council is suggesting a moratorium, or a non-
enforcement of violation, for existing group day care homes by amending the 
Zoning Ordinance.  He indicated an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance would be 
the most appropriate procedure to follow.  
 
There was discussion on zoning ordinance language prepared by the Planning 
Department relating to the City Council’s request.  Discussion points were indicating 
a specific time after City Council action to allow the temporary enforcement 
moratorium and placing restrictions on the existing group day care homes.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-158 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission establish a Public Hearing on the 
October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting to discuss the temporary change to the 
ordinance regarding group day homes making them legal through a date specific 
after City Council action.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Kulesza exited the meeting at 9:00 p.m.] 
 
Discussion followed on items to address within the proposed draft zoning ordinance 
text amendment relating to group day care homes.  Comments solicited from 
around the table were:  
 
• Outdoor play area.  
• Parking for employees. 
• Traffic control. 
• Fencing. 
• Special Land Use permit. 
• Building Code compliance (State and Federal). 
• Noise control. 
• Safety of citizens. 
• Federal, State and ADA checklists. 
• Hours of operation. 
• Signage. 
• Distance requirement between day care providers and other State-regulated 

residential facilities. 
• Set parameter of State regulations within ordinance.  
• Less restrictive language for day care providers located on major thoroughfares. 
• Registration of day care provider with appropriate City department. 
• Annual inspection fee. 
• Ownership of property in which facility is operated (no rental property). 
• Operation of facility by property owner.  
• Approval process of existing group day care homes; i.e., grandfather clause, 

administrative approval, new approval. 
• Special Use Request fees and requirements – modify to specifically address day 

care providers.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items on the Agenda) 
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said she is 
appreciative of the time everyone is giving to group day care homes.  She addressed 
State licensing regulations, parking and safety concerns, the thoroughness and timing 
of State inspections, the intent of City inspections, State regulations on fencing and 
outdoor play areas, applying regulations to both family and group home day care 
providers, and compliance to the Michigan Building Codes.    
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer asked that 
consideration be given to creating an ordinance and zoning regulations that are 
general in nature and apply to all home child day care providers.  He encouraged the 
members to refer heavily to the State regulations in drafting ordinance language.  Mr. 
Schafer said it would be almost impossible for home day care providers to adhere to 
the regulations set by the Michigan Building Codes.  He said Troy has the opportunity 
to be the leader in providing ordinance language that protects the children, considers 
the neighbors and benefits the City.   
 
Chair Strat asked assistance from the home day care providers with issues such as 
noise abatement, parking safety, employee parking, etc.   
 
Mr. Schafer replied that they have shared and will continue to share their thoughts and 
suggestions to the City.   
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Childs addressed the 
outdoor play areas, compliance to the Michigan Building Codes as relates to the 
residential character of neighborhoods and across-the-board enforcement, State 
licensing regulations and inspections, neighbor concerns, signage, and the death that 
occurred in the Ann Arbor home day care facility.  Ms. Childs reminded the members 
that she has submitted statements from her neighbors who have no objections to the 
operation of her group day care home.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Comments were shared on the form based codes seminar held at the Michigan 
Association of Planning Conference.  Mr. Miller said he would provide copies of handouts 
that were distributed at the conference.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the zoning ordinance in relation to a development project in 
Dearborn – a car wash with a Starbucks drive-through.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review on the progress of the Troy Futures project.  
 
Chair Strat said he asked the Legal Department for clarification on the Municipal Planning 
Act, the City and Village Zoning Act, and the City Charter that will be discussed at a future 
meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\10-04-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 4, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-154 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-155 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised and e-mailed on October 3, 2005 
from the Planning Department.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items: 
• Proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center 
• Rezoning Application Z 706 – South side of Long Lake Road, west of Calvert 

Drive, Section 14, from R-1C to CR-1 – Approved by City Council on 9/12/05 
• Joint DDA and City Council Meeting – October 17, 2005 
 
Mr. Waller mentioned the Crain’s article on Sterling Corporate Center (PUD 3).  The 
article states the development continues to seek tenants while it is on the market for 
sale.  
 
Mr. Schultz provided construction updates on Morton’s Restaurant and National City 
Bank (formerly Top of Troy) and reported the Maple Road improvements are 
completed. 
 
It was noted that the Ford & Earl Building, owned by the City’s Pension Board, is for 
sale.   
 
Chair Strat brought to the attention of the members that amendment of the Future 
Land Use Plan for the project area which includes the Rochester Road corridor, 
between South Boulevard and Square Lake Road, per City Council’s direction, is 
pending.   
 
Mr. Motzny reported that a lawsuit has been filed against the City on the Binson’s 
rezoning matter.   
 
 

4. REQUEST TO REVISE HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARIES – 3864 LIVERNOIS – 
Preliminary Report by Historic District Study Committee concerning the Brian and 
Mary Jean Wattles Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the information provided by the Historic Resources Study 
Committee on the request to revise the historic district boundaries for 3864 Livernois.  
 
Mr. Motzny reported that the Commission is not required to make a recommendation 
and noted the recommendation is advisory only.  Mr. Motzny stated that should the 
Commission wish to make a recommendation, State law does not mandate when that 
recommendation would have to come forward.  He said the Commission could make 
its recommendation prior to the Public Hearing and Final Report of the Historic District 
Study Committee.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

There was general consensus by the Planning Commission that this item did not need 
to come back for consideration following preparation of the Final Report. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-156 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission has no objection to removing the 
Parcel B of the Wattles property from the Historic District boundaries.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Articles 02.50.01, 
02.50.02, 02.50.03 and 02.50.04  Municipal Civil Infractions 
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the advantages in designating a violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance as a municipal civil infraction as opposed to a misdemeanor.  He said the 
penalties imposed on a municipal civil infraction might sound less stringent than those 
posed on a misdemeanor, but a municipal civil infraction would be a good 
enforcement tool.  Mr. Motzny said it is the recommendation of the Legal Department 
to set a Public Hearing for the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
A brief question and answer period followed.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-157 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission set a Public Hearing at the November 
29, 2005 Regular Meeting for proposed ordinance text to amend Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy, Sections 02.50.01, 02.50.02, 02.50.03, and 02.50.04, to be 
amended as put forward to the Planning Commission on this date.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

6. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller reviewed proposed revisions to the By-laws, as discussed at a previous 
meeting.  Mr. Waller suggested that the Planning Commission create a mission 
statement and vision statement.   
 
Items discussed were:   
• Creation of mission and vision statements; separate from By-laws. 
• Meeting schedule; reflect on City of Troy calendar.  
• Add to the Agenda format:  Approval of the Agenda.   
• Minimum number of votes [5] on City Council item. 
• Allocation of specific time limit [3 minutes] for speakers. 
• Interpretation and definitive clarification of “behavior”. 
• Description and responsibilities of new position titled “Controller”. 
• Provision for removal and re-election of officer position. 
• Farmington Hills Planning Commission handouts.  
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed a draft resolution to amend Resolution #PC-2005-09-152 that 
would resolve that a Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 relating to group day care homes 
could be held at either the November or December Regular Meeting.   
 
After a brief discussion, it was the consensus of the members to not amend 
Resolution #PC-2005-09-152.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed City Council Resolution #2005-10-466 that requests the 
Planning Commission set a Public Hearing to consider a proposed amendment to 
Chapter 39, Article 10.00, that would temporarily allow for child group day care 
homes in residential districts until 15 days after the Troy City Council has had the 
opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing on any proposed revisions to Chapter 39, 
Article 10.00.   
 
Mr. Motzny explained that the City Council is suggesting a moratorium, or a non-
enforcement of violation, for existing group day care homes by amending the 
Zoning Ordinance.  He indicated an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance would be 
the most appropriate procedure to follow.  
 
There was discussion on zoning ordinance language prepared by the Planning 
Department relating to the City Council’s request.  Discussion points were indicating 
a specific time after City Council action to allow the temporary enforcement 
moratorium and placing restrictions on the existing group day care homes.    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-158 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission establish a Public Hearing on the 
October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting to discuss the temporary change to the 
ordinance regarding group day homes making them legal through a date specific 
after City Council action.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Kulesza exited the meeting at 9:00 p.m.] 
 
Discussion followed on items to address within the proposed draft zoning ordinance 
text amendment relating to group day care homes.  Comments solicited from 
around the table were:  
 
• Outdoor play area.  
• Parking for employees. 
• Traffic control. 
• Fencing. 
• Special Land Use permit. 
• Building Code compliance (State and Federal). 
• Noise control. 
• Safety of citizens. 
• Federal, State and ADA checklists. 
• Hours of operation. 
• Signage. 
• Distance requirement between day care providers and other State-regulated 

residential facilities. 
• Set parameter of State regulations within ordinance.  
• Less restrictive language for day care providers located on major thoroughfares. 
• Registration of day care provider with appropriate City department. 
• Annual inspection fee. 
• Ownership of property in which facility is operated (no rental property). 
• Operation of facility by property owner.  
• Approval process of existing group day care homes; i.e., grandfather clause, 

administrative approval, new approval. 
• Special Use Request fees and requirements – modify to specifically address day 

care providers.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items on the Agenda) 
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said she is 
appreciative of the time everyone is giving to group day care homes.  She addressed 
State licensing regulations, parking and safety concerns, the thoroughness and timing 
of State inspections, the intent of City inspections, State regulations on fencing and 
outdoor play areas, applying regulations to both family and group home day care 
providers, and compliance to the Michigan Building Codes.    
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer asked that 
consideration be given to creating an ordinance and zoning regulations that are 
general in nature and apply to all home child day care providers.  He encouraged the 
members to refer heavily to the State regulations in drafting ordinance language.  Mr. 
Schafer said it would be almost impossible for home day care providers to adhere to 
the regulations set by the Michigan Building Codes.  He said Troy has the opportunity 
to be the leader in providing ordinance language that protects the children, considers 
the neighbors and benefits the City.   
 
Chair Strat asked assistance from the home day care providers with issues such as 
noise abatement, parking safety, employee parking, etc.   
 
Mr. Schafer replied that they have shared and will continue to share their thoughts and 
suggestions to the City.   
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Childs addressed the 
outdoor play areas, compliance to the Michigan Building Codes as relates to the 
residential character of neighborhoods and across-the-board enforcement, State 
licensing regulations and inspections, neighbor concerns, signage, and the death that 
occurred in the Ann Arbor home day care facility.  Ms. Childs reminded the members 
that she has submitted statements from her neighbors who have no objections to the 
operation of her group day care home.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Comments were shared on the form based codes seminar held at the Michigan 
Association of Planning Conference.  Mr. Miller said he would provide copies of handouts 
that were distributed at the conference.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the zoning ordinance in relation to a development project in 
Dearborn – a car wash with a Starbucks drive-through.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review on the progress of the Troy Futures project.  
 
Chair Strat said he asked the Legal Department for clarification on the Municipal Planning 
Act, the City and Village Zoning Act, and the City Charter that will be discussed at a future 
meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 4, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\10-04-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
OCTOBER 5, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 5, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:10 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  T. House, member   
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   P. Hammond, member S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: A. Fuhrman, alternate EA  
   K. Gauri, member EA 
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate EA 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of  September 7, 2005 be approved.  Supported by 
Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Dave Lambert, Councilman, attended our meeting.  He brought information from the 
Michigan Municipal League convention regarding Boundless Playgrounds.  He 
suggested this Committee help in raising the funding needed to install one on City 
owned property.  Cost can range from $10,000 to $40,000  He suggested that Grusnick 
invite Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director, to our next meeting for her input. 
 
Burt will check the Boundless Playgrounds website for available grants.  Werpetinski will 
contact Kathy Davidsson, Interim Assistant Superintendent, Elementary Instruction, to 
determine when the meetings will be held detailing how the millage money will be spent. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
This Committee will be working on a formula for computing the number of handicapped 
parking spots necessary when a parking variance is requested from the City Council. 
 
We have a new member on our Committee, Peggy Hammond.   Welcome Peggy. 
  
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 10/17.   
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Grusnick will contact Barb Holmes, Deputy City Clerk, regarding feedback on 
 Appendix 2: Persons With Disabilities to be included in the instructions for poll workers.   
Some suggestions made were to offer sensitivity training to poll workers and signage. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
OCTOBER 5, 2005 

 2

 
 
Done called Cynthia Stewart to request someone sensitive to cognitive disabilities to 
join our committee. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
There are no renovations planned for the Library.  The Friendship Book Club has been 
temporarily moved to the 2nd floor while HVAC changes are being done. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Burt made a motion to include a category on the agenda to include a report from 
previous City Council meetings attended in that month.  House seconded. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:00 which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 5, 2005 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 5, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:10 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  T. House, member   
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   P. Hammond, member S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: A. Fuhrman, alternate EA  
   K. Gauri, member EA 
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate EA 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of  September 7, 2005 be approved.  Supported by 
Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Dave Lambert, Councilman, attended our meeting.  He brought information from the 
Michigan Municipal League convention regarding Boundless Playgrounds.  He 
suggested this Committee help in raising the funding needed to install one on City 
owned property.  Cost can range from $10,000 to $40,000  He suggested that Grusnick 
invite Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director, to our next meeting for her input. 
 
Burt will check the Boundless Playgrounds website for available grants.  Werpetinski will 
contact Kathy Davidsson, Interim Assistant Superintendent, Elementary Instruction, to 
determine when the meetings will be held detailing how the millage money will be spent. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
This Committee will be working on a formula for computing the number of handicapped 
parking spots necessary when a parking variance is requested from the City Council. 
 
We have a new member on our Committee, Peggy Hammond.   Welcome Peggy. 
  
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 10/17.   
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Grusnick will contact Barb Holmes, Deputy City Clerk, regarding feedback on 
 Appendix 2: Persons With Disabilities to be included in the instructions for poll workers.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 5, 2005 

 2

Some suggestions made were to offer sensitivity training to poll workers and signage. 
 
 
Done called Cynthia Stewart to request someone sensitive to cognitive disabilities to 
join our committee. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
There are no renovations planned for the Library.  The Friendship Book Club has been 
temporarily moved to the 2nd floor while HVAC changes are being done. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Burt made a motion to include a category on the agenda to include a report from 
previous City Council meetings attended in that month.  House seconded. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:00 which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 5, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, October 5, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
                                 Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 7, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JACOB SNABES, AVER SIGN COMPANY, 
1475 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant 
wall sign on the face of a building, on an area not occupied by the tenant. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 26 
square foot tenant wall sign on the face of 1475 W. Big Beaver on an area not occupied 
by the tenant.  Section 9.02.03 D of Chapter 78 states that each tenant may have one 
wall sign on the ground floor not to exceed 20 square feet in area and must be located 
on the face of the area occupied by the tenant.   
 
Mr. Boehling was present and stated that the present sign is hidden by trees and the 
new sign would make their space more visible.  Mr. Dziurman asked if the proposed 
sign was the same size as the existing sign and Mr. Boehling stated it was slightly 
larger. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the proposed sign would be placed.  Mr. Boehling said it 
would be moved from the second floor to the third floor. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the other tenants in the building were aware of this request and 
Mr. Boehling stated he didn’t know. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how many tenants were in the building and Mr. Boehling said he 
didn’t know. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he did not feel there was a hardship with this request.  Mr. 
Dziurman also asked what part of the building Charles Schwab occupied and Mr. 
Boehling stated they were on the first floor. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he did not feel he was given enough information to make a 
decision on this request. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jacob Snabes, Aver Sign Company, 1475 W. Big 
Beaver, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant wall sign on the 
face of the building, on an area not occupied by the tenant until the meeting of 
November 2, 2005. 
 

• To allow the other tenants in the building to be notified of this request. 
• To allow the owner of the building to be present regarding this request. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LAUREN BERNACKI, LEONARD 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 4401 TALLMAN, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to place 40 
off-site signs, to advertise a special event, where Chapter 78 limits the number of off-
site signs to four (4), and also to place two off-site signs 8 square feet in size, where 
Chapter 78 limits the size of off-site signs to six square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section 14.03 of Chapter 
78 to place 40 off-site signs at various locations throughout the city, 2.25 square feet in 
size, and two (2) additional off-site signs, each 8 square feet in size, to advertise a 
special event for the school PTO.  Chapter 78 limits the number of off-site signs to four 
(4).  Also the two off-site signs proposed to be placed at Rochester and Longfellow and 
Livernois and Randall are 8 square feet and exceed the size of six square feet allowed 
by Chapter 78. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
This item appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 6, 2004 and was 
granted a variance.  We have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac also explained that the Sign Ordinance has been changed and that there 
have been a number of changes.  Chapter 85.03.02, the Sign Ordinance, states that 
you may put up as many signs as you wish as long as they are only 6 square feet and a 
total on site of 14 square feet.  The number of days you may display signs is now 60 
days and the only variance needed by the petitioner is for the 8 square foot signs. 
 
Lauren Bernacki was present and stated that the 8 square foot signs will be placed on 
the day of the show on Livernois and Rochester Road.  She thought it may be difficult to 
reduce the size of these signs. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Lauren Bernacki, Leonard Elementary School, 4401 Tallman, relief of 
the Sign Ordinance to place two off-site signs 8 square feet in size, where Chapter 
85.03.02 limits the size of off-site signs to six square feet. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DIANE CLAEYS, TROY WOMEN’S 
ASSOCIATION, 4777 NORTHFIELD PARKWAY, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
place 100 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size, and one additional off-site sign, 8 square 
feet in size, for a period of 8 days to advertise a special event. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to place 
100 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size, at various locations throughout the city and one 
additional off-site sign, 8 square feet in size at Wattles and Northfield Parkway, for a 
period of 8 days from November 20th to November 27, 2005.  The purpose of the signs 
is to advertise a special event to be held at the Troy High School.  Section 14.03 of the  
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                           OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Ordinance limits the number of off-site signs to four, and the size of off-site signs to 6 
square feet.  Section 14.02 of the Ordinance permits off-site signs to be in place for a 
maximum 7- day period.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 6, 2004.  This 
request has been modified in that petitioner is now asking relief to place 100 off-site 
signs, rather than the 90 off-site signs used last year.  We have no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac also explained that once again based upon the new provisions of the Sign 
Ordinance, the only issue in front of this Board is the 8 square foot size of the one 
proposed off-site signs. 
 
Marilyn Johnson was present and stated that this request is basically the same as the 
request in 2004. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak informed the petitioner that if they were to comply with the restrictions 
regarding the maximum 6 square foot size of the signs, they would not have to appear 
before this Board for a variance. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Diane Claeys, Troy Women’s Association, 4777 
Northfield Parkway, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to place off-site signs, 8 square feet 
in size, for a period of 8 days to advertise a special event. 
 

• Maximum number of 8 square foot signs is limited to 2. 
• Signs will be placed out on the day of the event. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:52 A.M. 
       

 
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 5, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, October 5, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
                                 Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 7, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JACOB SNABES, AVER SIGN COMPANY, 
1475 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant 
wall sign on the face of a building, on an area not occupied by the tenant. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 26 
square foot tenant wall sign on the face of 1475 W. Big Beaver on an area not occupied 
by the tenant.  Section 9.02.03 D of Chapter 78 states that each tenant may have one 
wall sign on the ground floor not to exceed 20 square feet in area and must be located 
on the face of the area occupied by the tenant.   
 
Mr. Boehling was present and stated that the present sign is hidden by trees and the 
new sign would make their space more visible.  Mr. Dziurman asked if the proposed 
sign was the same size as the existing sign and Mr. Boehling stated it was slightly 
larger. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the proposed sign would be placed.  Mr. Boehling said it 
would be moved from the second floor to the third floor. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the other tenants in the building were aware of this request and 
Mr. Boehling stated he didn’t know. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how many tenants were in the building and Mr. Boehling said he 
didn’t know. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he did not feel there was a hardship with this request.  Mr. 
Dziurman also asked what part of the building Charles Schwab occupied and Mr. 
Boehling stated they were on the first floor. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he did not feel he was given enough information to make a 
decision on this request. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jacob Snabes, Aver Sign Company, 1475 W. Big 
Beaver, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant wall sign on the 
face of the building, on an area not occupied by the tenant until the meeting of 
November 2, 2005. 
 

• To allow the other tenants in the building to be notified of this request. 
• To allow the owner of the building to be present regarding this request. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LAUREN BERNACKI, LEONARD 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 4401 TALLMAN, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to place 40 
off-site signs, to advertise a special event, where Chapter 78 limits the number of off-
site signs to four (4), and also to place two off-site signs 8 square feet in size, where 
Chapter 78 limits the size of off-site signs to six square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section 14.03 of Chapter 
78 to place 40 off-site signs at various locations throughout the city, 2.25 square feet in 
size, and two (2) additional off-site signs, each 8 square feet in size, to advertise a 
special event for the school PTO.  Chapter 78 limits the number of off-site signs to four 
(4).  Also the two off-site signs proposed to be placed at Rochester and Longfellow and 
Livernois and Randall are 8 square feet and exceed the size of six square feet allowed 
by Chapter 78. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
This item appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 6, 2004 and was 
granted a variance.  We have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac also explained that the Sign Ordinance has been changed and that there 
have been a number of changes.  Chapter 85.03.02, the Sign Ordinance, states that 
you may put up as many signs as you wish as long as they are only 6 square feet and a 
total on site of 14 square feet.  The number of days you may display signs is now 60 
days and the only variance needed by the petitioner is for the 8 square foot signs. 
 
Lauren Bernacki was present and stated that the 8 square foot signs will be placed on 
the day of the show on Livernois and Rochester Road.  She thought it may be difficult to 
reduce the size of these signs. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Lauren Bernacki, Leonard Elementary School, 4401 Tallman, relief of 
the Sign Ordinance to place two off-site signs 8 square feet in size, where Chapter 
85.03.02 limits the size of off-site signs to six square feet. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DIANE CLAEYS, TROY WOMEN’S 
ASSOCIATION, 4777 NORTHFIELD PARKWAY, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
place 100 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size, and one additional off-site sign, 8 square 
feet in size, for a period of 8 days to advertise a special event. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to place 
100 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size, at various locations throughout the city and one 
additional off-site sign, 8 square feet in size at Wattles and Northfield Parkway, for a 
period of 8 days from November 20th to November 27, 2005.  The purpose of the signs 
is to advertise a special event to be held at the Troy High School.  Section 14.03 of the  
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            OCTOBER 5, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Ordinance limits the number of off-site signs to four, and the size of off-site signs to 6 
square feet.  Section 14.02 of the Ordinance permits off-site signs to be in place for a 
maximum 7- day period.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 6, 2004.  This 
request has been modified in that petitioner is now asking relief to place 100 off-site 
signs, rather than the 90 off-site signs used last year.  We have no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac also explained that once again based upon the new provisions of the Sign 
Ordinance, the only issue in front of this Board is the 8 square foot size of the one 
proposed off-site signs. 
 
Marilyn Johnson was present and stated that this request is basically the same as the 
request in 2004. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak informed the petitioner that if they were to comply with the restrictions 
regarding the maximum 6 square foot size of the signs, they would not have to appear 
before this Board for a variance. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Diane Claeys, Troy Women’s Association, 4777 
Northfield Parkway, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to place off-site signs, 8 square feet 
in size, for a period of 8 days to advertise a special event. 
 

• Maximum number of 8 square foot signs is limited to 2. 
• Signs will be placed out on the day of the event. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:52 A.M. 
       

 
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 

 4



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Oct. 6, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Oct. 6 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:10 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Marie Hoag, Member  
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Pauline Noce, Member excused, Jo Rhoads, Member excused 
    
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Millicent Evanoff 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-10-001 
Moved by Merrill Dixon  
Seconded by Bud Black  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Sept. 1, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed the Troy High construction, the Terrace Café at Athens High School 
and the possibility of Barbara Fowler becoming the new superintendent of schools. 
 
Millicent Evanoff announced a Comerica Bank seminar coming up at the Troy Community 
Center. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill reported that the Park Board did not meet in 
September, but he spoke to Carol Anderson who said that money is budgeted for the project.  
JoAnn would like to know if the matter has to go before council and if so, when, so members 
can attend.  David Ogg quoted a newspaper article stating that Sterling Heights just spent 
$10,000 to build bocce courts.  Merrill asked what the response has been to the Friday 
program at the Palace di Bocce.  Carla will check.  
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  JoAnn Thompson reiterated that many non-
profit groups do not have money for a caterer and are not using the caterer.  Therefore, 
allowing these groups to bring snacks in would have little effect on the caterer’s revenue.  
Emerald’s position that the groups who don’t have money can meet somewhere else, and thus 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Oct. 6, 2005 

2 

free up the rooms for groups that do have money, is not the way the Community Center should 
be run.  Stu Alderman commented last year that allowing groups to bring in snacks would 
decrease the City’s portion of Emerald’s revenue, but the Committee contends that this 
amount would also be negligible.   James Berar asked to see a copy of the contract so the 
committee can make specific suggestions for change.  Carla will provide copies for next 
month’s meeting. 
 
Handicap Parking:  Two members reported that the handicap parking was full again this 
morning at the east (banquet) entrance.  Carla reported that the building supervisor conducted 
a survey to check usage every day for two weeks at 9:30 a.m., 11:30 a.m., and 1:30 p.m.  At 
no time were all the spaces at the Community Center full, and the number of handicap spaces 
exceeds the number required.  Based on these findings, there does not appear to be a need to 
increase the number of handicap spaces.  Carla reported that TOPS, a large senior group, 
meets in room 303 every Thursday morning and that is probably why the spaces are full.  The 
committee discussed changing their meeting time to 1 pm.  Carla will check room availability 
and handicap parking availability at 1 p.m. 
 
Troy Daze:  Marie Hoag reported that the drivers did a great job.  They had bingo with lots of 
prizes and coffee and donuts, but no lunch.  Some had trouble finding the exact location of the 
event. 
 
New Business 
 
Annual Report:  The committee discussed the senior citizen program annual report for FY 
04/05, specifically the expenses for water aerobics, declining number for the lunches, and the 
newsletter distribution.   
 
Lunch Room Rules:  Carla handed out a copy of the lunch program rules that she proposes 
to post in the dining room so that seniors are aware of the policies.  Cheryl Wallace at Emerald 
Foods has reviewed these rules and is okay with everything except #8:  “You may bring treats 
into the dining room to commemorate a special event.   The site manager will serve the food.”       
She would like to limit this to one or two days per month.  The committee discussed this issue 
and would like to allow treats any day. 
 
Resolution # SC-2005-10-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Bud Black  
 
RESOLVED, That the Committee recommends leaving #8 worded as is. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Oct. 6, 2005 

3 

 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet in September.  
 
Medi-Go:   No report. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 180 people attended the SeniorNet open house – over 
twice the number as last year.  Both strength-training workshop where full with 30 participants 
in each and we will be offering a third workshop in October.  We will have a flu shot clinic at the 
Troy Community Center on November 1.  The merits of charging for the newsletter were 
discussed along with getting more information in the Troy Times.  Partnering with doctors to 
get our publicity in their offices was also discussed.    
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion from the bridge club 
requesting that they be able to bring in their own refreshments for their holiday lunch, and just 
buy the coffee from Emerald.  Last year, they spent over $400, and they do not have enough 
money for that.  Carla has told them that they may bring refreshments in to their meeting room 
(Rm. 504) but not a meal.  There were also two complaints about the bingo volunteer being 
bossy.  Carla will talk to her.    
 
Comments:  None 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:45 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 11, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-159 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Chamberlain is excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-160 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 27, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes 
as published. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 

Amendment to Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Boulevard, Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed PUD amendment.  Mr. Savidant reported that City Management has 
determined that the size and placement of the sign is not a health and safety 
concern, and it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to move the item 
forward to City Council for approval.   
 
The petitioner, Wayne Chubb of Hobbs & Black, 100 N. State Street, Ann Arbor, 
was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Littman asked how the size of the sign evolved into 276 square feet.  
 
Mr. Chubb said the development of the sign originated in January 2004, at which 
time it was determined by the City to use 100 square feet as a basis for the design 
because there was no defining ordinance for PUD signage.  He explained the 
interpretation of the 100 square feet at that time was the area within the boundaries 
of the letters, and the sign evolved based on the size of the site, the proportion of 
the building from the front of the property and the speed of traffic along Rochester 
Road.  Mr. Chubb indicated that the berm along Rochester Road also played a 
large part in the placement and size of the sign.  Mr. Chubb confirmed that the sign 
is a backlit changeable letter sign and not an LED sign.  He said to his knowledge 
the church does not intend to ever have an LED sign.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-161 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The Final Plan and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, 
pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development known as PUD 1, located on the east 
side of Rochester Road and south of South Boulevard, in Section 2, within the R-1D 
zoning district, being 89.83 acres in size, was approved by City Council on June 2, 
2003; 
 
WHEREAS, Woodside Bible Church has submitted the Second Amendment to 
Development Agreement for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD, Sheet A-
065, Site Sign Plan and Details, for consideration and recommendation by the 
Planning Commission; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to City Council that the Second Amendment to Development 
Agreement for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD be granted, for the 
following reasons:  
 
1. The larger sign is required because of the berm that is located at the front of the 

property. 
2. The sign does not pose a health or safety concern. 
3. The petitioner is adding an additional 70 trees to the development. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that Sheet A-065, Site Sign Plan and Details, be added to the Final Plan of 
Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan asked if a clause could be added to the motion to hold the City harmless 
of any liability in the event of an accident because the petitioner is not complying 
with the required setback.   
 
Mr. Motzny said there is no reason that the Planning Commission could not have 
such a provision. 
 
Mr. Waller stated that particular thinking would create a slippery slope for the City.  
He said there are a series of signs adjacent to the subject location at varying 
distances less than the required 10-foot setback.  
 
A brief discussion followed on providing a clause to hold the City harmless of 
liability.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck noted that the Northwyck Condominium signage is at the same distance 
from the right-of-way as the church sign.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Northwyck Condominium signage was included in the approval 
process of the PUD package, but the church did not indicate an actual design of 
their sign.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would be more comfortable if the sign was approved with the 
current lettering and lighting configuration.  He said an active LED sign of that size 
and near proximity to Rochester Road would be extremely distracting.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-162 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to approve the sign with its current 
lettering and lighting configuration and, if the message board is changed in the 
future, that shall constitute another amendment to the PUD and the owners shall 
come back before this body for approval before the sign is changed.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor as amended. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-161 (as amended by Resolution #PC 2005-10-162) 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Littman, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Khan wanted a hold harmless clause in the motion. 
 
Mr. Littman agreed that a hold harmless clause would be good and should be 
considered in the future for similar situations.  Mr. Littman stated the main reason 
for his negative vote is that a good explanation was not provided for the deviation in 
the sign design.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Messrs. Khan and Littman.  Mr. Wright said 
he is very upset that the petitioner erected the sign without approval from the City.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Waller asked the Legal Department to advise the Planning Commission when a 
hold harmless clause would be appropriate and the wording of such a clause should 
there be merit to consider one in future actions.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the Planning Department would request the petitioner to put in 
writing when specifically the rooftop mechanical equipment would be screened per 
ordinance, as stated in their letter of July 5, 2005.   
 
Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative.  He said to his knowledge the development 
has received only a temporary certificate of occupancy.   
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 920) – Proposed Troy Retail Center (formerly Cranbrook 
Plaza), North side of Maple, West side of Dequindre, Section 25 – B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the petitioner has requested to table the item to the 
November Regular Meeting.  The petitioner would like additional time to complete 
the required information requested by the Planning Department.   
 
The petitioner was not present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-163 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for SP 920 for the Proposed Troy 
Retail Center, located on the north side of Maple and west of Dequindre, in Section 
25, is postponed to the January 10, 2006 Regular Planning Commission Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping Center 
(to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of Rochester Road 
and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – From B-1 (Local 
Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  He referenced communication from the Director of Building and 
Zoning that provides an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance as relates to B-1 and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

B-2 zoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Marc Swoish of Purtan & Swoish, P.C., 4198 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Swoish said the rezoning change would 
have no dramatic affect on anyone in the City.  He said the rezoning would allow 
Marshall’s Music to move from its existing location in Troy, resulting in a long-time 
vacant space being leased and a viable tenant remaining in the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Mr. Schultz asked what zoning district the existing Marshall’s Music store is in. 
 
Mr. Miller said he did not know off-hand but would look it up.   
 
Mr. Schultz referenced the interpretation of the Director of Building and Zoning, 
specifically his comment that Section 20.10.00 states that B-1 zoning was 
established for “day-to-day convenience, shopping and service needs of persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas.”  Mr. Schultz questioned how Marshall’s 
Music, a local business, would not be appropriate when there are two national chain 
stores currently existing in the retail center.  He said rezoning from B-1 to B-2 would 
further the inconsistency of the Future Land Use Plan, and he believes that 
Marshall’s Music is equally consistent in the local business zone as is Kinko’s, 
Blockbuster Video and the florist shop.  Mr. Schultz suggested the petitioner apply 
to the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance, 
and the Planning Commission hold the rezoning request in an open state until the 
end of the month.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed that the existing stores at that location are not local businesses 
but city-wide businesses, and said Marshall’s Music should fall under the same 
classification.   Mr. Wright said he lives on the other side of Troy and frequents the 
various stores in the shopping center.   
 
Chair Strat agreed.  He also frequents Kinko’s and lives on the opposite side of the 
city.   
 
Mr. Littman noted people from afar and wide frequented a very well known wine 
shop previously located in the retail center.  Mr. Littman cited an unattended 
consequence from the proposed rezoning would be that the entire shopping center 
is bought and developed into something undesirable by the City.  He said he would 
support Marshall’s Music going in the location by a means other than rezoning.   
 
Mr. Swoish said discussions with the City led him to believe that the rezoning 
process would be the most expeditious process to take as well as provide more 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

consistent zoning for the entire retail center.  Mr. Swoish said he respectfully 
disagrees with the original ruling that Marshall’s Music is not a B-1 use.   
 
Discussion followed on the scheduling of the rezoning request through the approval 
process of City Council, and the time frame to obtain an interpretation from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Waller said consideration should be given to the reasonableness of having a 
consistent zoning classification for the whole corner.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the allowable uses and required setbacks in B-2 zoning. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-164 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission disagrees with the Building and Zoning 
Department’s interpretation of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance related to musical 
instrument sales, rental, service and/or musical instruction.  These uses fall within 
the category of specialty shops (Section 20.20.02) and personal service 
establishments (Section 20.20.03), which are both uses permitted by right in the B-1 
Local Business Zoning District.  The Planning Commission requests that the 
applicant seek an interpretation from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Future Land Use Plan classifies the parcel 
as Low Rise Office.  Neither the existing B-1 zoning district nor the proposed B-2 
zoning district is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  Prior to considering a 
rezoning request that is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan, the Planning 
Commission prefers that the applicant attempt to solve this use issue without 
rezoning the property.  The Planning Commission would respectfully request that 
the Board of Zoning Appeals review this subject during its meeting scheduled for 
October 18, 2005. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being approximately 
2.7 acres in size, be tabled to the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman said he would prefer to have the item go to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
for an interpretation.   
 
Chair Strat suggested that the request to be placed on the BZA agenda come directly 
from Marshall’s Music.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Miller noted the original communication to/from the Director of Building and Zoning 
was with the President of Marshall’s Music Company; the second communication was 
with the representing attorney.   
 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Mr. Littman said there is a slim chance for the request to get on the October BZA 
meeting agenda.  He would prefer that the request be handled through the BZA.   
 
Mr. Schultz said nothing in the motion precludes the BZA from acting on the matter at 
its November meeting should it not make the October agenda.  Mr. Schultz said the 
timing still provides the Planning Commission to take action at its October 25 
Special/Study Meeting should it be necessary.  
 
Chair Strat asked what would happen if the Planning Commission took action on the 
rezoning request at the same time the petitioner seeks an interpretation from the BZA.  
 
Mr. Motzny said the petitioner would have time to withdraw the rezoning request 
before City Council action, should the BZA overrule the Building Department decision.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has no problem rezoning the property to B-2. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has no problem rezoning the property to B-2, but would like to get 
the BZA’s interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said he is familiar with the reason that Marshall’s Music wants to move 
the store location.  He questioned the impact any delay in the rezoning process or 
BZA action would have on the music class schedule.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:35 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:44 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 922) – Proposed Rochester Maples Condominium, West 
side of Rochester Road, between I-75 and Maple Road, Section 27 – R-1T (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed condominium development.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted 
with the condition that the 8-foot sidewalk on the west side of Rochester Road be 
extended to the southern project limits.  The Planning Department encouraged the 
applicant to utilize green techniques in the proposed development.   
 
James Butler of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Butler provided a front elevation of the 
development and indicated that 240 trees would be planted on the site.   
 
Innovative “green” technology was discussed with respect to emergency vehicle 
access (EVA) surface and storm water retention.   
 
There was discussion on visitor parking and off-street parking.  It was determined to 
move the watermain and sanitary sewers to the same side of the street as the fire 
hydrants, which would provide additional off-street parking spaces.  Mr. Butler said 
he would provide as much parking as possible.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the sidewalk appears to stop at the last unit on the court, and said it 
would make more sense to continue the sidewalk around the court.   
 
Mr. Butler confirmed the sidewalk ends, but connection to the sidewalk on the west 
side can be made after crossing over.  Mr. Butler acknowledged an oversight on the 
plan and said the sidewalk on the west side should connect to the last driveway.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-165 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Rochester Maples Condominium, located on the west side of Rochester, between I-



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

75 and Maple Road, in Section 27, containing 42 units on approximately 8.32 acres, 
within the R-1T zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot sidewalk on the west side of Rochester Road is connected to the 

southern project limits.  
2. The fire hydrants and watermains are moved to the west side of Pennington 

Avenue, which would allow parking on the other side. 
3. A painted crosswalk is created at the end of the west sidewalk to the 

opposite [east] sidewalk to allow direction for people to cross to use the 
sidewalks. 

4. The hard surface of the emergency vehicle access (EVA) is some form of 
permeable concrete or paver bricks or something.   

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck would like the sidewalk to continue all the way around the court. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of the information provided to the members prior to 
tonight’s meeting.  He apologized and said the material was not provided earlier due 
to an internal glitch in the Planning Department.  
 
Items briefly discussed were: 
• Areas of purview. 
• Ordinance recently approved by the City of Farmington Hills.   
• Communication from Director of Building and Zoning relating to applicable 

Michigan Building Codes.  
• Resources of professional City staff. 
• Michigan Municipal League (MML) assistance as relates to inconsistencies 

between the State laws and City regulations.   
• Review process of Michigan Building Codes. 
 
Mr. Vleck requested inclusion of the following items to the list of discussion topics.  
• Drop-off areas in relationship to other residences (side door entrances). 
• Fire safety; multiple points of ingress and egress. 
• Setbacks from other residences. 
• Approval process as relates to inspections by City officials. 
• Approval process; City approval before State approval, or vice versa.   
• Notification of incidents, accidents, illnesses or injuries.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
direction of Councilwoman Beltramini’s communication relating to State ordinances 
and the Public Hearing notification relating to ZOTA 214 for the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Schafer requested a copy of the material provided to the 
members inclusive of the list of concerns.  
 
Chair Strat explained that the actual text for a proposed zoning ordinance amendment 
is not published in a Public Hearing notification.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs encouraged 
members to review the City of Livonia ordinance on residential child day care and 
addressed proposed changes in State licensing regulations.  He also requested a 
copy of the material provided to the members this evening, and thanked City 
Management for working with the State on the building codes.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to discuss the matter at the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting so they would have the opportunity to review the material 
that was provided by the Planning Department prior to tonight’s meeting.   
 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
This item was not discussed. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on the Agenda. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Kulesza offered his assistance in research work on the residential child day care issue. 
 
Mr. Miller referenced the proposed PUD 5 Caswell Town Center booklet distributed to 
members, and asked consideration in getting the matter on a study session agenda 
quickly.  He apologized again for not providing the members time to review the information 
on group day care homes.  Mr. Miller addressed the handout relating to the masonry 
ordinance case study in Canton Township.  He reminded members that review and 
discussion on a potential amendment to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to 
Rochester Road would be lengthy.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Chair Strat said he would like to dedicate a full Special/Study Meeting to review the 
proposed PUD 5.  He reminded members who attended the formed base code seminar at 
the annual MAP conference to be ready to discuss it at the next meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\10-11-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on October 11, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-159 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Chamberlain is excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-160 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 27, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes 
as published. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 

Amendment to Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Boulevard, Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed PUD amendment.  Mr. Savidant reported that City Management has 
determined that the size and placement of the sign is not a health and safety 
concern, and it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to move the item 
forward to City Council for approval.   
 
The petitioner, Wayne Chubb of Hobbs & Black, 100 N. State Street, Ann Arbor, 
was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Littman asked how the size of the sign evolved into 276 square feet.  
 
Mr. Chubb said the development of the sign originated in January 2004, at which 
time it was determined by the City to use 100 square feet as a basis for the design 
because there was no defining ordinance for PUD signage.  He explained the 
interpretation of the 100 square feet at that time was the area within the boundaries 
of the letters, and the sign evolved based on the size of the site, the proportion of 
the building from the front of the property and the speed of traffic along Rochester 
Road.  Mr. Chubb indicated that the berm along Rochester Road also played a 
large part in the placement and size of the sign.  Mr. Chubb confirmed that the sign 
is a backlit changeable letter sign and not an LED sign.  He said to his knowledge 
the church does not intend to ever have an LED sign.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-161 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The Final Plan and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, 
pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development known as PUD 1, located on the east 
side of Rochester Road and south of South Boulevard, in Section 2, within the R-1D 
zoning district, being 89.83 acres in size, was approved by City Council on June 2, 
2003; 
 
WHEREAS, Woodside Bible Church has submitted the Second Amendment to 
Development Agreement for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD, Sheet A-
065, Site Sign Plan and Details, for consideration and recommendation by the 
Planning Commission; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to City Council that the Second Amendment to Development 
Agreement for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD be granted, for the 
following reasons:  
 
1. The larger sign is required because of the berm that is located at the front of the 

property. 
2. The sign does not pose a health or safety concern. 
3. The petitioner is adding an additional 70 trees to the development. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that Sheet A-065, Site Sign Plan and Details, be added to the Final Plan of 
Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan asked if a clause could be added to the motion to hold the City harmless 
of any liability in the event of an accident because the petitioner is not complying 
with the required setback.   
 
Mr. Motzny said there is no reason that the Planning Commission could not have 
such a provision. 
 
Mr. Waller stated that particular thinking would create a slippery slope for the City.  
He said there are a series of signs adjacent to the subject location at varying 
distances less than the required 10-foot setback.  
 
A brief discussion followed on providing a clause to hold the City harmless of 
liability.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck noted that the Northwyck Condominium signage is at the same distance 
from the right-of-way as the church sign.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Northwyck Condominium signage was included in the approval 
process of the PUD package, but the church did not indicate an actual design of 
their sign.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would be more comfortable if the sign was approved with the 
current lettering and lighting configuration.  He said an active LED sign of that size 
and near proximity to Rochester Road would be extremely distracting.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-162 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to approve the sign with its current 
lettering and lighting configuration and, if the message board is changed in the 
future, that shall constitute another amendment to the PUD and the owners shall 
come back before this body for approval before the sign is changed.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor as amended. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-161 (as amended by Resolution #PC 2005-10-162) 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Khan, Littman, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Khan wanted a hold harmless clause in the motion. 
 
Mr. Littman agreed that a hold harmless clause would be good and should be 
considered in the future for similar situations.  Mr. Littman stated the main reason 
for his negative vote is that a good explanation was not provided for the deviation in 
the sign design.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Messrs. Khan and Littman.  Mr. Wright said 
he is very upset that the petitioner erected the sign without approval from the City.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Waller asked the Legal Department to advise the Planning Commission when a 
hold harmless clause would be appropriate and the wording of such a clause should 
there be merit to consider one in future actions.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the Planning Department would request the petitioner to put in 
writing when specifically the rooftop mechanical equipment would be screened per 
ordinance, as stated in their letter of July 5, 2005.   
 
Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative.  He said to his knowledge the development 
has received only a temporary certificate of occupancy.   
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 920) – Proposed Troy Retail Center (formerly Cranbrook 
Plaza), North side of Maple, West side of Dequindre, Section 25 – B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the petitioner has requested to table the item to the 
November Regular Meeting.  The petitioner would like additional time to complete 
the required information requested by the Planning Department.   
 
The petitioner was not present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-163 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for SP 920 for the Proposed Troy 
Retail Center, located on the north side of Maple and west of Dequindre, in Section 
25, is postponed to the January 10, 2006 Regular Planning Commission Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping Center 
(to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of Rochester Road 
and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – From B-1 (Local 
Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  He referenced communication from the Director of Building and 
Zoning that provides an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance as relates to B-1 and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

B-2 zoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Marc Swoish of Purtan & Swoish, P.C., 4198 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Swoish said the rezoning change would 
have no dramatic affect on anyone in the City.  He said the rezoning would allow 
Marshall’s Music to move from its existing location in Troy, resulting in a long-time 
vacant space being leased and a viable tenant remaining in the City.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
 
Mr. Schultz asked what zoning district the existing Marshall’s Music store is in. 
 
Mr. Miller said he did not know off-hand but would look it up.   
 
Mr. Schultz referenced the interpretation of the Director of Building and Zoning, 
specifically his comment that Section 20.10.00 states that B-1 zoning was 
established for “day-to-day convenience, shopping and service needs of persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas.”  Mr. Schultz questioned how Marshall’s 
Music, a local business, would not be appropriate when there are two national chain 
stores currently existing in the retail center.  He said rezoning from B-1 to B-2 would 
further the inconsistency of the Future Land Use Plan, and he believes that 
Marshall’s Music is equally consistent in the local business zone as is Kinko’s, 
Blockbuster Video and the florist shop.  Mr. Schultz suggested the petitioner apply 
to the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance, 
and the Planning Commission hold the rezoning request in an open state until the 
end of the month.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed that the existing stores at that location are not local businesses 
but city-wide businesses, and said Marshall’s Music should fall under the same 
classification.   Mr. Wright said he lives on the other side of Troy and frequents the 
various stores in the shopping center.   
 
Chair Strat agreed.  He also frequents Kinko’s and lives on the opposite side of the 
city.   
 
Mr. Littman noted people from afar and wide frequented a very well known wine 
shop previously located in the retail center.  Mr. Littman cited an unattended 
consequence from the proposed rezoning would be that the entire shopping center 
is bought and developed into something undesirable by the City.  He said he would 
support Marshall’s Music going in the location by a means other than rezoning.   
 
Mr. Swoish said discussions with the City led him to believe that the rezoning 
process would be the most expeditious process to take as well as provide more 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

consistent zoning for the entire retail center.  Mr. Swoish said he respectfully 
disagrees with the original ruling that Marshall’s Music is not a B-1 use.   
 
Discussion followed on the scheduling of the rezoning request through the approval 
process of City Council, and the time frame to obtain an interpretation from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Waller said consideration should be given to the reasonableness of having a 
consistent zoning classification for the whole corner.   
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the allowable uses and required setbacks in B-2 zoning. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-164 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission disagrees with the Building and Zoning 
Department’s interpretation of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance related to musical 
instrument sales, rental, service and/or musical instruction.  These uses fall within 
the category of specialty shops (Section 20.20.02) and personal service 
establishments (Section 20.20.03), which are both uses permitted by right in the B-1 
Local Business Zoning District.  The Planning Commission requests that the 
applicant seek an interpretation from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Future Land Use Plan classifies the parcel 
as Low Rise Office.  Neither the existing B-1 zoning district nor the proposed B-2 
zoning district is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  Prior to considering a 
rezoning request that is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan, the Planning 
Commission prefers that the applicant attempt to solve this use issue without 
rezoning the property.  The Planning Commission would respectfully request that 
the Board of Zoning Appeals review this subject during its meeting scheduled for 
October 18, 2005. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being approximately 
2.7 acres in size, be tabled to the October 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman said he would prefer to have the item go to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
for an interpretation.   
 
Chair Strat suggested that the request to be placed on the BZA agenda come directly 
from Marshall’s Music.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Miller noted the original communication to/from the Director of Building and Zoning 
was with the President of Marshall’s Music Company; the second communication was 
with the representing attorney.   
 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Mr. Littman said there is a slim chance for the request to get on the October BZA 
meeting agenda.  He would prefer that the request be handled through the BZA.   
 
Mr. Schultz said nothing in the motion precludes the BZA from acting on the matter at 
its November meeting should it not make the October agenda.  Mr. Schultz said the 
timing still provides the Planning Commission to take action at its October 25 
Special/Study Meeting should it be necessary.  
 
Chair Strat asked what would happen if the Planning Commission took action on the 
rezoning request at the same time the petitioner seeks an interpretation from the BZA.  
 
Mr. Motzny said the petitioner would have time to withdraw the rezoning request 
before City Council action, should the BZA overrule the Building Department decision.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has no problem rezoning the property to B-2. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has no problem rezoning the property to B-2, but would like to get 
the BZA’s interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said he is familiar with the reason that Marshall’s Music wants to move 
the store location.  He questioned the impact any delay in the rezoning process or 
BZA action would have on the music class schedule.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:35 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:44 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 922) – Proposed Rochester Maples Condominium, West 
side of Rochester Road, between I-75 and Maple Road, Section 27 – R-1T (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed condominium development.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted 
with the condition that the 8-foot sidewalk on the west side of Rochester Road be 
extended to the southern project limits.  The Planning Department encouraged the 
applicant to utilize green techniques in the proposed development.   
 
James Butler of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Butler provided a front elevation of the 
development and indicated that 240 trees would be planted on the site.   
 
Innovative “green” technology was discussed with respect to emergency vehicle 
access (EVA) surface and storm water retention.   
 
There was discussion on visitor parking and off-street parking.  It was determined to 
move the watermain and sanitary sewers to the same side of the street as the fire 
hydrants, which would provide additional off-street parking spaces.  Mr. Butler said 
he would provide as much parking as possible.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the sidewalk appears to stop at the last unit on the court, and said it 
would make more sense to continue the sidewalk around the court.   
 
Mr. Butler confirmed the sidewalk ends, but connection to the sidewalk on the west 
side can be made after crossing over.  Mr. Butler acknowledged an oversight on the 
plan and said the sidewalk on the west side should connect to the last driveway.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-165 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Rochester Maples Condominium, located on the west side of Rochester, between I-



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

75 and Maple Road, in Section 27, containing 42 units on approximately 8.32 acres, 
within the R-1T zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The 8-foot sidewalk on the west side of Rochester Road is connected to the 

southern project limits.  
2. The fire hydrants and watermains are moved to the west side of Pennington 

Avenue, which would allow parking on the other side. 
3. A painted crosswalk is created at the end of the west sidewalk to the 

opposite [east] sidewalk to allow direction for people to cross to use the 
sidewalks. 

4. The hard surface of the emergency vehicle access (EVA) is some form of 
permeable concrete or paver bricks or something.   

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck would like the sidewalk to continue all the way around the court. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of the information provided to the members prior to 
tonight’s meeting.  He apologized and said the material was not provided earlier due 
to an internal glitch in the Planning Department.  
 
Items briefly discussed were: 
• Areas of purview. 
• Ordinance recently approved by the City of Farmington Hills.   
• Communication from Director of Building and Zoning relating to applicable 

Michigan Building Codes.  
• Resources of professional City staff. 
• Michigan Municipal League (MML) assistance as relates to inconsistencies 

between the State laws and City regulations.   
• Review process of Michigan Building Codes. 
 
Mr. Vleck requested inclusion of the following items to the list of discussion topics.  
• Drop-off areas in relationship to other residences (side door entrances). 
• Fire safety; multiple points of ingress and egress. 
• Setbacks from other residences. 
• Approval process as relates to inspections by City officials. 
• Approval process; City approval before State approval, or vice versa.   
• Notification of incidents, accidents, illnesses or injuries.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
direction of Councilwoman Beltramini’s communication relating to State ordinances 
and the Public Hearing notification relating to ZOTA 214 for the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Schafer requested a copy of the material provided to the 
members inclusive of the list of concerns.  
 
Chair Strat explained that the actual text for a proposed zoning ordinance amendment 
is not published in a Public Hearing notification.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs encouraged 
members to review the City of Livonia ordinance on residential child day care and 
addressed proposed changes in State licensing regulations.  He also requested a 
copy of the material provided to the members this evening, and thanked City 
Management for working with the State on the building codes.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to discuss the matter at the October 25, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting so they would have the opportunity to review the material 
that was provided by the Planning Department prior to tonight’s meeting.   
 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
This item was not discussed. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on the Agenda. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Kulesza offered his assistance in research work on the residential child day care issue. 
 
Mr. Miller referenced the proposed PUD 5 Caswell Town Center booklet distributed to 
members, and asked consideration in getting the matter on a study session agenda 
quickly.  He apologized again for not providing the members time to review the information 
on group day care homes.  Mr. Miller addressed the handout relating to the masonry 
ordinance case study in Canton Township.  He reminded members that review and 
discussion on a potential amendment to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to 
Rochester Road would be lengthy.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Chair Strat said he would like to dedicate a full Special/Study Meeting to review the 
proposed PUD 5.  He reminded members who attended the formed base code seminar at 
the annual MAP conference to be ready to discuss it at the next meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\10-11-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD OCTOBER 13, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday October 13, 2005 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
       
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Mary Shiner, Nancy Wheeler, Cheng Chen and Lauren Andreoff 
be excused. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of September 15, 2005 be approved. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
The 2006 Library closing dates were reviewed 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the list of 2006 Library closing dates be approved as presented. 
 
Yes:  3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The HVAC project has reached substantial completion and a punch list has been 
developed.  The Friends of the Library Book Shop will move down to the lower level 
beginning October 17, 2005.   The move is anticipated to take at least a week.  Our 
Meeting Room will be available for library programs on October 29, 2005. 
 
Quarterly Reports. 
The quarterly statistical and financial reports were reviewed. 
 
Reschedule November LAB Meeting. 
The November Library Advisory Board will be held on November 16, 2005. 
 
Board Member comments.   
Griffen asked that our automated phone message that plays when the library is closed 
be reviewed by staff. 
 
Zembrzuski stated that the Bulgarian program was great. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments. 
None 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory reported that two new Board members were appointed – one from Clinton-
Macomb Public Library and the other from Eastpointe Public Library.  The next Sirsi 
release will be loaded prior to Thanksgiving.  The Board held a joint meeting with the 
Macomb County Library Board.  The revised Annual Plan was reviewed.  State Aid will 
be going down again this year.  The Board approved the purchase of book bags that will 
be distributed to member libraries.  The new salary schedule was approved.  
 
 



 3 

Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
No report. 
 
Gifts. 
Two gifts totaling $150.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items. 
October TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
12 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft     October 17, 2005 
 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Monday, October 17, 2005, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner David Cannon  
 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human 
Resources Director, Police Chief Charles Craft 

 
Approval of Minutes of August 10, 2004: 
 
Resolution #CSC-2005-10-001 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of Tuesday, August 10, 2004 be APPROVED 
as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Petitions and Communications:   None 
 
New Business:
 
Approval of Job Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Recruitment of Police 
Officers 
 
Resolution #CSC-2005-10-002 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Officers as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes:   All-3 
 
Old Business:   None 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 AM 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01v



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the special meeting of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals to order at 6:02 P.M. on Tuesday, October 18, 2005 in Council Chambers of 
the Troy City Hall.   
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 
ABSENT:  Wayne Wright 
 
Ms. Bluhm gave a presentation to the members of the Board regarding rules and 
procedures for the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Moved, to adjourn the special meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN MEETING CARRIED 
 
The special meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals adjourned at 7:24 P.M. 
 
The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, October 18, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01w



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES, MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 20, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH #10 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to approve a three (3)-year renewal of Items #3 through #10 as suggested in 
the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIFTH THIRD BANK, 2220 W. BIG BEAVER, 
for relief of the 6’ high screening wall between office and residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the Ordinance 
requirement for a 6’ high screen wall along the north property line where this site abuts 
residentially zoned property.  The Zoning Ordinance requires a 6’ high screening wall 
between office and residential sites.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
meeting of October 15, 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  
This request runs concurrent with the variance request at 2282 W. Big Beaver.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Fifth Third Bank, 2220 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of 
relief for the 6’ high screening wall required between office and residential zoned 
property. 
 

• The adjacent property is used as a retention pond. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIFTH THIRD BANK, 2282 W. BIG BEAVER, 
for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north property line 
where this site abuts residential zoned property. 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required along the north side of their site where it abuts residentially 
zoned property.  This Board originally granted the relief in 1983 and last renewed it in 
2002, in part, due to the fact that the property to the north is a retention pond for the 
Standard Federal Bank building.  Conditions at the site remain the same and we have 
no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Fifth Third Bank, 2282 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north side of their site 
where it abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• The adjacent property is used as a retention pond. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  TROY MASONIC TEMPLE ASSOCIATION, 
1032 HARTLAND, for relief of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall adjacent 
to off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-
screening wall adjacent to their parking lot.  This Board originally granted this variance 
in 1970.  This item last appeared before this Board in October 2002 and was granted a 
three (3) year renewal of this request.  Conditions at the site remain the same and we 
have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Masonic Temple Association, 1032 Hartland, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall adjacent to off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  WATTLES PROPERTIES, LLC, BROOKFIELD 
ACADEMY, 3950 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’6” high masonry screening wall 
required along the east side of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east side of off-street 
parking.  This relief was originally granted in 1982 and expanded in 1988, in part, due to 
the fact that a chain link fence with redwood slats had been installed. This item last 
appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 2002 and was granted a three-
year renewal with the stipulation that the fence would be repaired and kept in good 
repair.   Conditions at the site remain the same and we have no objections or 
complaints on file. 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Wattles Properties, LLC, Brookfield Academy, 3950 Livernois, a three 
(3) year renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall adjacent to off-street 
parking. 
 

• Fence to remain in good repair. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #7 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. AUGUSTINE EVANGELICAL CHURCH, 
5475 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south and 
west sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by the 
Board for the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south and west sides of the 
property, adjacent to the off-street parking.  This relief was originally granted in 1993 
based on the fact that the variance would not be contrary to public interest and 
conforming would be unnecessarily burdensome.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of October 2004 and was granted a one-year renewal to allow the 
neighbors to determine if the special use for the day care center would create any type 
of problems.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on 
file. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Augustine Evangelical Church, 5475 Livernois, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south and west sides 
of the property, adjacent to the off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #8 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MARC DYKES, HOME PROPERTIES, 
CANTERBURY SQUARE APARTMENTS II, N. SIDE OF LOVINGTON, E. OF JOHN 
R., for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north and east 
sides of off-street parking where these areas abut residentially zoned land. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north and 
east sides of off-street parking areas where these areas abut residentially zoned land.  
This relief has been granted since 1974 primarily due to the fact that the adjacent 
residential land is undeveloped.  The property to the north is now developed for a multi-
story senior citizen housing project and the City for use as a future park development 
has acquired the property to the east.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
meeting of October 2002 and was granted a three-year renewal.  Conditions remain the 
same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Marc Dykes, Home Properties, Canterbury Square Apartments II, N. 
side of Lovington, E. of John R., a three (3) year renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high 
masonry screening wall required along the north and east sides of off-street parking 
areas where these areas abut residentially zoned land. 
 

• Adjacent property is not developed with single-family residences. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property.  
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Conditions remain the same. 

 
ITEM #9 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  LIFE CHRISTIAN CHURCH INTERNATIONAL, 
3193 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required 
along the north and west sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall required along the north and 
west side of off-street parking.  This Board originally granted this relief in 1980.  This 
item last appeared before this Board in October 2002 and was granted a three (3) year 
renewal.  Since that time the church property has been sold from Troy Baptist Church to 
the current owner.  Other than that, conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Life Christian Church International, 3193 Rochester Road, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall required along the north 
and west side of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
 

ITEM #10 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  BLUE HERON INVESTMENTS, LLC, 2032 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 6’ high screen wall required along the east side of the 
property, where commercial zoned property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief granted by this Board to 
delete the 6’ high screen wall along the east side of the property, where Commercially 
zoned property abuts Residential zoned property.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of October 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal. 
 
MOVED, to grant Blue Heron Investments, LLC, 2032 E. Square Lake Road, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief of the 6’ high screen wall along the east side of the property where 
it abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• Existing vegetation provides adequate screening. 
• Conditions remain the same. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 

• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
 

ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, THE CHOICE GROUP, 
4254 BEACH ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land from 
its Beach Road frontage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split 
of this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from 
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street  
frontage for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 
30.10.02 requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of 
frontage on a public street. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 16, 2005 and was 
postponed until this meeting at the request of the petitioner to allow him the opportunity 
to discuss other options with the neighbors that may be acceptable to everyone. 
 
The Building Department received a letter from Mr. Donnellon of the Choice Group and 
Mr. Kyle Jones, representative of the Greentrees Homeowners Association asking that 
this request be postponed until the meeting of November 15, 2005. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. Donnellon, 4254 Beach Road, until the next 
scheduled meeting of November 15, 2005 for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing 
parcel of land from its Beach Road frontage.  
 

• Per the request of the petitioner as well as the representative of the Homeowners 
Association. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 15, 2005 
CARRIED 

 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  ARNOLD BECKER, 2840-2880 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to expand the existing parking lot at 2840-2880 
Rochester Road with a 10’ setback from the north property line and without a screen 
wall.  Section 29.50.07 requires a 25’ front setback and also requires a 4’-6” high screen 
wall to be installed at this setback line. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the existing parking lot at this commercial property.  The property immediately to the 
east is zoned R-1E.  Section 29.50.07 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 25’ front 
setback for Vehicular Parking (P-1) zoned parcels when they have contiguous frontage 
with residential districts.  It further requires a 4’-6” high screen wall installed at this 
setback line.  The site plan submitted indicates a setback of only 10’ from the north 
property line and no screen wall. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if there was a screen wall now. Mr. Stimac explained that the 
property where the expansion is planned previously had houses on it that were 
demolished and was re-zoned from R-1E to P-1 (Vehicular Parking). 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the building to the east was a home and Mr. Stimac stated that it 
was an occupied single-family residence. 
 
Eileen Youngerman, General Manager for Arnold Becker was present and stated that 
they are only requesting a variance for the screening wall on the north property line.  
They believe that landscaping would be more aesthetically pleasing than a screen wall.  
They would lose a whole row of parking on the north side if the 25’ setback is required 
and the area on the south side of the property is nothing but utilities and easements and 
they cannot have them moved. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what kind of business was going in this area and Ms. Youngerman said 
that they are presently working with a client that has a wood working business and 
another that is a window business.  This parking would make the area more accessible.  
Mr. Fejes then asked if the parking available would meet the parking requirements and 
Mr. Stimac said that there is a different parking standard between a furniture store and a 
retail shoe store for example.  A furniture store would require less parking than a shoe 
store.   Ms. Youngerman said that the client that they are working with right now would 
be for the sales of wood working equipment and a few classes.  Ms. Youngerman said 
that offices were in this building before it was Corey Dinette. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked how large this building was and Ms. Youngerman stated that it was 
approximately 11,020 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that a building this size would 
require 51 parking spaces on the current site.  Ms. Youngerman said that they are also 
considering parking on the south side of the property.  They did not develop the 
southeast corner of the parcel but left it as a green space.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked what would happen if the variance was not granted and Ms. 
Youngerman stated that they would lose eight (8) parking spaces. With the design that 
they have worked with they would only have only one entrance off Henrietta if the 25’ 
setback was required.  Mr. Hutson asked if they would still be able to use the building  
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
for the proposed use and Ms. Youngerman said that she thought the parking  would be 
below what is required. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how wide the lots were and Ms. Youngerman said that they are 50’ 
wide.  Ms. Youngerman said that they would lose an entire row of parking on the north 
face on Henrietta.     
 
Mr. Hutson said that one objection from the property that is further east of the frame 
building has been received, and this property owner wants a screen wall.  Mr. Hutson 
went on to say that if he were living next to this property he also would want some type 
of screening, although not necessarily a masonry wall.  Ms. Youngerman said that there 
will be a 4’-6” high wall between the parking and the east property line.  Ms. 
Youngerman said that she has worked with Nancy Haynes, the neighbor immediately to 
the east, and are more than willing to put up this screening wall.   
 
Ms. Youngerman introduced her architect, Dustin Elliott of Orchard Hills McClintock 
(OHM) and said if the Board had any questions, he would be more than willing to 
answer them.   
 
Mr. Hutson said that he did not feel the requirement of 25’ of green space is appropriate 
under these circumstances.  Ms. Youngerman said that they more than meet the green 
space requirement for both lots.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for an explanation of the drawing of the parking area on the east side 
and how wide the cut out area was.  Mr. Elliott said that they are at least 7’ in depth to 
allow a car to back out of a stall and pull out without going over a curb.  The Ordinance 
requirements have been met along the east property line, the variance request is for the 
north property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that the two lots that are proposed to be developed are within the P-
1 (Vehicular Parking) Zoning classification.  P-1 Zoning has a somewhat unique 
requirement in that if you have P-1 zoning which is contiguous with residential, the 
Ordinance says that the setback for that parking has to be the same setback as the 
houses.  You can’t have a parking lot that sticks out in front of the houses.  It further 
says that at that front setback line you need to have a screen wall between the parking 
lot and the street.  The parking lot would need to begin 25’ from the north property line 
and is further required to have a 4-6” screening wall along this 25’ setback.  Petitioners 
wish to reduce the 25’ setback to 10’ and are also asking for the elimination of the 
screening wall.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the setback was to the east property line and Mr. Stimac stated 
that there is no setback mandated by Ordinance. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that if they put the wall in the only thing they would be screening is 
another wall.  Ms. Youngerman said that they are also planning to plant trees along this 
area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if the building is 11,020 square feet and the Zoning Ordinance 
requires one parking space per 200 square feet at general retail space.  That would 
require 55 parking spaces for the building to the north.  The building to the south 
contains automobile related repair facilities and per the petitioner contains five bays on 
each side.  Mr. Stimac went on to say that the Zoning Ordinance requires two parking 
spaces per bay that would require 20 for this building, and 55 for the building to the 
north for a total of 75.  Mr. Stimac said that with the new plan, he counted 98 parking 
spaces on the site as shown. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if it will then meet the requirements for a general retail store and Mr. 
Stimac said that it would exceed the requirements for general retail.  Mr. Hutson asked 
if there were other uses that could go in this area that would require more parking and 
Mr. Stimac said that restaurants and medical offices could require more parking.  Mr. 
Hutson asked if they insisted on a 25’ setback and the petitioner lost eight (8) parking 
spaces, what the effect on retail would be.  Mr. Stimac said that based on his count they 
would still have 90 parking spaces, and the Ordinance would require 75 parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what Board the petitioner would have to appear before if one of the 
other uses came into this area and more parking was required.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
petitioner would have to request a parking variance from City Council. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if a sidewalk would need to be expanded in the 10’ area. Ms. 
Youngerman said that one of the reasons they did not show a sidewalk in this area was 
because the master plan indicates that this area will all be commercial some day. Mr. 
Kovacs then asked if they had ever considered putting a slight berm in this area.  Ms. 
Youngerman said that they have redesigned these plans at least six times and they are 
not planning to put in a berm at all.     
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the petitioner is in compliance with the landscaping requirement.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he believes the Planning Department did confirm that they do meet the 
landscape requirements. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Nancy Haynes, 1046 Henrietta was present and stated that she is the first house next to 
this property.  Ms Haynes does not object to this request, however, would like to see a 
25’ setback and greenbelt area. 
 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney clarified the location of Ms. Haynes property and Ms. Haynes said that her 
home is right next door to the proposed parking lot.  Mr. Courtney said that he did not 
see how this request would effect her property.  Ms. Haynes said that in her opinion 
when she is backing out of her driveway her view would be obstructed without the 25’ 
setback.   Mr. Stimac explained that the screen wall along the east property line would 
start at a 25’ setback as required by the ordinance.  If the petitioner were to receive their 
variance the screen wall would start at a 10’ setback line. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if Ms. Haynes wanted the screen wall along her property line and she 
said that she did.  Mr. Hutson also said that in the petition it was indicated that the 
Master Plan calls for this area to be all developed as Commercial property and Mr. 
Stimac said that was true.  Ms. Haynes said that she and her neighbors hope that it 
does go Commercial. 
 
Mark Kozlow, 1058 Henrietta was present and said that when the Zoning was changed 
in this area the residents were told that the businesses would comply with the 
Ordinance.  City Council approved it even though the residents did not want the Zoning 
changed and now everything is changing.  Mr. Kozlow stated that the Ordinance was 
designed to benefit the residents, and the future use is supposed to be for businesses.  
Mr. Kozlow said that they have been waiting for that to happen for a long time and 
nothing seems to be happening.  They are taking the property away piece meal.  Mr. 
Kozlow also said that he would be more than willing to sell his home.  Mr. Kozlow said 
that he would like to see the Ordinance followed.   Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Kozlow 
wanted a wall to go east and west all along Henrietta.  Mr. Kozlow said that he would 
like the 25’ setback and would like to see the Ordinance followed. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that they are trying to understand Mr. Kozlow’s objection and asked if he 
wanted to see a wall.  Mr. Kozlow said that he doesn’t care about the wall, but would 
like to see the 25’ setback met. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file.  There 
are also two (2) verbal objections. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that 75 parking spaces are required by the Ordinance, there are 
presently 90 parking spaces proposed to be available and asked what the justification 
was for this request.  Mr. Elliott said that the perceived parking on this property appears 
to be deficient and the hardship would be getting over that perception.   
 
Mr. Wright said that in his opinion this would be more of a financial hardship rather than 
a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Wright did not see any justification to grant a 
variance for these eight (8) parking spaces.  The Ordinance requires 75 parking spaces 
and presently there are proposed to be ninety (90) spaces available.  Perception is not  

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
a hardship that runs with the land.  Ms. Youngerman said that she understands that but 
they were looking at the way it pertains to one building and the adjacent parking. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the perception would be changed by anyone going down 
Henrietta. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to grant Arnold Becker, 2480-2880 Rochester, relief of the Ordinance for a 
required 4’-6” high screen wall on the north side of the parking area where the parking 
lot abuts a public street. 
 

• Wall would serve no purpose. 
• Wall would be contrary to public interest. 

 
Mr. Fejes asked if another motion would be made regarding the setback and Mr. 
Courtney said that the only motion he was making was on the lack of the required 4’-6” 
screen wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that a separate motion could be made on the setback request.  Mr. 
Stimac also asked if Mr. Courtney’s intent was to deny the request for the setback 
variance.  Mr. Courtney said that he was hoping someone else on the Board would 
make a motion regarding the setback variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the parking spaces are not needed today but may be needed in 
the future.  Mr. Maxwell asked if it was possible for the petitioner to withdraw their 
request for the 25’ setback.  Mr. Kovacs asked if this request was not withdrawn and 
conditions change, if they could come back to the Board.  Ms. Lancaster said that it 
could come back if the circumstances were substantially different.  Mr. Kovacs asked 
what would happen if the tenant changes in the building itself and requires additional 
parking.  Ms. Lancaster said if the request was denied based on the variance running 
with the land, the petitioner would not be able to come back.   
 
Ms. Lancaster also asked if a parking variance that was denied based on a hardship 
that runs with the land, had ever been able to come back.  Mr. Stimac said that he was 
not aware of any second requests for a parking variance based on a change of tenant.  
If the adjacent property to the east is rezoned from the R-1E classification to a non-
residential classification a variance for the setback would not be required.  The fact that 
the property to the east is zoned residential mandates the 25’ setback. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for a vote on his motion for the screen wall. 
 
The Chairman called for a vote. 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT THE REQUEST ELIMINATING THE 4’-6” HIGH SCREEN WALL 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF THE PARKING LOT CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney to deny the request for a 10’ setback.  Mr. Fejes stated that Mr. 
Maxwell wanted to see if the petitioner would withdraw this request.  Mr. Maxwell said if 
the petitioner withdrew this part of their request they could come back to the Board 
sometime in the future.  Mr. Courtney said that he thought they could deny this request 
because presently it is not needed but if the usage changed in the future he thought the 
petitioner would be able to come back to the Board. 
 
Ms. Lancaster asked if Mr. Courtney meant a change in tenant regarding usage.  Ms. 
Lancaster said that they could not do that because a variance runs with the land, and 
they could not re-visit the same request if a new tenant comes in.  The variance has to 
be granted on the present use of this land.  Mr. Courtney said that resolutions have 
been passed in the past with conditions. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that in looking at what the Board is going to do, and if Mr. Courtney’s 
motion to deny is based on the fact that the proposed parking spaces are over and 
above what is required by the Ordinance, then if conditions were to change on the site 
in terms of the tenancy of the building, and the additional parking spaces were required 
by the Ordinance, that would constitute a substantial change and he feels it could come 
back for another variance request. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that Mr. Stimac is looking at this as a reconsideration because 
circumstances have changed and not a variance that runs with the land, they could 
come back to the Board. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that the neighbors are objecting to this setback variance request.  If the 
petitioner is denied the request for the 10’ setback they would not be able to come back 
to this Board and suggested that petitioner withdraw their request for the setback.  Mr. 
Fejes said that he concurs with Mr. Hutson. 
 
Ms. Youngerman said that currently they do not have a signed agreement with anyone 
and it would be impossible at this point to determine whether these parking spaces 
would be required or not.  Rather than withdraw the request, Ms. Youngerman stated 
that she would rather ask for a postponement so that she could confer with Mr. Becker 
because it would involve a change in all the architecture that they have reviewed with 
the City.  They are trying to be a good neighbor and have redrawn their plans at least 
six times. They may want to reconfigure their whole design. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he agrees with Mr. Wright in that there is no hardship that runs with 
the land. 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that if the item was postponed until next month the petitioner would 
not necessarily have any additional information regarding the need for this setback, and 
perhaps it would be better to withdraw the request until they have a tenant.  Mr. 
Courtney said that if the request was denied they would not be able to come back to this 
Board.  Ms. Youngerman said that she felt that the “powers that be” needed to get 
together and determine what their course of action would be. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how much time the petitioner was allowed if her request was 
withdrawn.  Ms. Lancaster said that if the request was withdrawn they could come back 
anytime with a new request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked the petitioner if she has worked with the City Planning Department 
and if this was the best design they could come up with.  Ms. Youngerman stated that 
they have worked extensively with both the Planning Department and Building 
Department.  Mr. Kovacs said that he wondered why the Planning Commission felt that 
these spaces were necessary.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Planning Commission has not voted on the site plan approval.  
In looking at this plan and at the dimensions available for the parking lot, this layout 
became the most efficient way to lay out parking and the most appropriate based on 
where the access roads are and where the current parking is.  Mr. Stimac also said that 
they could do exactly what is proposed on the site plan and take out the top row of 
parking and he does not think they would have to redesign the entire parking lot. 
 
Mr. Wright said that  the petitioner indicated that one of their perspective tenants would 
be a wood-working shop and he did not believe that even 75 parking spaces would be 
required.  Mr. Wright then asked what the parking requirement would be if a restaurant 
was going into this area.  Mr. Stimac said that he would need to know the seating 
capacity for the restaurant before he could give him an exact amount.  If for example, 
there were 78 parking spaces available for the northern building, that would be enough 
for a 130 seat restaurant.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Arnold Becker, 2840-2880 Rochester, for relief of 
the 25’ front setback  required along the north property line where they wish to expand 
their parking lot, until the meeting of November 15, 2005. 
 

• To allow Ms. Youngerman the opportunity to meet with Mr. Becker and determine 
what he would like to do regarding this request. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

 
ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 15, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner for the next item, Mr. Dearment, had represented him 
in a real estate transaction and he has had some discussion with Mr. Dearment 
regarding the procedure process for this Board.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would consider 
him a friend but feels that he could make an unbiased decision on this request.  Mr. 
Kovacs said it would be up to the Board to determine if he could act on this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from hearing Item #13, the request of Richard 
Dearment, Crystal Springs Subdivision due to a possible conflict of interest. 
 
Yeas:   1 – Wright 
Nays:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS FAILS 
 
ITEM #13 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RICHARD DEARMENT, LOT #69, CRYSTAL 
SPRINGS SUBDIVISION, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a single family 
residence on a parcel that is 63.76’ wide, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a minimum of 85’ lot width in the R-1C Zoning District.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a single-family residence.  The petitioner resides at 740 Trinway on Lot #68 
and also owns adjacent Lot #69.  These lots are each 63.76’ wide and Section 30.10.04 
of the Zoning Ordinance requires that the minimum lot width in the R-1C Zoning District 
is 85’.  Section 40.50.02 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that when two or more 
lots with continuous frontage under a single ownership do not comply with the 
requirements for lot width or area, they are considered to be an undivided parcel. The 
petitioner is requesting approval to have these considered separate parcels and be 
permitted to build a second home on the vacant parcel.   
 
Mr. Wright asked what the side yard requirements were in R-1C and Mr. Stimac stated 
that they are 10’ on each side.  Mr. Wright then confirmed that the maximum width a 
new home could be was 43’. 
 
Mr. Dearment, 740 Trinway, was present and stated that he would like to construct a 
new home.  This lot is very buildable and is about 21,000 square feet and he would be 
able to put his dream home here.   
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

 
ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if he also owns the lot right next to it.  Mr. Dearment said that he does 
own 740 Trinway and wants to stay in Troy and this would  be the best possible 
solution.  Mr. Dearment further stated that he had submitted drawings of the home he 
would like to build, which would be about 1,500 to 1,800 square feet. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the current home could be changed to do what Mr. Dearment 
wants.  Mr. Dearment said that he did not believe the foundation would support any new 
building on it. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Rex Brown, owner of 717 & 949 Trinway was present.  Mr. Brown stated that this 
property was on the market about two months ago.  Mr. Brown said that older homes on 
this street are being knocked down and new homes are going in that are quite large.  
Mr. Brown also said that he did not think the existing home could be remodeled.  
Trinway is extremely popular right now and the new homes going in on the street have 
been in the $400,000.00 to $600,000.00 range.  Mr. Brown said that he is quite 
surprised that you would want to build a dream home next to a small bungalow.  Right 
now there are traffic problems on this street and Mr. Brown said that he would like to 
see the 85’ lot width held up. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the widths of the properties were that Mr. Brown owns.  Mr. 
Brown said that one of his properties has an 86’ width and the other is 90.6’ wide.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that most of the lots around Mr. Dearment’s property are small lots.  Mr. 
Brown said that most of those are double wide lots with one home on them.  Mr. Brown 
said that both of his neighbors have lots that are wider than the 85’ width and perhaps 
the lots on the south side of the street the lots are smaller.  Mr. Brown said that he could 
not see building a dream home next to a bungalow.  Mr. Kovacs asked what his 
definition was of a dream home and Mr. Brown said that he was just repeating what Mr. 
Dearment had said.  Mr. Brown also said that he thinks if this variance is granted, it 
would open the door for other property owners to split their property and put up homes 
on smaller lots. 
 
Ms. Gies asked for an explanation of the lot sizes.  Mr. Stimac said that based on the 
provisions of the Ordinance if a person only owns one lot that is considered to be a 
buildable lot.  This petitioner owns two lots side by side and even though they were 
platted as two substandard lots, they are under common ownership and are considered 
to be undivided.  Mr. Stimac indicated through a color coded site map that a majority of 
these lots although platted in the 1920’s and 1930’s as individual substandard lots, they 
have been combined to make one buildable parcel.  On Sylvanwood there are a total of 
53 home sites, 39 that meet the minimum lot width and area requirement and 14 parcels 
that do not meet the requirements.  On Trinway there are a total of 51 home sites and  
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
37 of these sites meet the minimum lot width requirement, while again there are 14 that 
do not.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked how long Mr. Dearment has owned this property and Mr. Dearment 
said that he has been there since 1998.  Mr. Courtney asked if it was a single site when 
he purchased it and Mr. Dearment said that it was.  Mr. Dearment said that his plan is to 
build a home just for himself.  Mr. Courtney said this variance would create two lots that 
are undersized. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. There is one verbal objection on 
file. 
 
Mr. Dearment said that he had spoken to the neighbors on either side of him as well as 
the neighbor across the street and they all indicated approval. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that in his opinion the trend if for larger lots rather than to build a home 
on a smaller lot.  Mr. Hutson did not see a hardship.  Both Ms. Gies and Mr. Wright 
agreed with Mr. Hutson. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Richard Dearment, Lot #69, Crystal Springs 
Subdivision, relief of the ordinance to construct a single family residence on a parcel 
that is 63.76’ wide, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
minimum of 85’ lot width in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright 
Nays:  1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO DENY VARIANCE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #14 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JAMES POWERS OF RESIDENTIAL 
RENOVATIONS, 1641 WITHERBEE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
attached garage.  This home is a legal non-conforming structure.  It has an existing 5’ 
side yard setback where 10’ is required by Section 30.10.04.   
 
 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an attached garage.  This home is a legal non-conforming structure.  It has an existing 
5’ side yard setback where 10’ is required by Section 30.10.04.  The site plan submitted  
indicates removing an existing carport and constructing an attached garage that would 
continue this existing 5’ side yard setback. 
 
James Powers, representing Ms. Howitt was present and stated that the homeowner 
would like to put up an attached garage and remove the existing carport.  The attached 
garage would have the same setback as the carport.  There are a number of garages 
that have been constructed in this area with the same setback. 
 
Mr. Fejes confirmed that the side yard setback would not be increased.  Mr. Powers 
said that he was proposing to tear down the carport and build an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if there was any way to put a garage in the back and Mr. Powers said 
that he wasn’t sure and would have to check into what the Ordinance requirements 
would be for a detached garage.  Mr. Hutson said that there are quite a number of 
carports in this area. 
 
Mr. Wright said that this Board had approved the same type of request within the last 
few months in this area.  Mr. Stimac confirmed that 1071 Norwich had been approved 
for a very similar request. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if the reason so many carports were in this area was because the 
setback requirement was different for carports versus garages.  Mr. Stimac said that he 
thought carports were very prevalent in this sub and he thought it may have been 
because they were very popular at the time this sub was built and not that they had 
different setback requirements. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought the attached carports were a big selling point. 
 
Mr. Wright said that this is one of the older subdivisions in Troy and the setback 
requirements have been changed since that subdivision was developed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Russ Long, 1071 Norwich was present and stated that he approved of this request as 
he feels that it will improve the neighborhood. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
 

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant James Powers of Residential Renovations, 1641 Witherbee, relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an attached garage with a 5’ side yard setback where 10’ is 
required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as the principal use 

within a zoning district. 
• Variance relates only to the property described in the application. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance does preclude full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. 
• A lesser variance does not give substantial relief. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #15 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RUSSELL LONG, 1071 NORWICH, for relief 
of the Ordinance to demolish an existing carport and construct a new attached garage 
with a 5’ side yard setback and a 24’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.04 of the 
Ordinance requires a minimum 10’ side yard setback and a 30’ front setback in the R-
1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to demolish 
an existing carport and construct a new attached garage.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 
10’ minimum side yard setback and a 30’ minimum front yard setback for homes in the 
R-1C Zoning District.  At the meeting of August 16, 2005 this Board approved a 
variance to construct an attached garage on this property with a 5’ side yard setback 
and a 26’ front setback.  The revised plans would continue to use the 5’ side yard 
setback and now indicate a 24’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ front 
setback in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Wright confirmed that the side yard setback was approved 2 months ago,  and now 
the Board has to look at the 2’ additional front yard setback. 
 
Russell Long was present and stated that based on Mr. Kovacs recommendation he is 
now applying for an additional 2’ , which would allow them to open the car door without 
banging into the car next to him.   
 
Mr. Wright said that based on the turning radius of the driveway he believes the extra 2’ 
would help backing cars out of the garage. 

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                        OCTOBER 18, 2005 

ITEM #15 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mary Ellen Howitt, 1641 Witherbee was present and stated that she is in support of this 
request as it would improve the neighborhood. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Russell Long, 1071 Norwich, relief of the Ordinance to demolish an 
existing carport and construct a new attached garage with a 5’ side yard setback and a 
24’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.04 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 10’ side 
yard setback and a 30’ front setback in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as the principal use 

within a zoning district. 
• Variance relates only to the property described in the application. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance does preclude full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. 
• A lesser variance does not give substantial relief. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs explained that regarding Item #13, in his opinion that because the lot is 314’ 
deep and 21,000 square feet in area, he felt that a house could be built on this parcel.  
He also felt that to deny the variance was to deny the petitioner his subject property 
rights and further that literal enforcement of the Ordinance was unnecessarily 
burdensome and that was the reason for his no vote. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:07 P.M. 
 
 
              
      Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 19



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   October 26, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on October 26, 2005 at 7:00 PM 
at the Lloyd Stage Nature Center, 6685 Coolidge Hwy.  Alexandra Bozimowski and Neil 
Shaw called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (co-chair) 

Maxine D’Amico 
Jia (Lisa) Luo 
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw (co-chair) 
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Andrew Corey, Jessica Kraft, Rishi Joshi, 
Maxine D’Amico (late) 

VISITORS: Charles Barnes, Lloyd Stage Nature Center Manager 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2005-10-20 
  Moved by Vitale 
  Seconded by Wullaert 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 28, 2005 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 9 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 4  - Corey, D’Amico, Joshi, Kraft 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through September meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Membership Update:  

Resolution #TY-2005-10-21    
Moved by Wullaert 
Seconded by Thoenes 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy Youth Council hereby corrects the name of the 
applicant to be designated as the first alternate nomination to serve on 
Troy Youth Council should a vacancy occur as it appears in the April 27, 
2005 minutes from Patrick Niemic to Joseph Niemiec. 
  
Yes:  All - 9 
No:    0 
Absent:   4  - Corey, D’Amico, Joshi, Kraft 

     
  Welcome to Joseph Niemiec. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01x



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   October 26, 2005 
 
 

 2

5. Visitor: 
 Charles Barnes, Lloyd Stage Nature Center Manager: 

1. Power point presentation on what the nature center has to offer 
2. History of center and name 
3. Upcoming programs 
4. Tour of center to follow meeting 
 

6. Term Limits 
Resolution #TY-2005-10-22 
Moved by Randall 
Seconded by Luo 

 
RESOLVED, that each member of the Troy Youth Council shall not serve 
more than two consecutive terms; any portion of a term served shall 
constitute one full term and this resolution shall apply only to terms 
starting after June 1, 2006: 
 
Yes: 0 
No: All - 10 
Absent: 3 – Corey, Joshi, Kraft 

  
 

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2005-10-23 

  Moved by Wullaert 
  Seconded by Bozimowski 

  
 RESOLVED that Andrey Corey and Jessica Kraft are excused. 

   
  Yes: All - 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3 – Corey, Joshi, Kraft 

   
  

8. Youth Council Comments - None 
9. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Alexandra Bozimowski, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: November 30th at 7:00 P.M. @ Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Nov. 3, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Nov. 3 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:10 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Pauline Noce, Member  
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  Carla Vaughan, Staff  
 
 JoAnn Thompson announced that Marie Hoag has resigned.  
     
Absent: None 
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Red Hughes 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-11-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by James Berar  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 6, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming announced that there will be a reception for newly appointed Superintendent of 
Schools Barbara Fowler at Athens High School on November 10 from 3-5 pm.  Two students 
at Troy High School got perfect scores on the ACT test.  She also announced several 
upcoming craft shows. 
 
Red Hughes announced that he is a write-in candidate for City Council. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that two shuffleboard and two bocce 
courts will be built at the Community Center, probably in the spring of 2006.  Carla reported 
that the department is in the process of taking bids for this project and it probably will have to 
go before Council.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla provided copies on the catering contract 
and the committee discussed possible changes to recommend.  It was decided to send a copy 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01y



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Nov. 3, 2005 

2 

of the letter that they sent to City Council in September to the Council again adding that they 
are awaiting a response.  They will also copy the letter to the Parks and Recreation Director. 
 
Lunch Room Rules:  Carla reported that Emerald has agreed to allow treats any day.  The 
revised rules are now posted.  
 
New Business 
 
Change of Meeting Time:  Carla reported that she checked east entrance handicapped 
parking at 10 a.m. and 1 pm each day for a week during October.  All spaces were in use at 
both times with the following exceptions:  On Monday, one space was open at 10 a.m., and on 
Tuesday, two spaces were open at 1 p.m.   The earlier two-week survey checked the spaces 
at 9:30 a.m.  and 1 pm and found the east spaces filled only three times.   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-11-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Committee will change their meeting time to 1 p.m. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Merrill Dixon suggested canceling the December meeting.  The Committee voted 5 to 2 in 
favor of meeting in December. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported on shuffleboard (see old business) and the new pathways 
at the Civic Center.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that she attended a session in Lansing to ask legislators not to 
cut funding for transportation for elderly and handicapped. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 1600 flu shots were administered at the Nov. 1 clinic at 
the Community Center.  The health department reduced the number of outreach clinics from 
25 to 7 this year.  The senior store had their biggest day ever that day - $675 in sales.  Carla 
contacted the Troy Times and has the email address of a reporter who will include senior 
program information in the Community Briefs section.  They do not want to initiate a “Senior 
Briefs” at this time.  Massage therapy is very popular.  Only in it’s second month, the days it is 
offered has been increased from twice a month the once a week and all sessions are full.  
There are 52 people signed up for leaf raking.  Troy People Concerned has 130 volunteers 
lined up.    
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that there was a speaker on the use of inhalers. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Nov. 3, 2005 

3 

Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have compiled an 
excellent service directory and that they are looking for a corporate sponsor to print the 
directory. 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one unsigned suggestion asking for a clock 
by the therapy pool.  There are three clocks in the pool area and the pool staff feels that this is 
sufficient.  The suggestion was not signed, so we cannot ask for more information.   
 
Comments:  A discussion was held about the new Medicare Prescription Drug Program, and 
the Committee would like Carla to provide as much information as possible to Troy seniors and 
to try to have some enrollment dates at the Troy Community Center.  
 
Mr. Berar suggested announcing the coming of the bocce and shuffleboard courts in the next 
senior newsletter. 
 
JoAnn Thompson announced that Jo Rhoads is attending a lot of meetings and maybe some 
other committee members would like to share the responsibility. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at noon.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Draft November 9, 2005 
 

1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Board of Canvassers was held Wednesday, November 
9, 2005, in Conference Room D, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairperson 
Inglehart called the Meeting to order at 10:13 AM. 
 
The Oath of Office was administered to all members by City Clerk Bartholomew. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT:  Leah Inabnitt, Gloria Inglehart, Mary Shiner, Carole Webb 
ABSENT:  None  
ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Bartholomew, Deputy City Clerk Holmes 

Appointment of Chairperson:  
 
BC-2005-11-001 
Motion by Shiner 
Seconded by Webb 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Inabnitt is APPOINTED as Chairperson. 
 
Yes: All-4 

Approval of Minutes: April 6, 2004 
 
BC-2005-11-002 
Motion by Inglehart 
Seconded by Webb 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 6, 2004 are hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: All-4 
 
Canvass of Votes Cast for the City General Election Held Tuesday, November 8, 
2005:  
 
Canvass of Precincts
 
BC-2005-11-003 
Motion by Shiner  
Seconded by Webb 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board of Canvassers hereby AUTHORIZES the Deputy City Clerk 
be open and reseal the Ballot Container for Precinct 4/5 for the purpose of reviewing voted 
ballots for valid write-in votes. 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01z



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Draft November 9, 2005 
 

2 

Yes: All-4 
 
The Board confirmed and signed the “Canvass of Votes Cast” report, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Canvass of Votes Cast: 
 
Council Member - Vote for Two – Three Year Terms: 
 
 CANDIDATE: VOTES:  
 Cristina Broomfield  7,099  
 Ramzi Dalloo  1,473  
 Mary Kerwin  4,490  
 Wade Fleming  6,206  
 Richard Hughes (Write-in)         2  
 Victor Lenivov  3,478  
 Steve Reina  2,952  
 
Cristina Broomfield and Wade Fleming each having received a sufficient number of votes 
were elected Council Member for three-year terms ending November 10, 2008. 
 
Ballot Proposals – Vote Yes or No: 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-1 
Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of Office) of the 
Troy City Charter be amended by deleting Section 7.5 and incorporating the former Section 
7.5 as the first sentence of Section 3.4 with the terms of the Mayor and the Council 
Members being four years to reflect the change from three years to four years on account 
of the 2004 Election Consolidation Legislation and providing that these terms expire at 7:30 
pm (rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday following the Regular City Election in the fourth 
year of these terms?  
   
Yes:   10,045 
No:     2,296 
 
Proposal 05-1 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-2 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as Section 3.4.1 to state as 
follows:   
 
“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations  
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor. Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term. This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment”?  



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Draft November 9, 2005 
 

3 

Yes:   10,271 
No:     2,268 
 
Proposal 05-2 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-3 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 Election Consolidation Legislation for four 
Council Members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and 
two Council Members to be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter, shall Section 
3.4.2 be added to the Troy City Charter to provide for a two-year transitional term (2007-
2009) for one Council Member, so that the Mayor and three Members of the Council will be 
elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and three Members will be elected in 2009 
and every four years thereafter? 
  
Yes:   9,929 
No:   2,094 
  
Proposal 05-3 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-4 
Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for Regular City Elections in 
November of each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of the 2004 
Election Consolidation Legislation? 
 
Yes:   10,873 
No:     1,156 
 
Proposal 05-4 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-5 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City 
Elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” and 
eliminating “Special City Elections shall be held when called by resolution of the Council 
at least 40-days in advance of such election, or when required by this Charter or 
Statute. Any resolution calling a Special Election shall set forth the purpose of such 
election. No more Special City Elections shall be called in any one year than the 
number permitted by statute”?   
 
Yes:   10,451 
No:     1,545  
 
Proposal 05-5 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Draft November 9, 2005 
 

4 

Charter Amendment Proposal 05-6 
Shall the fourth and fifth sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy City 
Charter, rejecting any signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has signed 
more nominating petitions for candidates for any city office than there are persons to be 
elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the counting of some of these signatures 
is permitted under the provisions of Section 547(a) of the Michigan Election Code [(MCL 
168.547(a)]? 
 
Yes:   9,128 
No:   2,180 
 
Proposal 05-6 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-7 
Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by striking 
“The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for 
address and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to sign 
affirming that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a summary of the 
qualifications required of candidates and the regulations governing the petition” and 
substituting “Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan Election 
Law”? 
 
Yes:   9,853 
No:   1,398 
 
Proposal 05-7 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-8 
Shall Section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60-day deadline 
for the City Council to call a Special Election for an initiative proposal, where the Council 
declines to enact the proposal as an ordinance and no election is to be held in the City 
for any other purpose within 150 days from the date the proposal is presented to the 
Council, to provide that these Special Elections shall be scheduled in accordance with 
Michigan Election Law and to specify that Council decisions under this Section shall be 
by affirmative vote of the members elect? 
 
Yes:   8,781 
No:   2,424 
 
Proposal 05-8 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-9 
Shall Section 7.9.5 (Council Initiated Ballot Questions) of the Troy City Charter be 
added to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on 
the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 
 



TROY BOARD OF CANVASSERS MINUTES - Draft November 9, 2005 
 

5 

Yes:   9,103 
No:   2,340 
 
Proposal 05-9 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-10 
Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject Long-Term (more 
than 3 years) Use Agreements to the restrictions in this Section for the leasing or 
renting of City property, including the requirements for fair consideration as determined 
by the City Council and the provision for referendum petitions for such agreements? 
 
Yes:   8,064 
No:   3,024 
 
Proposal 05-10 having received sufficient votes was passed. 
 
Audience Participation:  None 
 
Adjournment:  12:49 PM 
 
 
   
Tonni L. Bartholomew  Leah Inabnitt- Chairperson 
Clerk of the Board of Canvassers  Board of Canvassers 
 









































EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 9, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, November 9, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
ALSO PRESENT: Doug Smith 
 Matt Farrell – Friedman Realty 
 David Cesario – Mariott 
 David Moser - Mariott  
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 11 - 040 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 12, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
  
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREE NEWSLETTER DRAFT 
 
William Need presented a draft of a retiree newsletter developed by himself.  The board 
will review a final draft at their December board meeting. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – FORD & EARL PROPERTY UPDATE 
 
Matt Farrell, Friedman Realty, provided the board with an update on the activity his office 
has had with the property.  David Cesario and David Moser, Mariott, presented an offer to 
purchase, on behalf of Sunstone, the Ford & Earl property.  The board has scheduled a 
special board meeting on November 16, 2005 to review the purchase offer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01aa



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 9, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – SPECIAL MEETING 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 11 - 041  
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the board set a special meeting for November 16, 2005 at 12:00 pm in 
conference room C, City Hall to consider the offer of Sunstone Hotel Investors to purchase 
the Ford & Earl property. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 11 - 042  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell and purchase the following securities:   
 
Sell:    Interpool and Kraft 
 
Purchase:   $500,000 Principle Life Notes, 5.00% due 11/16/09; $500,000 John Hancock 

Notes, 6.15% due 11/15/10 and $500,000 Prudential Financial Notes, 6.70% 
due 11/10/15. 

 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is December 14, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:50 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\11-09-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b





QUARTER END HIGHLIGHTS 
(September 30, 2005) 

 
GENERAL FUND

• REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES IN TOTAL APPEAR IN LINE WITH BUDGET 
ESTIMATES – WHEN COMPARED TO LAST YEAR REVENUE IS UP 2.61% AND 
EXPENDITURES ARE DOWN 1.39% 

• STATE SHARED REVENUE RECEIPTS TOTALED $6.9 MILLION LAST FISCAL YEAR. 
THE  STATE IS PROJECTING $6.9 MILLION VS $6.5 BUDGETED FOR 2005-06 

• INVESTMENT INCOME HAS PICKED UP WITH THE INCREASE IN INTEREST RATES 
AND IS PROJECTED TO COME IN ABOVE BUDGET 

• BUILDING PERMIT ACTIVITY IS UP $14,000 COMPARED TO LAST YEAR.  
 
SYLVAN GLEN GOLF COURSE 
 

REVENUES ARE UP $54,000 WHILE EXPENSES ARE UP $65,000 COMPARED TO THE 
SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR. THE INCREASE IN EXPENSES IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO FULL 
STAFFING LEVELS COMPARED TO LAST YEAR. 

 
AQUATIC CENTER 
 

REVENUES WERE UP $47,000 WHILE EXPENSES WERE UP $51,000 COMPARED TO 
LAST YEAR. YEAR END RESULTS SHOW REVENUE OVER EXPENSES OF $36,000 
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION. 

 
SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE 
 

REPORTED A FIRST YEAR LOSS IN OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 
30, 2005 OF APPROXIMATELY $800,000. 
FACTORS ATTRIBUTING TO THE LOSS: 15-MINUTE TEE TIMES TO AQUAINT 
GOLFERS TO THE COURSE; INCLEMENT SPRING; DELAY IN OPENING THE GRILL. 
YEAR TO DATE REVENUE FOR THE FIRST QUARTER IS $112,000 GREATER AND 
EXPENSES ARE $65,000 LOWER FOR THE SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR. 
WE HAVE SCHEDULED MONTHLY MEETINGS TO REVIEW THE OPERATING RESULTS 
OF THE COURSE. 
WITH REDUCING TEE TIMES TO EVERY 10 MINUTES, ACCEPTING ADDITIONAL 
LEAGUE PLAY AND ADJUSTING THE RATES WE HOPE TO GENERATE MORE PLAY 
AND REDUCE THE OPERATING LOSS THIS YEAR. 
  

DEPARTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
 

• PASSPORT ACTIVITY( JULY THRU SEPTEMBER) –  238   TRANSACTIONS;   121 
PHOTOS GENERATING $8,350 IN REVENUE.  

• NEW RESIDENT PACKET DISTRIBUTION JULY – SEPTEMBER – 206   
BREAKDOWN:  
  OUT OF COUNTRY     7 
    OUT OF STATE    10   
     TROY TO TROY     68     
   IN STATE  103   

REALTORS    18 
 
 

• MOTOR POOL – FUEL CONSERVATION 
 

CONSERVATION MEASURES PUT IN PLACE TO REDUCE FUEL CONSUMPTION FOR 
THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER COMPARED TO LAST YEAR RESULTED IN REDUCTION 
OF 1,680.5 GALLONS OF FUEL USAGE. 

 
 

 































campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d









DATE:         November 1, 2005
TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of October 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 4 $2,171,950.00 $15,191.00
Add/Alter 2 $53,500.00 $590.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 7 $2,225,450.00 $15,881.00

COMMERCIAL
New 3 $2,599,126.00 $18,635.00
Tenant Completion 4 $245,000.00 $2,295.00
Add/Alter 12 $1,972,798.00 $15,220.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $200.00

Sub Total 21 $4,816,924.00 $36,350.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 20 $4,161,915.00 $32,041.00
Add/Alter 38 $812,484.00 $9,617.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 5 $39,291.00 $895.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 4 $58,000.00 $876.00
Fire Repair 1 $152,793.00 $901.00
Wreck 8 $0.00 $440.00

Sub Total 76 $5,224,483.00 $44,770.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 7 $39,903.00 $691.00

Sub Total 7 $39,903.00 $691.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $300,000.00 $2,245.00

Sub Total 1 $300,000.00 $2,245.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 47 $0.00 $4,755.00
Fences 10 $0.00 $160.00

Sub Total 57 $0.00 $4,915.00

TOTAL 169 $12,606,760.00 $104,852.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 69 $2,867.50
Plan Review 99 $6,469.50
Microfilm 39 $395.00
Building Permits 169 $104,852.00
Electrical Permits 210 $15,910.00
Heating Permits 206 $10,340.00
Air Cond. Permits 68 $2,425.00
Plumbing Permits 140 $15,277.00
Storm Sewer Permits 26 $627.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 24 $818.00
Sewer Taps 47 $10,578.00

TOTAL 1097 $170,559.00

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 59 $295.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 15 $225.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 20 $20.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 4 $200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 4 $40.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 26 $260.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 133 $1,105.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 234 $16,039,899.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 229 $8,974,377.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 207 $14,432,280.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 176 $7,490,327.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 202 $13,132,327.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 207 $11,424,698.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 169 $12,606,760.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 1793 $118,710,441.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

53

9 11 15
8

14
20

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Nov 1, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 700 TOWER 400  620,000.00GALE CONSTRUCTION CO.
Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 W BIG BEAVER S-230  474,173.00LAKEVIEW CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 1735 E BIG BEAVER A  300,000.00NUCORE CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 W BIG BEAVER M-148  405,300.00COMM CONTRACTORS INC

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,799,473.00

Commercial, New Building 591 W BIG BEAVER  1,347,000.00GLEESON CONTRACTORS
Commercial, New Building 5977 LIVERNOIS  350,000.00MIKE ELIAS
Commercial, New Building 415 E MAPLE  902,126.00MEADOWBROOK CONST CO INC

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  2,599,126.00

Industrial, New Building 2672 INDUSTRIAL ROW P  290,650.00CMA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Industrial, New Building 2672 INDUSTRIAL ROW O  290,650.00CMA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Industrial, New Building 2672 INDUSTRIAL ROW N  290,650.00CMA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Industrial, New Building 2735 BELLINGHAM  1,300,000.00F H MARTIN CONSTRUCTION CO

Industrial, New BuildingTotal  2,171,950.00

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE 3RD FL  300,000.00SKANSKA USA DESIGN BUILD INC

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  300,000.00

Total Valuation:  6,870,549.00Records  13



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: October 25, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2005 THIRD QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the third quarter of 2005 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 
were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



 2

of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed 
a motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint 
and a judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order 
requiring the Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other 
structures that have been built upon the property without approvals 
that are required under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled 
an early intervention conference (settlement conference) for October 
18, 2005.  The Court will also be setting the hearing date for the 
Motion for Summary Disposition.  

 
2. Williams et. al v. City of Troy and Ken Freund-  Some of the residents in 

the Middlesex Country Homesites Subdivision filed this lawsuit against the 
City and developer Ken Freund.  The lawsuit challenges that the City of 
Troy improperly approved the Freund Site Condominium project without 
requiring an official re-plat of the property.  The Troy City Council granted 
preliminary approval of the site condominium plan on March 3, 2003. Each 
of the parties filed a Motion for Summary Disposition. On 9/3/03, Judge 
Kuhn heard oral arguments from all parties on the Motions for Summary 
Disposition.  On 3/24/04, the Court entered an order that holds that a re-
plat is not required for site condominium developments.  This resulted in 
the Court granting Summary Disposition in favor of the City on Counts I 
and II of the Plaintiffs’ Complaint. However, Judge Kuhn failed to rule on 
Count III, a violation of substantive due process allegation. The City then 
filed a Supplemental Brief asking for dismissal of Count III.  Judge Warren 
(who succeeded Judge Kuhn) granted the City’s Motion for Summary 
Disposition and entered an Order closing the case on May 25, 2005.  The 
Plaintiff then filed a Claim of Appeal with the Michigan Court of 
Appeals. The Court of Appeals placed this matter on its new fast track 



 3

procedure, since all issues were decided by summary disposition at 
the trial court level. All parties have submitted briefs to the Court of 
Appeals, and await the Court’s scheduling of oral arguments and/or a 
written decision.   

 
3. Rathka v. City of Troy – This lawsuit was filed by Roy Rathka, Jr. and 

concerns property he owns on Canham, a gravel drive located south of 
Square Lake Road and west of Livernois Road.  Mr. Rathka claims he was 
wrongfully denied a building permit to build a duplex on Canham.  The 
permit was denied pursuant to Section 40.10.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance that requires proposed building in one or two family residential 
districts to front on a public street that has been accepted for maintenance 
by the City.  The City filed a motion for summary disposition, which was 
granted on 6/21/04.  On 6/28/04, Plaintiff filed an appeal of the dismissal to 
the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Rathka filed three motions for an extension 
of time to file his appellate brief.  The first two motions were granted, but 
the last motion was denied. Rathka then filed a motion to hold the appeal in 
abeyance to allow him to pursue settlement negotiations with the City.   
The court granted the motion and held the case in abeyance for 90 days.  
However, the case was not resolved in that period.  Rathka therefore 
proceeded with the appeal by filing his brief on appeal.  Troy has filed its 
responsive brief, and the Court will schedule a date for oral argument.  

 
4.   Piscopo v. Troy, et al – In this lawsuit, the Plaintiffs Paul and Louise 

Piscopo challenge a decision made on April 19, 2005 by the Troy Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA).  The BZA determined that Mr. and Mrs. Piscopo 
should not have been issued a permit for their 6000 square foot garage, 
which is located at 3129 Alpine.  The BZA decision was initiated by an 
appeal filed by George Reed, Betty Reed, and Thomas Krent, which 
challenged the decision to issue a building permit for the structure.  In 
reaching its decision, the BZA issued an interpretation of Section 04.20.01 
of the zoning ordinance, holding that accessory structures, as defined by 
that section, must be smaller than the ground floor area of the main 
building.  The garage on Alpine exceeds the ground floor area of the 
residence (the main building).   Upon receiving notification of the BZA 
decision and the new restrictions for the structure, Mr. and Mrs. Piscopo 
filed this lawsuit.    In addition to appealing the BZA decision, the lawsuit 
also seeks equitable and declaratory relief. George Reed, Betty Reed and 
Thomas Krent are also named as defendants.  Defendants Reed and 
Krent filed a motion to dismiss Piscopo’s claims for equitable and 
declaratory relief against them (Counts II and III).  The Court granted 
this Motion, and the case is proceeding on the appeal only (Count I).  
The parties have all filed briefs, and the hearing is scheduled for early 
2006.  Troy is requesting the Court affirm the decision of the Board of 
Zoning Appeals, as well order the Piscopos to revise the garage to 
comply with the BZA decision.  

 



 4

 
5. Gerback v Troy, et al –The lawsuit stems from City Council’s denial of a 

requested re-zoning of a 2.74 acre parcel of property, located on the west 
side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway.  The property is currently 
zoned R-1C (one family residential).  Plaintiff unsuccessfully sought to 
re-zone the property to R-1T (one family attached residential).  Plaintiff 
argues in his complaint that the denial of the requested re-zoning was 
“arbitrary and capricious,” and fails to advance a legitimate government 
interest.  Count I of the complaint alleges a denial of substantive due 
process, and argues that the denial of the rezoning bears “no reasonable 
relationship to the health, safety and welfare of the public of Troy.”  
Count II asserts an equal protection claim, where Plaintiff argues that it 
has been treated less favorably than other owners of “similarly situated” 
property, since properties of greater depths have received the requested 
R-1T zoning.  The complaint seeks an injunction that  “prevents the City 
of Troy from interfering with Plaintiff’s proposed use of the property.”  
Troy has filed an answer, affirmative defenses and a motion for summary 
disposition, which is scheduled for November. 

 
6. Gerback (as a member of 300 Park Venture, L.L.C.) v Troy – This lawsuit 

was filed August 25, 2005, but it was not served on Troy until September 
20, 2005.    The case involves a parcel consisting of .892 acres located on 
the northwest corner of Rochester Road and Marengo that is presently 
zoned R-1B, One Family Residential.  Plaintiff filed an application to 
rezone the property to B-1 for the purpose of developing a Binson’s 
Home Health Care Center.  The Planning Commission voted to 
recommend that City Council deny the rezoning.  On August 1, 2005, City 
Council postponed the decision on the rezoning request until the first 
meeting in March 2006 to allow for the Planning Commission to consider 
amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road Corridor 
between Square Lake Road and South Boulevard before making a 
decision on the rezoning request.  In count I of the complaint, the Plaintiff 
contends City Council has breached a clear legal duty by refusing to act 
on Plaintiff’s Rezoning Request.  He seeks a writ of mandamus requiring 
City Council to act on the rezoning request “within a reasonable time 
period, not to exceed twenty-one (21) days.”  Counts II and III allege City 
Council has effectively denied the rezoning request by the 
postponement.  He argues that such denial constitutes a violation of 
Plaintiff’s right to substantive due process (count II) and the right to 
equal protection under the law (count III).  In both counts II and III, 
Plaintiff seeks an injunction that prevents Troy “from interfering with 
Plaintiff’s proposed use of the Property.” 

 
 
 
 



 5

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36) 
 

Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit 
against Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) 
to acquire property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery 
process, a bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to 
interrupt the bench trial proceedings with a number of other matters, 
including criminal jury trials, and had the parties on stand by and/or took 
limited testimony for several months.  The last testimony in the lengthy 
bench trial was taken on June 10, 2005.  After the testimony, the Judge 
required the parties to submit post-trial “Finding of Facts and Conclusion of 
Law” and a summary Memorandum, which were timely submitted by July 
13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs are due July 20, 2005.  The parties are 
now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s decision.   It is unknown when 
the decision will be rendered.  
 

2.  Big Beaver Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 
 
Troy v Saoud & Nidhal Jamo – The City obtained an Order for Possession 
and Payment of Just Compensation into Escrow on 1/5/05.  The case was 
filed since the City could not otherwise get clear title, due to a dispute 
between the mortgage company and the former property owners.  As a 
result, the just compensation was escrowed with the City until a further 
Court order concerning the disbursement.  The parties stipulated to an 
Order releasing escrowed funds to Ameriquest Mortgage Company. 
The parties did not challenge the amount of just compensation, which 
effectively ended the City’s involvement in the case.  However, the 
remaining parties are still litigating issues concerning the mortgage 
on the property.  Our office will continue to monitor the case, which is 
still in the discovery phase.  Case Evaluation is scheduled for 
January 3, 2006.  



 6

D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 
 

 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.   In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that their civil rights were somehow violated by the 
City and/or the police officers of the City of Troy.  
 

 Maria Elena Hunciag v. Troy- This is an alleged employment discrimination 
case filed on July 1, 2003.  According to the complaint, Ms. Hunciag argues 
that she was denied the position of Troy Museum Curator due to alleged 
age, gender, and/or national origin discrimination.  A Motion for Summary 
Judgment was filed with the Court,.  On January 12, 2005, Judge Victoria 
Roberts granted the Motion for Summary Judgment and dismissed all 
federal claims.  Ms. Hunciag had also asserted some state law claims, 
which the Judge dismissed on jurisdictional grounds, since the claims 
should be adjudicated in state court.  The Court’s dismissal of the state law 
claims allowed Plaintiff to file a new complaint in the Oakland County 
Circuit Court.  Ms. Hunciag filed an almost identical state court lawsuit with 
the Oakland County Circuit Court in April.  A motion for summary 
disposition was filed as the first responsive pleading, based on the 
discovery that was conducted in the federal action.  On July 20, 2005, 
Judge Schnelz of the Oakland County Circuit Court dismissed all of 
Ms. Hunciag’s state law claims, and the case is now concluded.  

 
F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 

 
1.   Catherine Norris and Kathleen Livingway v. City of Troy – This lawsuit is 

identical to lawsuits filed in 12 other communities in the State of Michigan.  The 
complaint asserted that the revenue paid by cable television companies, 
pursuant to franchise agreements, constitutes an impermissible tax that is 
prohibited by the Headlee Amendment.  In the Troy case, a motion for 
summary disposition and a motion for class certification were scheduled for 
4/21/04.  Prior to a final decision in Troy’s case, Plaintiffs filed appeals in the 
Michigan Court of Appeals against some of the original twelve communities 
who had received quicker decisions from the circuit court.  Troy’s suit was then 
stayed until these appeals were concluded.  However, we have participated in 
a coordinated municipal defense as much as possible.  Oral argument on the 
appellate cases (including St. Clair Shores, Grand Rapids, Westland, 
Muskegon, Canton and Livonia) was July 12, 2005.  On July 26, 2005. the 
Michigan Court of Appeals affirmed all of the dismissals in favor of the 
municipalities.  In August, Plaintiff filed an Application for Leave to 
Appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The municipal defendants 
have filed a formal response to the application, requesting a denial of the 
application.   

2. Kent Fehribach v. City of Troy – In this lawsuit, there are two challenges to the 
City’s political sign ordinance.  Plaintiff is challenging the restriction of placing 
political signs in residential areas more than 30 days prior to an election and 



 7

the two sign per residence limit.  Plaintiff filed a motion for a temporary 
restraining order, which was heard in Judge Gadola’s absence by Judge 
Steeh.  Judge Steeh temporarily restrained the City from enforcing the two 
provisions against the plaintiff until Judge Gadola entered a subsequent order. 
An Opinion and Order Granting Preliminary Injunction was entered on 
10/18/04.  The City has filed its answer and affirmative defenses.  Meanwhile, 
amendment of the sign ordinance is underway.  Discovery is on-going.  The 
Plaintiff has scheduled Marlene Stuckman’s deposition for July 28, 2005.  Troy 
filed a motion for summary judgment with the Court, arguing that the 
case was moot after amendments to Troy’s sign ordinance.  Counter 
motions were filed by Plaintiff, and the parties are waiting for oral 
argument and/or a decision from the Court.  

3. Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT - Sunset has indirectly sued the City of 
Troy for an alleged change order in the Big Beaver Road Project (from I-75 
to Rochester Road).  Sunset argues that the unexpected requirement to 
remove some of the existing soil and replace it with a finer grade of soil 
justifies an additional $190,000 in compensation.  Since the Project was 
partially financed with federal funds, MDOT was required to serve as the 
coordinator of the project, and therefore signed the contract with Sunset 
Excavating, Inc.  As the contracting party, MDOT is actually the named 
defendant in this lawsuit, even though it is the City of Troy that assumes all 
liability for the Project.  Discovery is scheduled to continue through July 1, 
2005.   However, Plaintiff has filed a motion seeking additional discovery.  
A hearing on the discovery motion is scheduled for July 6, 2005.  A 
facilitative mediation was held on June 9, 2005, which did not resolve the 
case.  All motions for summary disposition must be filed prior to case 
evaluation, which is scheduled in August 2005.  If the case is not dismissed 
or resolved by case evaluation, a trial will be scheduled in the Michigan 
Court of Claims (Ingham County Circuit Court) after October 1, 2005.  All 
discovery issues have been resolved, and the parties agreed to 
extend discovery.  Troy, on behalf of MDOT, filed a motion for 
summary disposition, which was denied by the Court.  The case will 
now be scheduled for case evaluation.   

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



November 5, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Library rankings 
 
 
Each year a variety of statistics are collected from the over 9,000 public libraries 
in the United States through a federal program.  The HAPLR (Hennen’s 
American Public Library Rating) Index ranks the effectiveness of public libraries 
by focusing on 15 input and output measures dealing with funding level, staffing, 
collections, patron visits, materials circulated and reference questions asked. 
 
Based on this index for statistics reported for the 2003/04 fiscal year (the latest 
numbers available), the Troy Public Library is ranked as the State’s #2 library 
overall.  Last year we were ranked 3rd overall and 1st for libraries serving 
populations over 50,000. 
 
When compared with the 531 public libraries nationwide serving populations of 
our size, we rank 18th.  Last year we were ranked 22nd. 
 
When compared with all 9,027 public libraries, regardless of size, we rank 146th 
nationally compared with 214th last year. 
 
We are proud of these rankings and we feel they make a strong statement of the 
value our patrons place on library services, the leadership of Council in providing 
appropriate funding, the support of the Library Advisory Board and the Friends of 
the Library, and the dedication, forward-thinking and professionalism of the staff. 
 
The Index this year also stated that the average size of library facilities in the 
Great Lakes region for our population is about 15,000 square feet larger than our 
facility. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02g



 
 
November 9, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager   
 
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager 

Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 

RE:  AGENDA ITEM:  Ford and Earl Property 
 
 
As you requested, the following is an update on the status of the Ford and Earl 
property.  Approximately four years ago, the Pension Board purchased the Ford 
and Earl property adjacent to the civic center site.  As part of the initial sale, there 
was a four-year lease arrangement with Ford and Earl that terminates in early 
January, 2006.   
 
After discussions earlier this year with Ford and Earl, there was no extension of 
their lease agreement and therefore the Pension Board pursued a lease or sale 
of the building and property.  Friedman Realty was hired to market the property 
and provide professional advice on our lease or sale of the property.   
 
As the property was marketed over the last sixty days, discussions with 
Sunstone, owner of the Marriott, have resulted in an offer that the Pension Board 
is favorably considering.  Their initial plans call for additional rooms and 
expanded conference space.  It is a market appropriate offer and reflects a 
reasonable return on the investment for the Pension Board. 
 
 
 
 
DS/bh 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02h



 1

 
 
 
 
 
November 8, 2005 
 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – STATUS OF ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District 

 
City Council adopted ZOTA 216 at the October 24, 2005 meeting.  The text amendment 
permits retail uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, provided the retail use does not 
exceed twenty-five percent of the gross floor area of a building that is used for industrial 
purposes.  Furthermore, there shall be a functional relationship between the retail use and 
the industrial use.  Additionally, in the event the industrial portion of the building is used for 
warehousing, storage or distribution, the building shall have frontage on a major 
thoroughfare and there shall be common ownership.  
 
City Management and City Planning Consultant still have concerns that undesirable retail 
businesses will locate in the M-1 zoning district with the adoption of this zoning ordinance 
text amendment.  Therefore, City Management will monitor the new retail and report the 
findings to City Council. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Minutes (Draft) from the October 24, 2005 City Council meeting. 
2. ZOTA 216, adopted by City Council on October 24, 2005. 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 216 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\Memo to City Manager 11 8 05.doc 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02i















campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c





campbellld
Text Box
J-03d





campbellld
Text Box
J-03e





campbellld
Text Box
J-03f





campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



campbellld
Text Box
J-03h



campbellld
Text Box
J-03i



campbellld
Text Box
J-03j



campbellld
Text Box
J-03k



campbellld
Text Box
J-03l



campbellld
Text Box
J-03m



campbellld
Text Box
J-03n



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03o



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06






	CALL TO ORDER:
	INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Richard Peacock
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	2005-2006 City Council Convenes:  (a) Installation of New Me
	d\) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Troy �
	e) Recognition for Outstanding Support from the City of Troy and the Troy Police Department by Command Sgt. Major Joseph Haddad


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Background Information for CDBG Agenda Items/Community D
	C-2 Request to Re-program and Waive Recapture of Community D
	C-3 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2006 Applicatio
	C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No Proclamations P
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  B�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  G�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�

	E-5 Application for Transfer Ownership of a Class C (Quota) 
	E-6 Amendment #4 – Office Space Rental Agreement – Emerald F
	E-7 Authorization to Pay 2006 Membership Dues – National Lea
	E-8 Request for Temporary Trailer – Chuck E. Cheese – 740 Jo
	E-9 Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic C
	E-10 Private Agreement for Beech Lane Splits – Project No. 0
	E-11 Private Agreement for Fifth Third Bank – Project No. 05
	E-12 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atl
	E-13 Request for Acceptance – Permanent Storm Drain Easement
	E-14 Request to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – 
	E-15 Contract Amendment #1 – Automatic Meter Reading System

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advi
	F-2 Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck
	F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 19, 2005

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 34551 De�
	b\) Parking Variance – 1414 Combermere –�
	c\) Rezoning Application – Northeast Cor�
	d\) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment \(Z

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) 2005 Troy Daze


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Board of Canvassers/Final – April 6, 2004
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – August 10, 2004
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 12, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 1, 
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Septe
	Library Board/Final – September 15, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 20, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 20, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 27, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Final – September 28, 2005
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 4, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 4, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 4, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Oct
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Oct
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 5, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 5, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 6, 20
	Planning Commission Regular/Draft – October 11, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular/Final – October 11, 2005
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 13, 2005
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – October 17, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 18, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – October 26, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 3, 2
	Board of Canvassers/Draft – November 9, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Novem

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a) 2006 Sanctuary Lake League Rates
	b\) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Rep�
	c\) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expe�
	d) Police Department - 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report
	e\) Building Department – Permits Issued�
	f\) City Attorney’s Office – 2005 Third �
	g) Library Rankings
	h\) Real Estate and Development Departme�
	i\) Planning Department – Status of Zoni�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Dan DeWolf Regarding the Professi
	Certificate of Appreciation to John M. Lamerato from the Mic
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from the Troy Daze Festival Committee
	Letter of Appreciation from Deborah Barczyk to the Troy Fire
	Letter of Thanks to Susan Lancaster from Jeannie Niland, Mic
	Letter of Appreciation to Brian Goul from Edith Andersen Reg
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Kelly McConnell, Briar
	Letter of Appreciation to Sgt. Zielinski from Paul Scobie, T
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Ann Strecker Regarding 
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Michael Bouchard, Oakla

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Det

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, January 9, 2006 Regular City Council
	Monday, January 23, 2006 Regular City Council





